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“SAFE HARBOR” STATEMENT

Some of the information contained in this Annual Report may include forward-looking statements that reflect our current views with respect to our
research and development activities, business strategy, business plan, financial performance and other future events. These statements include forward-
looking statements both with respect to us, specifically, and the biotechnology sector, in general. Statements that include the words “expect,” “intend,” “plan,”
“believe,” “project,” “estimate,” “may,” “should,” “anticipate,” “will” and similar statements of a future or forward-looking nature identify forward-looking

statements for purposes of the federal securities laws or otherwise.

” « » « » «

All forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, and there are or will be important factors that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those indicated in these statements. We believe that these factors include, but are not limited to, those factors set forth in the sections
entitled “Business,” “Risk Factors,” “Legal Proceedings,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” and “Controls and Procedures” in this Annual Report, all of which you should review
carefully. Please consider our forward-looking statements in light of those risks as you read this Annual Report. We undertake no obligation to publicly
update or review any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as required by law.

If one or more of these or other risks or uncertainties materializes, or if our underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual results may vary
materially from what we anticipate. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or individuals acting on our behalf are
expressly qualified in their entirety by this Statement.




PART I

Item 1. Business
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References in this Annual Report to “we,” “us,” “our” or the “company” refer to Genesis Biopharma, Inc., a Nevada corporation.

Overview

We are a biotechnology company focused on developing and commercializing adoptive cell therapy using autologous tumor infiltrating lymphocytes
for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma and other cancers. Our lead product candidate, Contego™, is an adoptive cell therapy using autologous
tumor infiltrating lymphocytes for the treatment of certain cancers.

Cancer cells possess multiple means of evading detection and destruction by the immune system. Such evasion occurs despite the fact that there are
tumor associated antigens expressed on the surface of the cancer cells which are not expressed on the surface of normal cells. A variety of
immunosuppressive influences can exist in the cancer patient including the presence of lymphocytes or myeloid cells with immunosuppressive activity.

Adoptive cell therapy (ACT) is a passive immunotherapy which attempts to optimize each patient’s unique immune response so that immune system
operatives called anti-tumor T cells will circulate throughout the patient’s body, recognize the markers on the surface of cancer cells, and attack and kill those
cancer cells. Our lead product candidate that we have named Contego™ is being developed as a ready-to-infuse ACT product comprised of a specific kind of
anti-tumor T cell called autologous tumor-infiltrating lymphocytes (TILs). TILs migrate from the bloodstream and invade the tumor in an attempt to kill the
tumor cells. We are developing Contego™ to treat patients suffering from metastatic melanoma, and ovarian, breast and colorectal cancers.

Contego™ is based on the adoptive cell therapy regimen using tumor infiltrating lymphocytes invented by Dr. Steven A. Rosenberg, Chief, Surgery
Branch, Center for Cancer Research, National Cancer Institute for the treatment of metastatic melanoma. Dr. Rosenberg’s adoptive cell therapy is presently
available as a physician-sponsored investigational therapy for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma at the National Cancer Institute, MD Anderson
Cancer Center, and the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer & Research Institute. The current method of treatment is very labor intensive, which has limited its widespread
application. We believe that a significant market opportunity exists if we can make the existing adoptive cell therapy more widely available to a larger number
of cancer patients. There is no guarantee that Contego will prove to be a commercially successful therapy product.

We have licensed the rights to the adoptive cell therapy from the National Cancer Institute, and are presently developing a commercial-scale
manufacturing process with Lonza Walkersville, Inc. for Contego as a prospective therapy for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma. Our goal is to
develop and establish a manufacturing process for the large-scale production of TILs that is in accord with current Good Manufacturing Practices (“cGMP”).
We do not plan to establish or operate our own manufacturing facility.

In order to effect our business plan, we have to date (i) acquired a worldwide, non-exclusive license for various adoptive cell therapy technologies
from the National Institute of Health, (ii) entered into a Cooperative Research and Development Agreement with the National Cancer Institute (NCI),
pursuant to which we intend to support the in vitro development of improved methods for the generation and selection of autologous TILs, develop
approaches for large-scale production of autologous TILs that are in accord with cGMP procedures, and conduct clinical trials using these improved methods
of generating TILs for the treatment of metastatic melanoma. We have also entered into a Manufacturing Services Agreement with Lonza Walkersville, Inc.
pursuant to which Lonza has agreed to manufacture, package, ship and handle quality assurance and quality control of our Contego autologous cell therapy
products.




Company History

We were incorporated in the State of Nevada on September 17, 2007. Until March 2010, we were known as Freight Management Corp., and we were
engaged in the development of an internet-based, intelligent online system for business owners, freight forwarders in the shipping/freight industry and
export/import industry. We never engaged in the online freight business, and were an inactive company until March 15, 2010.

On March 15, 2010, we acquired the rights, title and interest to certain assets, including certain patents, patent applications, materials, and know-
how, related to the development and commercialization of biotechnology drugs, and then commenced developing anti-cancer drugs based primarily on anti-
CD55+ antibody (the “Anti-CD55+ Antibody Program”). In order to further develop the assets we acquired, on March 15, 2010 we also entered into a Patent
and Know How License (the “CRT License Agreement”) with Cancer Research Technology Limited, a company registered in England and Wales. The CRT
License Agreement granted us an exclusive, worldwide right and license in certain intellectual property related to a proprietary, therapeutic use of anti-CD55+
antibodies, including rights to patents and patent applications related thereto. In order to develop our newly acquired technologies, on September 1, 2010, we
entered into a research agreement with the University of Nottingham, England. Through this research agreement, we commenced preclinical research on a
prospective therapeutic antibody (anti-CD55+ antibody) directed against expression of complement decay-accelerating factor CD55 protein which in humans
is encoded by the CD55 gene. CD55 is a 70 kilodalton membrane protein that plays a role in the regulation of the complement system. CD55 protein is
broadly expressed in malignant tumors, and is thought to play a role the promotion of tumorigenesis.

Although we initially believed that the proposed anti-CD55+ therapies that we were attempting to develop had significant commercial potential, test
results received in mid-2011 from the studies performed for us by the University of Nottingham failed to meet the pre-clinical development endpoints.
Accordingly, based on these test results and on a further evaluation of the anti-CD55+ technology, in October 2011, our Board of Directors determined that it
was in the best interests of this company to (i) end our development efforts for the anti-CD55+ technology and to terminate the CRT License Agreement, and
(ii) pursue the development of a new ready-to-infuse adoptive cell therapy product candidate we refer to as Contego™. Accordingly, we no longer are
pursuing the Anti-CD55+ Antibody Program.

In February 2012 we agreed with the CRT that we would terminate the CRT License Agreement. The termination is subject to the execution of a
formal termination agreement that will be prepared by the CRT. In connection with the termination of the CRT License Agreement, we will have to pay the
CRT £18,000 (approx. U.S. $29,000) and return to the CRT all rights to the anti-CD55+ related patents and patent applications that were licensed and
transferred to us by the CRT. We also need to pay Nottingham University £16,000 (approx. U.S. $25,000) as reimbursement for out-of-pocket Anti-CD55+
Antibody Program research-related expenses. Following our termination of the CRT License Agreement, we will no longer own, or have a license to use, the
intellectual property necessary to develop therapeutic products based on the use of anti-CD55+ antibodies and our sole focus will be on Contego.

Technology and Proposed Products; Regulatory Strategy
Contego™ is being developed as a ready-to-infuse adoptive cell therapy product candidate comprised of a specific kind of anti-tumor T cell called

autologous tumor-infiltrating lymphocytes (TILs) for the treatment of certain solid tumor cancers. TILs are white blood cells that have left the bloodstream
and migrated into the tumor which are believed to kill the tumor cells.
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Currently our focus is on the development and commercialization of Contego, our ACT therapy using TILs for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic
melanoma. Our goal is to also develop our technology so that it can eventually be used to treat certain other solid tumor cancers such as triple negative
breast/inflammatory breast duct, ovarian, and colorectal cancers.

Briefly, after the patient’s metastatic melanoma tumor has been surgically resected at the patient’s hospital, the tumor will then be sent to our
manufacturing partner, Lonza Walkersville, Inc., at its facilities in Walkersville, Maryland USA. Using patent-protected and proprietary processes, autologous
TILs having a high reactivity against the patient’s tumor-specific cell surface markers will then be isolated from the patient’s metastatic melanoma tumor.
This population of autologous TILs is then multiplied ex vivo to greater than 50 billion TILs under conditions that overcome the immunosuppressive
influences that exist in the cancer patient due to the presence of their cancer. Six to eight days prior to infusion of the TILs, the patient returns to the hospital
and is administered a nonmyeloablative chemotherapeutic regimen to remove any lymphoid and myeloid suppressor cells present in the patient’s immune
system. Once the TILs have been multiplied to a sufficient number ex vivo, and after the patient has completed the nonmyeloablative chemotherapeutic
regimen, the TILs are infused into the patient along with a high dose of interleukin-2 (IL-2), a protein that stimulates the immune system.

Typically, the patient remains in the hospital for 8-10 days after the TIL infusion while their immune system rebuilds itself. Based on published
results by the National Cancer Institute, the MD Anderson Cancer Center and at the Moffit Cancer Center, if planned confirmatory clinical trials reproduce
results seen so far, we expect that for patients with metastatic melanoma who are refractory to all other treatments, about 50% of such patients according to
RECIST criteria (“Response Evaluation Criteria in Solid Tumors” for clinical trials where diagnostic imaging such as a CAT scan is used to determine tumor
presence, absence, shrinkage or growth) could experience an objective response showing significant tumor shrinkage following the ACT using autologous
TILs. In addition, based on results from the same institutes, we also anticipate that a small percentage of patients could experience a complete response.
Responses could also be durable lasting several years, and could be seen in all organ sites where metastasis is present, including in the brain. .

Our lead product candidate, Contego™, is an adoptive cell therapy using autologous tumor infiltrating lymphocytes indicated for the treatment of
Stage IV metastatic melanoma. During 2012 and early 2013, we intend to work with our manufacturing partner, Lonza Walkersville to develop an FDA
compliant manufacturing process for Contego. Our goal is to submit our investigational new drug application (IND) to the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) in late 2013 seeking allowance to proceed with a pivotal clinical trial for Contego for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma
patients who are refractory to all FDA approved therapies for treatment of the disease. If the FDA approves our IND, we anticipate that we will commence a
pivotal clinical trial for Contego in early 2014 for about 500 patients at approximately 20 trial centers. The clinical trials are expected to take at least 24 to 36
months to complete. We plan to seek accelerated approval from FDA under Subpart E of the Food Drug and Cosmetics Act for Contego as a second line
therapy for the treatment of patients with Stage IV metastatic melanoma that are unresponsive to, or intolerant of, available therapies. Our goal is to obtain
accelerated approval under Subpart E within four years. If such approval is granted by FDA, when being allowed to sell Contego in the USA, our approval
will be conditioned upon us completing a confirmatory registration trial to remove the conditional approval status within an FDA mandated period of time
post receipt of accelerated approval.




We also plan to investigate Contego as a prospective therapy for the treatment of persons with triple negative breast / inflammatory breast duct
cancers, ovarian cancer, and colorectal cancer. We intend to undertake exploratory pilot clinical trials for these indications under sponsored research
agreements with various medical and research institutions, including the institutions that are affiliated with members of our scientific and medical advisory
board (see, Item 10 “Scientific & Medical Advisory Board” below). To date, we have not, however, entered into any such sponsored research agreements, and
no assurance can be given if, or when such investigative clinical trials will begin.

Table 1: Genesis Biopharma Intended Product Pipeline
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Market Opportunity

We are initially positioning Contego for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma, and ovarian, breast and colorectal cancers. The following
table published by the American Cancer Society in 2011, lists the worldwide number of each of the foregoing cancers.

Table 2: Worldwide Number of Certain Cancer Cases

Annual Mumber | Annual Humber
Cancer Type of New Cases of Deaths
(USA) (UISA)

Melanoma 70,230 8,790
Ovarian Cancer 21,990 15,460
Breast Cancer 230,480 39,520
Colorectal Cancer 101,340 49 380

Soagrog: Amorican Canced Society, Survolllincs Fasoarch 2011

Based on our own internal estimates and the number of annual deaths for people with metastatic melanoma, we currently estimate approximately
6,000 —7,000 Stage IV metastatic melanoma patients could be candidates for Contego annually in the U.S. We also estimate that the number of Stage IV
metastatic melanoma patients suitable for treatment using Contego outside the U.S. is approximately twice the size as in the U.S. We cannot, however,
estimate how many of the patients that would be suitable for therapy using Contego, if and when Contego becomes available, will actually use Contego nor
whether their disease status will change in meaningful way.




Summary of Intellectual Property

The intellectual properties that we licensed from the NIH under the License Agreement consist of T cell transfer technologies of which Dr. Steven A.
Rosenberg is an inventor. Dr. Rosenberg is Chief of Surgery at the National Cancer Institute in Bethesda, Maryland and a Professor of Surgery at the
Uniformed Services University of Health Sciences and at the George Washington University School of Medicine and Health Sciences in Washington, D.C.

Dr. Rosenberg is a pioneer in the field of autologous cell therapy, and his recent studies of cell transfer therapies have resulted in cancer regressions in patients
associated with the clonal repopulation of lymphocytes with anti-tumor reactivity. As described below, Dr. Rosenberg will be working with us under the
CRADA to develop Contego.

The License Agreement licenses to us, on a non-exclusive basis, a total of 43 patent filings, both issued and pending. These 43 licensed filings
include eight U.S. patents, one U.S. reissue patent, one European patent, three Australian patents, eight U.S. utility applications, five European applications,
six Canadian applications, four Australian applications, three International applications filed under the provisions of the Patent Cooperation Treaty, and four
U.S. provisional applications. In addition to the filings specifically identified in License Agreement, the licensed patent rights also include all divisions and
continuations of these applications, all patents issuing from these applications, divisions and continuations, and any reissues, reexaminations and extensions
of these patents.

The subject matter claimed in the patents and patent applications that were licensed by us under the License Agreement generally relates to:

1. Methods to identify and isolate T-cells and in particular, tumor infiltrating lymphocytes.
2. Ex Vivo methods to grow T-cells and in particular, tumor infiltrating lymphocytes.
3. Methods to use T-cells and in particular, tumor infiltrating lymphocytes, as therapeutic agents for the treatment of metastatic solid tumor

cancers including but not limited to metastatic melanoma.
Under the License Agreement, we are responsible for paying the patent maintenance costs. We currently estimate that annual maintenance cost for
the current elements of the non-exclusively licensed portfolio will range from $50,000 to $100,000. The licensed issued U.S. patents will expire at various

times between 2012 and, assuming that all maintenance fees are timely paid, 2026.

Our goal is to use the technologies that we licensed from the NIH, or that are expected to be developed under the CRADA, to further the
development of our lead product candidate, Contego™.

Agreements Related To Intellectual Property

Cooperative Research And Development Agreement

On August 5, 2011, we entered into a Cooperative Research and Development Agreement (“CRADA”) with the National Institutes of Health and the
National Cancer Institute (NCI). Under the terms of the five-year CRADA, Genesis Biopharma will work with Steven A. Rosenberg, M.D., Ph.D., chief of
NCI’s Surgery Branch, to develop adoptive cell immunotherapies that are designed to destroy metastatic melanoma cells using a patient’s tumor infiltrating
lymphocytes.




Specifically, the purposes of the CRADA are to: (i) support the in vitro development of improved methods for the generation and selection of
autologous tumor infiltrating lymphocytes with anti-tumor reactivity from patients with metastatic melanoma, (ii) develop approaches for large-scale
production of autologous tumor infiltrating lymphocytes that are in accord with cGMP procedures suitable for use in treating patients with metastatic
melanoma, and (iii) conduct clinical trials using these improved methods of generating autologous tumor infiltrating lymphocytes as well as improved
adoptive cell therapy patient preparative regimens for the treatment of metastatic melanoma.

Both this company and the NCI may provide personnel, services, facilities, equipment or other resources under the agreement. Under the terms of
the CRADA, we will have an exclusive option to negotiate an exclusive license to any new inventions developed jointly or independently by NCI scientists
during the course of the research project. A CRADA is the only mechanism under which the National Institutes of Health can grant exclusive intellectual
property rights in advance to a collaborator. The term of the CRADA is five years, but either party to the CRADA has the right to terminate the CRADA upon
60 days’ notice.

Under the CRADA, we are required to provide funds for Dr. Rosenberg, which funds may be used to acquire technical, statistical, and administrative
support for the research activities, as well as to pay for supplies and travel expenses. Our obligation is to provide $1,000,000 of funds annually under the
CRADA, which amount is disbursed in quarterly installments of $250,000. Our last quarterly payment was due on March 8, 2012, but we have not yet made
that payment. Accordingly, we are currently in default under the CRADA, and the NCI could terminate that agreement at any time. See, “Risk Factors--Our
research and development plans are to a large extent dependent upon the CRADA. We are currently in default under our payment obligations under the
CRADA, which may result in the termination of that agreement at any time.” We have also agreed that Dr. Rosenberg can allocate the funding between the
various categories in support of the CRADA research as he sees fit.

National Institutes Of Health License Agreement

Effective October 5, 2011, we entered into a Patent License Agreement (the “License Agreement”) with the National Institutes of Health, an agency
of the United States Public Health Service within the Department of Health and Human Services (“NIH”). Pursuant to the License Agreement, NIH granted
us a non-exclusive worldwide right and license to develop and manufacture certain proprietary adoptive cell therapy using autologous tumor infiltrating
lymphocytes for the treatment of metastatic melanoma, ovarian cancer, breast cancer, and colorectal cancer. The intellectual property subject to the License
Agreement is covered by 43 patents and patent applications, consisting of nine issued United States patents, 13 pending patent applications in the United
States, and 21 foreign patents and patent applications as counterparts of U.S. patents/patent applications. We also were granted limited rights to sublicense the
intellectual property subject to the License Agreement. The License Agreement will expire on a product-by-product basis upon the expiration of the subject
patent rights.

We have the right to terminate the License Agreement in any country on 60 day notice, and NIH has the right to terminate the agreement if we are in
material breach and the breach is not cured within a specified cure period, upon certain bankruptcy and insolvency events, or we fail to comply with or
achieve certain development timelines as set forth in the License Agreement.

In consideration for the rights granted pursuant to the License Agreement, we paid the NIH a total of $723,000 of upfront licensing fees and expense
reimbursements following the execution and delivery of the License Agreement. We will also be required to pay a 6% royalty on net yearly sales for all
products sold which are covered by the License Agreement. We also are required to make smaller minimum annual royalty payments, which minimum
royalties will be credited against any earned royalties due for sales in that year.




In addition to the up-front payment and on-going royalty payments, we are also obligated to make lump sum benchmark milestone payments upon
the achievement of certain clinical and regulatory milestones for each of the four indications (melanoma, breast cancer, ovarian cancer, and colorectal cancer).
We initially intend to focus our efforts on the development of licensed products in the metastatic melanoma field of use. If we achieve all benchmarks for
metastatic melanoma, up to and including the product’s first commercial sale in the United States and any foreign country, the total amount of such
benchmark payments will be $6,050,000. If we achieve all benchmarks for all four licensed indications, the aggregate amount of benchmark payments that we
will have to make to NIH will be $36,300,000.

Manufacturing

We have no capability to manufacture supplies of any of our products, and rely on third-party manufacturers to produce materials needed for
research and clinical trials.

On June 21, 2011, we entered into a process development and scale-up consulting agreement with Lonza Walkersville, Inc. (“Lonza”) relating to the
manufacture of Contego. Lonza is a leading international supplier to the pharmaceutical, healthcare and life science industries. Under the terms of the Lonza
consulting agreement, Lonza agreed to work with Dr. Rosenberg and his colleagues at the NCI to transfer to Lonza Walkersville, Inc., Lonza’s U.S.
production facility, the NCI’s standard operating procedures that are used to manufacture the NCI’s physician-sponsored investigational adoptive cell therapy
using tumor infiltrating lymphocytes for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma. The purpose of the transfer of the standard operating procedures is to
assist Lonza Walkersville to develop manufacturing procedures and protocols for the manufacture of Contego for clinical trials and for post FDA approval
sales. Effective as of November 4, 2011, we entered into a Letter of Intent with Lonza Walkersville, Inc. (the “LOI”) whereby Lonza will provide certain
process development services as well as to investigate the development and manufacture of Contego™, our autologous cell therapy using tumor infiltrating
lymphocytes for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma and to explore the manufacture of Contego™ for clinical trials to be performed by us.
Pursuant to the terms of the LOI, we paid a reservation fee to Lonza of $500,000 which is included in Research and Development Costs in the accompany
State of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2011. The reservation fee payable to Lonza is non-refundable except in the event that Lonza terminates
the LOL

In December 2011, we entered into a five-year Manufacturing Services Agreement with Lonza. Under the Manufacturing Services Agreement,
Lonza agreed to manufacture, package, ship and handle quality assurance and quality control of our Contego autologous cell therapy products. All of Lonza
services will be provided under separate statements of work that we have agreed to enter into, from time to time, with Lonza . The first statement of work,
which we entered into in December 2011, describes the services Lonza must perform in connection with optimizing the manufacturing process for Contego
products. The fees and costs of Lonza’s services under the Manufacturing Services Agreement depend on each statement of work. Under the Manufacturing
Services Agreement, we shall be the owners of all intellectual property that is developed, conceived, invented or reduced to practice by Lonza, other than
intellectual property that is generally applicable to the development or manufacture of chemical or biological products, or intellectual property that improves
Lonza’s previously owned intellectual property.

Research and Development

Expenditures for research and development activities related to continuing operations were $1,755,000 and $171,000 for the years ended December
31, 2011 and 2010, or approximately 8.3% and 21.0% respectively, of our total operating expenses. For further information regarding our research and
development activities, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” below.

Our currently projected expenditures for 2012 include approximately $25-$30 million for research and development, Contego process development
and manufacturing scale-up, development of regulatory compliant information technology infrastructure and systems, preparation of the investigational new
drug (IND) application and chemistry, manufacturing, and controls (CMC) package for Contego for submission to FDA, and for general corporate working
capital. The actual cost of our programs could differ significantly from our current projections due to any additional requirements or delays imposed by the
FDA in connection with our planned trials, or if actual costs are higher than current management estimates for other reasons, including complications with
manufacturing. In the event that actual costs of our clinical program, or any of our other ongoing research activities, are significantly higher than our current
estimates, we may be required to significantly modify our planned level of operations.




There is a risk that any drug discovery and development program may not produce revenue because of the risks inherent in drug discovery and
development. The successful development of any product candidate is highly uncertain. We cannot reasonably estimate or know the nature, timing and costs
of the efforts necessary to complete the development of, or the period in which material net cash inflows are expected to commence from any product
candidate, due to the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with developing drugs, including the uncertainty of:

our ability to advance product candidates into pre-clinical and clinical trials;

the scope, rate and progress of our pre-clinical trials and other research and development activities;

the scope, rate of progress and cost of any clinical trials we commence;

the cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

future clinical trial results;

the terms and timing of any collaborative, licensing and other arrangements that we may establish;

the cost and timing of regulatory approvals;

the cost and timing of establishing sales, marketing and distribution capabilities;

the cost of establishing clinical and commercial supplies of our product candidates and any products that we may develop; and

the effect of competing technological and market developments.

Any failure to complete any stage of the development of our products in a timely manner could have a material adverse effect on our operations,
financial position and liquidity. A discussion of the risks and uncertainties associated with our business is set forth in the “Risk Factors” section of this Annual
Report.

Competition
The pharmaceutical and biopharmaceutical industry is characterized by intense competition and rapid and significant technological changes and

advancements. Many companies, research institutions and universities are doing research and development work in a number of areas similar to those that we
focus on that could lead to the development of new products which could compete with and be superior to our product candidates.




Most of the companies with which we compete have substantially greater financial, technical, manufacturing, marketing, distribution and other
resources than those of ours. A number of these companies may have or may develop technologies for developing products for treating various diseases that
could prove to be superior to ours. We expect technological developments in the pharmaceutical and biopharmaceutical and related fields to occur at a rapid
rate, and we believe competition will intensify as advances in these fields are made. Accordingly, we will be required to continue to devote substantial
resources and efforts to research and development activities in order to potentially achieve and maintain a competitive position in this field. Products that we
develop may become obsolete before we are able to market them or to recover all or any portion of our research and development expenses. We will be
competing with respect to our products with companies that have significantly more experience in undertaking preclinical testing and human clinical trials
with new or improved therapeutic products and obtaining regulatory approvals of such products. A number of these companies already market and may be in
advanced phases of clinical testing of various drugs or therapies that may compete with our lead product candidate or any future product candidates. Our
competitors may develop or commercialize products more rapidly than we do or with significant advantages over any products we develop. Our competitors
may therefore be more successful in commercializing their products than we are, which could adversely affect our competitive position and business.

In addition to larger pharmaceutical or biopharmaceutical companies that may develop different competing technologies or technologies within the
immunotherapy field, we will be competing with a number of smaller biotechnology companies that are focused on cellular therapy technologies, which may
include among others Dendreon, Northwest Biotherapeutics, Antigenics, Celldex Therapeutics, NeuralStem, Geron, NeuroNova, ReNeuron, Stemcells, Inc.,
Advanced Cell Technology and Osiris Therapeutics. Additionally, Bristol-Myers Squibb and Genentech have recently received FDA approval to sell Yervoy®
and Zelboraf®, respectively, for the treatment of metastatic melanoma.

Colleges, universities, governmental agencies and other public and private research organizations are becoming more active in seeking patent
protection and licensing arrangements to collect royalties for use of technologies that they have developed, some of which may be directly competitive with
our lead product candidate or any future product candidates. The governments of a number of foreign countries are aggressively investing in cellular therapy
research and promoting such research by public and private institutions within those countries. These domestic and foreign institutions and governmental
agencies, along with pharmaceutical and specialized biotechnology companies, can be expected to compete with us in recruiting qualified scientific
personnel.

Our competitive position will be significantly impacted by the following factors, among others:

our ability to obtain FDA marketing approval for our product candidates on a timely basis

the level of acceptance of our products by physicians, compared to those of competing products or therapies
our ability to have our products manufactured on a commercial scale

the effectiveness of sales and marketing efforts on behalf of our products

our ability to meet demand for our products

our ability to secure insurance reimbursement for our products candidates

the price of our products relative to competing products or therapies

our ability to recruit and retain appropriate management and scientific personnel

our ability to develop a commercial scale research and development, manufacturing and marketing infrastructure either on our own or with
one or more future strategic partners.

Government Regulation

The United States and other developed countries extensively regulate the preclinical and clinical testing, manufacturing, labeling, storage, record-
keeping, advertising, promotion, export, marketing and distribution of drugs and biologic products. The United States Food and Drug Administration, under
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, the Public Health Service Act and other federal statutes and regulations, regulates pharmaceutical and biologic
products.




To obtain approval of our product candidates from the FDA, we must, among other requirements, submit data supporting safety and efficacy for the
intended indication as well as detailed information on the manufacture and composition of the product candidate. In most cases, this will require extensive
laboratory tests and preclinical and clinical trials. The collection of these data, as well as the preparation of applications for review by the FDA involve
significant time and expense. The FDA also may require post-marketing testing to monitor the safety and efficacy of approved products or place conditions
on any approvals that could restrict the therapeutic claims and commercial applications of these products. Regulatory authorities may withdraw product
approvals if we fail to comply with regulatory standards or if we encounter problems at any time following initial marketing of our products.

The first stage of the FDA approval process for a new biologic or drug involves completion of preclinical studies and the submission of the results of
these studies to the FDA. This data, together with proposed clinical protocols, manufacturing information, analytical data and other information submitted to
the FDA, in an investigational new drug application (“IND”), must become effective before human clinical trials may commence. Preclinical studies
generally involve FDA regulated laboratory evaluation of product characteristics and animal studies to assess the efficacy and safety of the product candidate.

After the IND becomes effective, a company may commence human clinical trials. These are typically conducted in three sequential phases, but the
phases may overlap. Phase I trials consist of testing of the product candidate in a small number of patients or healthy volunteers, primarily for safety at one or
more doses. Phase I trials in cancer are often conducted with patients who are not healthy and who have end-stage or metastatic cancer. Phase II trials, in
addition to safety, evaluate the efficacy of the product candidate in a patient population somewhat larger than Phase I trials. Phase III trials typically involve
additional testing for safety and clinical efficacy in an expanded population at multiple test sites. A company must submit to the FDA a clinical protocol,
accompanied by the approval of the Institutional Review Boards at the institutions participating in the trials, prior to commencement of each clinical trial.

To obtain FDA marketing authorization, a company must submit to the FDA the results of the preclinical and clinical testing, together with, among
other things, detailed information on the manufacture and composition of the product candidate, in the form of a new drug application (“NDA”) or, in the case
of a biologic, like dendritic cell-based vaccines for neurological disorders, a biologics license application (“BLA”).

The amount of time taken by the FDA for approval of an NDA or BLA will depend upon a number of factors, including whether the product
candidate has received priority review, the quality of the submission and studies presented, the potential contribution that the compound will make in
improving the treatment of the disease in question, and the workload at the FDA. The FDA has committed to reviewing standard BLAs in 10 months and
priority BLAs in six months, but the actual time it takes to review any BLA that we may file could be substantially longer.

The FDA may, during its review of an NDA or BLA, ask for additional test data that may require the conduct of additional clinical trials. If the FDA
does ultimately approve the product candidate for marketing, it may require post-marketing testing to monitor the safety and effectiveness of the product. The
FDA also may in some circumstances impose restrictions on the use of the product, which may be difficult and expensive to administer and may require prior
approval of promotional materials.

The FDA may, in some cases, confer upon an investigational product the status of a fast track product. A fast track product is defined as a new drug
or biologic intended for the treatment of a serious or life-threatening condition that demonstrates the potential to address unmet medical needs for this
condition. The FDA can base approval of an NDA or BLA for a fast track product on an effect on a surrogate endpoint, or on another endpoint that is
reasonably likely to predict clinical benefit. If a preliminary review of clinical data suggests that a fast track product may be effective, the FDA may initiate
review of entire sections of a marketing application for a fast track product before the sponsor completes the application.
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We will also be subject to a variety of regulations governing clinical trials and sales of our products outside the United States. Whether or not FDA
approval has been obtained, approval of a product candidate by the comparable regulatory authorities of foreign countries and regions must be obtained prior
to the commencement of marketing the product in those countries. The approval process varies from one regulatory authority to another and the time may be
longer or shorter than that required for FDA approval. In the European Union, Canada and Australia, regulatory requirements and approval processes are
similar, in principle, to those in the United States.

Before approving a BLA, the FDA will inspect the facilities at which the product is manufactured and will not approve the product unless the
manufacturing facilities are in compliance with the FDA’s cGMP, which are regulations that govern the manufacture, holding and distribution of a product.
Manufacturers of biologics also must comply with the FDA’s general biological product standards. Following approval, the FDA periodically inspects drug
and biologic manufacturing facilities to ensure continued compliance with the good manufacturing practices regulations. We must ensure that any third-party
manufacturers continue to comply with those requirements. Failure to comply with these requirements subjects the manufacturer to possible legal or
regulatory action, such as suspension of manufacturing or recall or seizure of product. Adverse patient experiences with the product must be reported to the
FDA and could result in the imposition of marketing restrictions through labeling changes or market removal. Product approvals may be withdrawn if
compliance with regulatory requirements is not maintained or if problems concerning safety or efficacy of the product occur following approval.

The labeling, advertising, promotion, marketing and distribution of a drug or biologic product also must be in compliance with FDA and Federal
Trade Commission, requirements, which include, among others, standards and regulations for off-label promotion, industry sponsored scientific and
educational activities, promotional activities involving the internet, and direct-to-consumer advertising. We also will be subject to a variety of federal, state
and local regulations relating to the use, handling, storage and disposal of hazardous materials, including chemicals and radioactive and biological materials.
In addition, we will be subject to various laws and regulations governing laboratory practices and the experimental use of animals. In each of these areas, as
above, the FDA has broad regulatory and enforcement powers, including the ability to levy fines and civil penalties, suspend or delay issuance of product
approvals, seize or recall products, and deny or withdraw approvals.

We also will be subject to federal regulation by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration and the Environmental Protection Agency and to
regulation under the Toxic Substances Control Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and other federal and state regulatory statutes, and may in
the future be subject to other federal, state or local regulations.

In addition to laws and regulations enforced by the FDA, we are also subject to regulation under National Institutes of Health guidelines as well as
under the Controlled Substances Act, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Environmental Protection Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and other present and potential future federal, state or local laws and regulations, as our research and development
may involve the controlled use of hazardous materials, chemicals, viruses and various radioactive compounds.

Employees
We currently have only two fulltime employees, Anthony Cataldo, our Chief Executive Officer, and Michael Handelman, our Chief Financial

Officer. We also have a part-time Vice President—NCI Research Liaison.
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Available Information

We maintain a website at www.genesis-biopharma.com and make available there, free of charge, our periodic reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, as soon as is reasonably practicable after filing. The public may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the
SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains a website at http:/www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements,
and other information regarding issuers such as us that file electronically with the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks described below may not be the only ones relating to our company. Additional risks that we currently believe are immaterial may also impair our
business operations. Our business, financial conditions and future prospects and the trading price of our common stock could be harmed as a result of any of
these risks. Investors should also refer to the other information contained or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011, including our financial statements and related notes, and our other filings from time to time with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Risks Related To Our Business
Our 7% Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes mature on March 30, 2012, and, therefore, will be in default if we do not repay the notes by that date.

In July 2011, we issued $5,000,000 of our 7% Tranche A Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes and Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes
(collectively, the “Notes”). The Notes initially matured on November 30, 2011, but the maturity date has been extended several times, most recently to March
30, 2012. Accordingly, as of March 30, 2012, the Notes will be in default if we do not repay them in full by that date. Upon a default, the interest rate on the
Notes increases to 15% per annum, and the holders of the Notes have the right to demand that we immediately redeem all of the Notes at a price that is the
greater than the outstanding balance of the Notes. In general, the investors may demand that the Notes be redeemed at a price equal to the greater of (i) 125%
of the outstanding balance of the Notes, or (ii) an amount based on 135% of the greatest closing sale price of our common stock during the period beginning
on the date of default until the redemption demand. No assurance can be given that we will be able to repay the Notes when they become due. The Notes are
currently convertible into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of $1.25 per share.

We have a history of operating losses; we expect to continue to incur losses and we may never be profitable.

As of December 31, 2011, we had an accumulated deficit of $27,376,576. In addition, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, we incurred a net
loss of $25,694,100, and had a working capital deficiency of $12,825,267. These losses have resulted from costs incurred in our research and development
programs, from stock based compensation paid to our executives and consultants, and from our general and administrative costs. Since our inception we have
not generated any revenues. We do not expect to achieve any product sales or royalty revenue for at least four years, if ever. We expect to incur significant
additional operating losses in the future as we expand development and clinical trial efforts.

Our ability to achieve long-term profitability is dependent upon obtaining regulatory approvals for our products and successfully commercializing
our products alone or with third parties. However, our operations may not be profitable even if any of our products under development are commercialized.
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We have no experience in operating our current business, which makes it difficult to evaluate our current operations and our business plan.

Until March 2010, we were known as Freight Management Corp., and we were engaged in the development of an internet-based, intelligent online
system for business owners, freight forwarders in the shipping/freight industry and export/import industry. In March 2010, we abandoned our plan to engage
in the internet-based, freight forwarders’ shipping/freight business, and acquired certain intellectual property related to a proprietary, therapeutic use of anti-
CD55+ antibodies for the treatment of cancer and commenced developing biotechnology drugs based on the anti-CD55+ antibodies. In 2011, we decided to
terminate the development of products based on the anti-CD+55 antibodies, and decided to enter into our current business. Our business is substantially
dependent upon the NIH License Agreement, the CRADA and the manufacturing services agreement with Lonza Walkersville, Inc., all of which we entered
into since mid-2011. As a result, we have no operating history in our current line of business, and we have no operating history in that line of business on
which a decision to invest in our company can be based. The future of our company currently is dependent upon our ability to implement our new business
plan. While we believe that our business plan, if implemented as planned, will make our company successful, we have no operating history against which we
can test our plans and assumptions, and investors therefore cannot evaluate the likelihood of our success.

We currently have no revenues, a limited amount of cash available, and will need to raise substantial additional capital to operate our business, without
which we will have to curtail or cease operations.

We do not expect to generate any revenues until, and if, we receive approval from the FDA and other regulatory authorities for our product
candidates allowing us to sell our products. Our current cash on hand is only sufficient to fund our operations for approximately one month. In addition to our
current monthly general and administrative expenses, we are also required to make substantial cash payments under the CRADA, to maintain the patents
under the NIH License Agreement, and to fund our development activities under the manufacturing services agreement with Lonza Walkersville, Inc.

It is expensive to develop cell therapies for the treatment of cancer, and to conduct clinical trials for such therapies. We plan to simultaneously
conduct clinical trials and preclinical research for the treatment of more than one type of cancer, which is costly. Based on our internal projections, we
estimate that we will spend approximately $35 million on the development of Contego until we file an IND. In addition, our development, clinical trial and
regulatory expenses will significantly increase thereafter. We do not have sufficient funds to support the expenses of our operations and the conduct of our
clinical trials and preclinical research. Therefore, we will need to raise significant amounts of additional capital to fund general and administrative expenses,
to continue the research and development of our adoptive cell therapies, and to commercialize our adoptive cell therapies. Our ability to obtain such
additional debt or equity funding will depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to the following:

our degree of success in developing our adoptive cell therapy products;
the rate of progress and cost of our research and development and clinical trial activities;
the costs of preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

emergence of competing technologies and other adverse market developments; and

the cost of developing and establishing the necessary manufacturing processes and facilities.
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We have not identified the sources for the additional financing that we will require, and we do not have commitments from any third parties to
provide this financing. Certain investors may be unwilling to invest in our securities since we are traded on the OTC Bulletin Board and not on a national
securities exchange, particularly if there is only limited trading in our common stock on the OTC Bulletin Board at the time we seek financing. The volume
and frequency of such trading has been limited to date. There is no assurance that sufficient funding through a financing will be available to us at acceptable
terms or at all. These factors, and our ability to meet our obligations from current operations, and the need to raise additional capital to accomplish our
objectives, create a substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.

We may not be able to obtain additional financing on favorable terms or at all. If we are unable to raise additional funds when we need them, we may
be required to delay, reduce or eliminate some or all of our development programs and some or all of our clinical trials. If we do not raise additional funds, we
may be required to cease all operations and close our company, in which case our stockholders will suffer a total loss on their investment. If we do raise
additional funds by issuing equity securities, further dilution to stockholders will result, and new investors could have rights superior to holders of shares
issued in this offering. Any additional funding that we obtain in a financing is likely to reduce the percentage ownership of the company held by our existing
security holders. The amount of this dilution may be substantially increased if the trading price of our common stock has declined at the time of any financing
from its current levels.

We will have to hire additional executive officers and employees to operate our business. If we are unable to hire qualified personnel, we may not be able
to implement our business plan and if we are unable to do so, the value of our common stock could be reduced.

We currently have only two fulltime employees, Anthony Cataldo, our Chief Executive Officer, and Michael Handelman, our Chief Financial
Officer. The loss of the services of one or more of key employees would delay our product development programs and our research and development efforts.
We do not maintain key person life insurance on any of our officers, employees or consultants. In order to develop our business in accordance with our
business plan, we will have to hire additional qualified personnel. Our future success is highly dependent on our ability to hire and retain key personnel,
particularly scientific staff. Competition for qualified employees among companies in the biotechnology and biopharmaceutical industry is intense. Our future
success depends upon our ability to attract, retain and motivate highly skilled employees. In order to commercialize our products successfully, we may be
required to expand substantially our workforce, particularly in the areas of manufacturing, clinical trials management, regulatory affairs, business
development and sales and marketing. These activities will require the addition of new personnel, including management, and the development of additional
expertise by existing management personnel.

We are subject to extensive regulation, which can be costly, time consuming and subject us to unanticipated delays; even if we obtain regulatory approval
for some of our products, those products may still face regulatory difficulties.

All of our potential products, cell processing and manufacturing activities, are subject to comprehensive regulation by the FDA in the United States
and by comparable authorities in other countries. The process of obtaining FDA and other required regulatory approvals, including foreign approvals, is
expensive and often takes many years and can vary substantially based upon the type, complexity and novelty of the products involved. In addition,
regulatory agencies may lack experience with our technologies and products, which may lengthen the regulatory review process, increase our development
costs and delay or prevent their commercialization.

No adoptive cell therapy using tumor infiltrating lymphocytes has been approved for marketing in the U.S. by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration. Consequently, there is no precedent for the successful commercialization of products based on our technologies. In addition, we have had
only limited experience in filing and pursuing applications necessary to gain regulatory approvals, which may impede our ability to obtain timely FDA
approvals, if at all. We have not yet sought FDA approval for any adoptive cell therapy product. We will not be able to commercialize any of our potential
products until we obtain FDA approval, and so any delay in obtaining, or inability to obtain, FDA approval would harm our business.
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If we violate regulatory requirements at any stage, whether before or after marketing approval is obtained, we may be fined, forced to remove a
product from the market and experience other adverse consequences including delay, which could materially harm our financial results. Additionally, we may
not be able to obtain the labeling claims necessary or desirable for the promotion of our products. We may also be required to undertake post-marketing trials.
In addition, if we or others identify side effects after any of our adoptive cell therapies are on the market, or if manufacturing problems occur, regulatory
approval may be withdrawn and reformulation of our vaccines, additional clinical trials, changes in labeling of our vaccines, and additional marketing
applications may be required.

An investigational new drug application must become effective before human clinical trials may commence. The investigational new drug
application is automatically effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA, unless before that time the FDA requests an extension to review the application, or
raises concerns or questions about the conduct of the trials as outlined in the application. In the latter case, the sponsor of the application and the FDA must
resolve any outstanding concerns before clinical trials can proceed. However, the submission of an investigational new drug application may not result in the
FDA authorizing us to commence clinical trials in any given case.

Preclinical studies involve laboratory evaluation of product characteristics and animal studies to assess the efficacy and safety of the product. The
FDA regulates preclinical studies under a series of regulations called the current Good Laboratory Practices regulations. If the sponsor violates these
regulations the FDA, in some cases, may invalidate the studies and require that the sponsor replicate those studies.

Subpart E fast track designation for development of our second line stage IV metastatic melanoma product candidate may not be granted to us, may not
lead to a faster development or regulatory review or approval process, and it does not increase the likelihood that our product candidates will receive
marketing approval.

If a drug is intended for the treatment of a serious or life-threatening condition and the drug demonstrates the potential to address unmet medical
needs for this condition, the drug sponsor may apply for FDA Fast Track designation for a particular indication. Marketing applications filed by sponsors of
products in Fast Track development may qualify for priority review under the policies and procedures offered by the FDA, but the Fast Track designation
does not assure any such qualification or ultimate marketing approval by the FDA. Receipt of Fast Track designation may not result in a faster development
process, review or approval compared to drugs considered for approval under conventional FDA procedures. In addition, the FDA may withdraw any Fast
Track designation at any time. We intend to seek Fast Track designation under Subpart E for our second line therapy for stage IV metastatic melanoma
product candidate, but there is no assurance that the FDA will grant this status.

We may take longer to complete our clinical trials than we project, or we may not be able to complete them at all.

Although for planning purposes we project the commencement, continuation and completion of our clinical trials, a number of factors, including
scheduling conflicts with participating clinicians and clinical institutions, and difficulties in identifying and enrolling patients who meet trial eligibility
criteria, may cause significant delays. We may not commence or complete clinical trials involving any of our products as projected or may not conduct them
successfully.

We may rely on academic institutions or clinical research organizations to conduct, supervise or monitor some or all aspects of clinical trials
involving our products. We will have less control over the timing and other aspects of these clinical trials than if we conducted them entirely on our own. If
we fail to commence or complete, or experience delays in, any of our planned clinical trials, our stock price and our ability to conduct our business as
currently planned could be harmed.
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We rely on our manufacturing partner, Lonza Walkersville, Inc., to manufacture our adoptive cell therapy products for clinical trials. If Lonza fails to
commence or complete, or experiences delays in, manufacturing our adoptive cell therapy products, our planned clinical trials will be delayed, which will
adversely affect our stock price and our ability to conduct our business as currently planned.

If testing of a particular product does not yield successful results, then we will be unable to commercialize that product.

Our research and development programs are at an early stage. We must demonstrate our products’ safety and efficacy in humans through extensive
preclinical and clinical testing. We may experience numerous unforeseen events during, or as a result of, the testing process that could delay or prevent
commercialization of our products, including but not limited to the following:

safety and efficacy results in various human clinical trials reported in scientific and medical literature may not be indicative of results we
obtain in our clinical trials;

the results of preclinical studies may be inconclusive, or they may not be indicative of results that will be obtained in human clinical trials;
after reviewing test results, we or our collaborators may abandon projects that we might previously have believed to be promising;

we, our collaborators or regulators, may suspend or terminate clinical trials if the participating subjects or patients are being exposed to
unacceptable health risks; and

the effects our potential products have may not be the desired effects or may include undesirable side effects or other characteristics that
preclude regulatory approval or limit their commercial use if approved.

Clinical testing is very expensive, can take many years, and the outcome is uncertain. A minimum of 24 months will elapse before we learn the
results from any clinical trial using our adoptive cell therapy. The data collected from our clinical trials may not be sufficient to support approval by the FDA
of Contego, our adoptive cell therapy using tumor infiltrating lymphocytes product candidate for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma. The clinical
trials for our products under development may not be completed on schedule and the FDA may not ultimately approve any of our product candidates for
commercial sale. If we fail to adequately demonstrate the safety and efficacy of any product candidate under development, this would delay or prevent
regulatory approval, which could prevent us from achieving profitability.

Our research and development plans are to a large extent dependent upon the CRADA. We are currently in default under our payment obligations under
the CRADA, which may result in the termination of that agreement at any time.

We expect to conduct a portion of our research and development under the CRADA we entered into with the National Institutes of Health and the
National Cancer Institute (NCI). We are obligated to make quarterly payments of $250,000 under the CRADA. Our last quarterly payment was due on March
5, 2012, but we have not yet made that payment. Accordingly, we are currently in default under the CRADA, and the NCI could terminate that agreement at
any time. In addition, although the CRADA has a five year term, either party to the CRADA has the right to terminate the CRADA upon 60 days’ notice to
the other party. As a result, even if we cure the current payment default, no assurance can be given that the NCI will not terminate the CRADA in the future
and that the CRADA will, therefore, remain in effect until we complete our desired research thereunder.
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We are required to pay substantial royalties under our license agreement with the NIH, and we must meet certain milestones to maintain our license
rights.

Under our license agreement with the NIH for our adoptive cell therapy technologies, we are required to pay substantial royalties to that institution
based on our revenues from sales of our products utilizing this technology, and these royalty payments could adversely affect the overall profitability for us of
any products that we may seek to commercialize. In order to maintain our license rights under the NIH License Agreement, we will need to meet certain
specified milestones, subject to certain cure provisions, in the development of our product candidates. There is no assurance that we will be successful in
meeting all of the milestones in the future on a timely basis or at all.

We rely on third parties to perform a variety of functions and have limited manufacturing and cell processing capabilities, which could limit our ability to
commercialize our products.

As aresult of our strategy to out-source most of our research and development and all of our manufacturing, we rely very heavily on third parties to
perform for us or assist us with a variety of important functions, including research and development, manufacturing and clinical trials management. We also
license all of our technology from others and, at this time, do not own any intellectual properties or technologies. We have never manufactured our adoptive
cell therapy product candidate on any scale, commercial or otherwise, nor has Lonza Walkersville, Inc., our manufacturing company. As a result, we cannot
give any assurance that we will be able to manufacture our products at a cost or in quantities necessary to make them commercially viable. We intend to rely
upon Lonza Walkersville, Inc. or other third party contract manufacturers to produce large quantities of materials needed for clinical trials and product
commercialization. Third party manufacturers may not be able to meet our needs with respect to timing, quantity or quality. If we are unable to contract for a
sufficient supply of needed materials on acceptable terms, or if we should encounter delays or difficulties in our relationships with manufacturers, our clinical
testing may be delayed, thereby delaying the submission of products for regulatory approval or the market introduction and subsequent sales of our products.
Any such delay may lower our revenues and potential profitability.

Moreover, we and any third-party manufacturers that we may use must continually adhere to current Good Manufacturing Practices, or cGMP,
regulations enforced by the FDA through its facilities inspection program. If our facilities or the facilities of these manufacturers cannot pass a pre-approval
plant inspection, the FDA premarket approval of our products will not be granted. In complying with cGMP and foreign regulatory requirements, we and any
of our third-party manufacturers will be obligated to expend time, money and effort in production, record-keeping and quality control to assure that our
products meet applicable specifications and other requirements. If we or any of our third-party manufacturers fail to comply with these requirements, we may
be subject to regulatory action.

Because our current product candidates represent and our other future potential product candidates will represent novel approaches to the treatment of
disease, there are many uncertainties regarding the development, the market acceptance, third-party reimbursement coverage and the commercial
potential of our product candidates.

There is no assurance that the approaches offered by our current product candidates or any future product candidates will gain broad acceptance
among doctors or patients or that governmental agencies or third-party medical insurers will be willing to provide reimbursement coverage for proposed
product candidates. Moreover, we do not have internal marketing data research resources and are not certain of and have not attempted to independently
verify the potential size of the commercial markets for our current product candidates or any future product candidates. Since our current product candidates
and any future product candidates will represent new approaches to treating various conditions, it may be difficult, in any event, to accurately estimate the
potential revenues from these product candidates. We may spend large amounts of money trying to obtain approval for these product candidates, and never
succeed in doing so. We do not yet have sufficient information to reliably estimate what it will cost to commercially manufacture our current product
candidates or any future product candidates, and the actual cost to manufacture these products could materially and adversely affect the commercial viability
of these products. If we do not successfully develop and commercialize products based upon our approach, we will not become profitable, which would
materially and adversely affect the value of our common stock.
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If we lose or are unable to secure collaborators, or if our collaborators do not apply adequate resources to their collaboration with us, our product
development and potential for profitability may suffer.

We intend to rely on one or more of the research, development, manufacturing, marketing and other commercialization activities relating to some of
our products under development. For example, much of our research and development will be effected under the CRADA, under our manufacturing services
agreement with Lonza Walkersville, Inc., and on sponsored research agreements with universities and other research institutions. The amount and timing of
resources applied by our collaborators to our joint efforts are not within our control.

If any collaborator breaches or terminates its agreement with us, or fails to conduct its collaborative activities in a timely manner, the
commercialization of our products under development could be slowed down or blocked completely. It is possible that our collaborators will change their
strategic focus, pursue alternative technologies or develop alternative products, either on their own or in collaboration with others, as a means for developing
treatments for the diseases targeted by our collaborative programs. The effectiveness of our collaborators in marketing our products will also affect our
revenues and earnings.

We intend to continue to enter into new collaborative agreements in the future. However, we may not be able to successfully negotiate any
collaborative arrangements. If established, these relationships may not be scientifically or commercially successful. Any collaborations would likely subject
us to some or all of the risks described above with respect to any such collaboration. Disputes may arise between us and collaborators, as to a variety of
matters, including financial or other obligations under our agreements. These disputes may be both expensive and time-consuming and may result in delays in
the development and commercialization of products.

We cannot prevent other companies from licensing the same intellectual properties that we have licensed or from otherwise duplicating our business
model and operations.

The intellectual properties that we are using to develop our Contego products were licensed to us by the NIH under the License Agreement.
However, the License Agreement is non-exclusive, and any other party could obtain a license for some or all of the licensed intellectual properties that we
currently use. In addition, since the National Cancer Institute, MD Anderson Cancer Center, and the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer & Research Institute already use
the ACT technology in therapy for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma, their methods and data are also available to third parties, who may want to
enter into our line of business and compete against us. We currently do not own any exclusive rights that could be used to prevent third parties from
duplicating our business plan or from otherwise directly competing against us.

If we are unable to protect our proprietary rights, we may not be able to compete effectively or operate profitably.

Our success is dependent in part on maintaining and enforcing the patents and other proprietary rights that we have licensed and may develop, and
on our ability to avoid infringing the proprietary rights of others. Patent law relating to the scope of claims in the biotechnology field in which we operate is
still evolving and, consequently, patent positions in our industry may not be as strong as in other more well- established fields. Accordingly, the United States
Patent and Trademark Office may not issue patents from the patent applications owned by or licensed to us. If issued, the patents may not give us an
advantage over competitors with similar technology.
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The issuance of a patent is not conclusive as to its validity or enforceability and it is uncertain how much protection, if any, will be given to our
patents if we attempt to enforce them and they are challenged in court or in other proceedings, such as oppositions, which may be brought in foreign
jurisdictions to challenge the validity of a patent. A third party may challenge the validity or enforceability of a patent after its issuance by the Patent Office.
It is possible that a competitor may successfully challenge our patents or that a challenge will result in limiting their coverage. Moreover, the cost of litigation
to uphold the validity of patents and to prevent infringement can be substantial. If the outcome of litigation is adverse to us, third parties may be able to use
our patented invention without payment to us. Moreover, it is possible that competitors may infringe our patents or successfully avoid them through design
innovation. To stop these activities we may need to file a lawsuit. These lawsuits are expensive and would consume time and other resources, even if we were
successful in stopping the violation of our patent rights. In addition, there is a risk that a court would decide that our patents are not valid and that we do not
have the right to stop the other party from using the inventions. There is also the risk that, even if the validity of our patents were upheld, a court would refuse
to stop the other party on the ground that its activities are not covered by, that is, do not infringe, our patents.

We also rely on unpatented technology, trade secrets and confidential information. Therefore, others may independently develop substantially
equivalent information and techniques or otherwise gain access to or disclose our technology. We may not be able to effectively protect our rights in
unpatented technology, trade secrets and confidential information. We require each of our employees, consultants and advisors to execute a confidentiality
agreement at the commencement of an employment or consulting relationship with us. However, these agreements may not provide effective protection of our
information or, in the event of unauthorized use or disclosure, they may not provide adequate remedies.

We will be dependent on third party vendors to design, build, maintain and support our information technology infrastructure and systems.

We intend to rely heavily on third party vendors to design, build, maintain and support our information technology infrastructure and systems, and
supply us with data center and bandwidth services. Any inability to design or delay in implementing such information technology infrastructure and systems
that are compliant with 21 CFR §11, Sarbanes Oxley Act, FDA, Securities and Exchange Commission, FINRA, Financial Accounting Standards Board and
other such regulations, or a disruption in network access or other services provided by these third party vendors, could significantly harm our business. Any
financial or other difficulties our third-party vendors face may have negative effects on our business, the nature and extent of which we cannot predict. We
will exercise little control over these third party vendors, which increases our vulnerability to any problems associated with the services they provide. We will
need to license technology, software, and databases from third parties to facilitate certain aspects of the development of our information technology
infrastructure and systems. Any errors, failures, interruptions or delays experienced in connection with these third party technologies and information services
could negatively impact our business and could expose us to liabilities to third parties.

We have insufficient capital and will need to raise additional capital to pay the full costs associated with the design and development of our
anticipated information technology infrastructure and systems as well as pay for any unexpected cost increases. As a result, we could experience delays in our
ability to complete the design of our information technology infrastructure and systems, which in turn could delay our ability to obtain FDA approval for
Contego.

The use of our technologies could potentially conflict with the rights of others.

Our potential competitors or others may have or acquire patent rights that they could enforce against us. If they do so, then we may be required to
alter our products, pay licensing fees or cease activities. If our products conflict with patent rights of others, third parties could bring legal actions against us
or our collaborators, licensees, suppliers or customers, claiming damages and seeking to enjoin manufacturing and marketing of the affected products. If these
legal actions are successful, in addition to any potential liability for damages, we could be required to obtain a license in order to continue to manufacture or
market the affected products. We may not prevail in any legal action and a required license under the patent may not be available on acceptable terms or at all.
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We have not conducted a “freedom to operate” investigation for Contego. As a result, we do not know if we can develop, test or commercialize
Contego without infringing valid intellectual property rights of others.

We may incur substantial costs as a result of litigation or other proceedings relating to patent and other intellectual property rights.

The cost to us of any litigation or other proceeding relating to intellectual property rights, even if resolved in our favor, could be substantial. Some of
our competitors may be better able to sustain the costs of complex patent litigation because they have substantially greater resources. If there is litigation
against us, we may not be able to continue our operations.

Should third parties file patent applications, or be issued patents claiming technology also used or claimed by us, we may be required to participate
in interference proceedings in the United States Patent and Trademark Office to determine priority of invention. We may be required to participate in
interference proceedings involving our issued patents and pending applications. We may be required to cease using the technology or to license rights from
prevailing third parties as a result of an unfavorable outcome in an interference proceeding. A prevailing party in that case may not offer us a license on
commercially acceptable terms.

We are exposed to potential product liability claims, and insurance against these claims may not be available to us at a reasonable rate in the future.
Our business exposes us to potential product liability risks, which are inherent in the testing, manufacturing, marketing and sale of pharmaceutical
products. We do not have clinical trial insurance coverage, but we intend to obtain such liability coverage in the future. However, such insurance coverage
may not be available to us at an acceptable cost, if at all. We may not be able to obtain insurance coverage that will be adequate to satisfy any liability that
may arise. Regardless of merit or eventual outcome, liability claims may result in decreased demand for a product, injury to our reputation, withdrawal of
clinical trial volunteers and loss of revenues. Thus, whether or not we are insured, a liability claim or product recall may result in losses that could be
material.
Competition in the field of cancer therapy is intense and many of our competitors have substantially greater managerial resources than we have.
Competition in the field of cancer therapy is intense and is accentuated by the rapid pace of technological development. Research and discoveries by
others may result in breakthroughs which may render our products obsolete even before they generate any revenue. There are products currently under
development by others that could compete with the products that we are developing. Many of our potential competitors have substantially greater research
and development capabilities and manufacturing, marketing, financial and managerial resources than we do. Our competitors may:
develop safer or more effective immunotherapeutics and other therapeutic products;

reach the market more rapidly, reducing the potential sales of our products; or

establish superior proprietary positions.
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Although no other companies currently commercially provide a ready-to-infuse adoptive cell therapy product that competes with Contego in our
proposed market, we are subject to significant competition from pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, academic and research institutions, and
government or other publicly-funded agencies that are pursuing the development of therapeutic products and technologies that are substantially similar to our
proposed therapeutic products and technologies, or that otherwise address the indications we are pursuing. Our most significant competitors include major
biotechnology companies such as Genentech, Amgen, Genzyme, Gilead Sciences, and Biogen Idec, and major pharmaceutical companies such as Merck,
Pfizer, Sanofi-Aventis, Novartis, Johnson & Johnson, and Eli Lilly. All of these companies, and most of our other current and potential competitors have
substantially greater research and development capabilities and financial, scientific, regulatory, manufacturing, marketing, sales, human resources, and
experience than we do. Many of our competitors have several therapeutic products that have already been developed, approved and successfully
commercialized, or are in the process of obtaining regulatory approval for their therapeutic products in the United States and internationally.

Universities and public and private research institutions are also potential competitors. While these organizations primarily have educational
objectives, they may develop proprietary technologies or secure patent protection that we may need for the development of our technologies and products.
We may attempt to license these proprietary technologies, but these licenses may not be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all.

Our competitors, either alone or with their collaborative partners, may succeed in developing technologies or products that are more effective, safer,
more affordable or more easily commercialized than ours, and our competitors may obtain intellectual property protection or commercialize products sooner
than we do. Developments by others may render our product candidates or our technologies obsolete making it difficult for us to generate revenues and the
value of our common stock could decrease.

We anticipate that we will face increased competition in the future as new companies enter our markets and as scientific developments surrounding
immunotherapy and other cancer therapies continue to accelerate. If our product candidates receive marketing approval but cannot compete effectively in the
marketplace, our profitability and financial position would suffer.

We must expand our operations to commercialize our products, which we may not be able to do.

We will need to expand and effectively manage our operations and facilities to successfully pursue and complete future research, development and
commercialization efforts. To grow we will need to add personnel and expand our capabilities, which may strain our existing managerial, operational,
financial and other resources. To compete effectively and manage our growth, we must:

train, manage and motivate our future employees;
accurately forecast demand for our products; and
acquire and maintain sufficient operational, financial and management information systems.
If we fail to manage our growth effectively, our product development and commercialization efforts could be curtailed or delayed.
Risks Related to Our Securities

Our stock may be traded infrequently and in low volumes, so you may be unable to sell your shares at or near the quoted bid prices if you need to sell your
shares.

The shares of our common stock may trade infrequently and in low volumes on the OTC Bulletin Board, meaning that the number of persons
interested in purchasing our common shares at or near bid prices at any given time may be relatively small or non-existent. This situation may be attributable
to a number of factors, including the fact that we are a small early stage company which is relatively unknown to stock analysts, stock brokers, institutional
investors and others in the investment community who can generate or influence sales volume, and that even if we came to the attention of such institutionally
oriented persons, they tend to be risk-averse in this environment and would be reluctant to follow an early stage company such as ours or purchase or
recommend the purchase of our shares until such time as we became more seasoned and viable. As a consequence, there may be periods of several days or
more when trading activity in our shares is minimal or non-existent, as compared to a seasoned issuer which has a large and steady volume of trading activity
that will generally support continuous sales without an adverse effect on share price. We cannot give you any assurance that a broader or more active public
trading market for our common shares will develop or be sustained. Due to these conditions, we can give you no assurance that you will be able to sell your
shares at or near bid prices or at all if you need money or otherwise desire to liquidate your shares. As a result, investors could lose all or part of their
investment.
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You may have difficulty selling our shares because they are deemed “penny stocks.”

Since our common stock is not listed on a national securities exchange, if the trading price of our common stock remains below $5.00 per share,
trading in our common stock will be subject to the requirements of certain rules promulgated under the Exchange Act, which require additional disclosure by
broker-dealers in connection with any trades involving a stock defined as a penny stock (generally, any non-national securities exchange equity security that
has a market price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions). Such rules require the delivery, prior to any penny stock transaction, of a
disclosure schedule explaining the penny stock market and the risks associated therewith and impose various sales practice requirements on broker-dealers
who sell penny stocks to persons other than established customers and accredited investors (generally defined as an investor with a net worth in excess of
$1,000,000 or annual income exceeding $200,000 individually or $300,000 together with a spouse). For these types of transactions, the broker-dealer must
make a special suitability determination for the purchaser and have received the purchaser’s written consent to the transaction prior to the sale. The broker-
dealer also must disclose the commissions payable to the broker-dealer, current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock and, if the broker-dealer is the
sole market-maker, the broker-dealer must disclose this fact and the broker-dealer’s presumed control over the market. Such information must be provided to
the customer orally or in writing before or with the written confirmation of trade sent to the customer. Monthly statements must be sent disclosing recent price
information for the penny stock held in the account and information on the limited market in penny stocks. The additional burdens imposed upon broker-
dealers by such requirements could discourage broker-dealers from effecting transactions in our common stock, which could severely limit the market
liquidity of the common stock and the ability of holders of the common stock to sell their shares.

Our existing directors, executive officers and principal stockholders hold a substantial amount of our common stock and may be able to prevent other
stockholders from influencing significant corporate decisions.

As of March 27, 2012, our officers, directors and two largest stockholders beneficially owned approximately 22.2% of our outstanding common
stock. These stockholders, if they act together, may be able to direct the outcome of matters presented to our stockholders, including the election of our
directors and other corporate actions such as:

our merger with or into another company;
a sale of substantially all of our assets; and

amendments to our articles of incorporation.

The decisions of these stockholders may conflict with our interests or those of our other stockholders.
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Our securities are quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board, which may limit the liquidity and price of our securities more than if our securities were quoted or
listed on or a national securities exchange.

Our securities are currently quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board. Quotation of our securities on the OTC Bulletin Board may limit the liquidity and
price of our securities more than if our securities were quoted or listed on a national securities exchange. Some investors may perceive our securities to be less
attractive because they are traded in the over-the-counter market. In addition, as an OTC Bulletin Board listed company, we do not attract the extensive
analyst coverage that accompanies companies listed on a national securities exchange. Further, institutional and other investors may have investment
guidelines that restrict or prohibit investing in securities traded in the over-the-counter market. These factors may have an adverse impact on the trading and
price of our securities.

The conversion price and exercise price adjustment provisions of our outstanding convertible notes could result in substantial additional dilution for
future stock issuances, which will result in additional dilution to our existing stockholders.

The common stock purchase warrants (the “Note Warrants) that we issued in July 2011 (as recently amended) now provide that, in addition to
adjustments for issuances below the exercise price then in effect and customary adjustments in the event of a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend,
recapitalization, reorganization or similar transaction involving this company’s common stock, if at any time we consummate one or more equity financings
(each, a “Qualified Offering”), or if we issue securities to any consultants, officers, directors, employees or third parties (“Other Parties”), for a price per share
that is below the closing sale price of our stock on the date of issuance, the “Exercise Price” of the Note Warrants shall be adjusted to the lesser of (i) $1.25
and (ii) 75% of the purchase price per share of common stock payable by the investors in such Qualified Offering or by such Other Parties. In addition, until
July 27, 2013, issuances, or deemed issuances of shares (other than issuances in a Qualified Offering) at a purchase price less than the exercise price of the
Note Warrants then in effect (currently, the exercise price is $1.25), the exercise price will be reduced to the purchase price in such subsequent offering. In
case any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase shares of common stock or convertible securities are sold with shares of common stock in one
integrated transaction, the purchase price per share deemed to have been paid for the common stock shall equal the amount paid per share of common stock in
the Qualified Offering minus the value of such right, option, warrant (which value is determined using the Black-Scholes model). Upon each such adjustment
of the exercise price of the Note Warrants, the number of shares issuable under each Note Warrant shall be proportionally increased. As a result, if we issue
any securities in the future that trigger the foregoing adjustment provisions, the number of shares of common stock that can be purchased under the Note
Warrants will increase, and the price at which those shares can be purchased will decrease.

In February 2012, we sold 250,000 shares of our common stock and a five-year warrant to purchase 250,000 shares to a single accredited investor for
$250,000. On the date of the foregoing sale, the closing sale price of our stock was above $1.00 per share and, therefore, such sale would have triggered the
foregoing conversion and exercise price adjustments and would have significantly reduced the conversion price of the Notes and the exercise price of the
accompanying warrants. However, the holders of the Notes waived the conversion and exercise price adjustments with respect to the $250,000 sale of
common stock and warrants. No assurance can be given that the holders of the Notes will waive any future sale that triggers the conversion and exercise price
adjustment provisions.

Certain of the outstanding warrants that we issued in 2010 and 2011 contain re-set provisions that state that, if the conversion price or exercise price
of our convertible securities, options or warrants is lowered to a price below the exercise price of the 2010 and 2011 warrants, then the exercise price of the
2010 and 2011 warrants will be reduced to the new, lower price of the other convertible securities, options or warrants. Accordingly, in the event that the
Exercise Price of the Note Warrants is reduced to a price below the current exercise price of the 2010 and 2011 warrants ($1.25), then the exercise price of
those warrants will also be reduced (and the number of shares that can be purchased under those warrants will increase).
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Any such adjustment to the exercise price of the Note Warrants or the 2010 and 2011 warrants will result in further dilution to our existing
stockholders.

The market price of our stock may be adversely affected by market volatility.
The market price of our common stock is likely to be volatile and could fluctuate widely in response to many factors, including:
announcements of the results of clinical trials by us or our competitors;
developments with respect to patents or proprietary rights;
announcements of technological innovations by us or our competitors;
announcements of new products or new contracts by us or our competitors;
actual or anticipated variations in our operating results due to the level of development expenses and other factors;
changes in financial estimates by securities analysts and whether our earnings meet or exceed such estimates;
conditions and trends in the pharmaceutical and other industries;
new accounting standards;
general economic, political and market conditions and other factors; and
the occurrence of any of the risks described in this report.
You may experience future dilution as a result of future equity offerings or other equity issuances.

We will have to raise substantial amounts of additional capital in the future. To raise additional capital, we may in the future offer additional shares
of our common stock or other securities convertible into or exchangeable for our common stock. We cannot assure you that we will be able to sell shares or
other securities in any other offering at a price per share that is equal to or greater than the price per share paid by investors in this offering. The price per
share at which we sell additional shares of our common stock or other securities convertible into or exchangeable for our common stock in future transactions
may be higher or lower than the price per share in this offering.

Our outstanding options and warrants and the availability for resale of the underlying shares may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

As of March 27, 2012, there were outstanding stock options to purchase approximately 9.3 million shares of our common stock at a weighted-
average exercise price of $1.085 per share and outstanding warrants to purchase approximately 9.9 million shares of common stock at a weighted-average
exercise price of $1.22 per share. Our outstanding options and warrants could adversely affect our ability to obtain future financing or engage in certain
mergers or other transactions, since the holders of options and warrants can be expected to exercise them at a time when we may be able to obtain additional
capital through a new offering of securities on terms more favorable to us than the terms of outstanding options and warrants. For the life of the options and

warrants, the holders have the opportunity to profit from a rise in the market price of our common stock without assuming the risk of ownership. The issuance
of shares upon the exercise of outstanding options and warrants will also dilute the ownership interests of our existing stockholders.
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We have registered with the SEC a total of 10,608,000 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion our 7% senior convertible notes and upon
exercise of our five year warrants for resale by the holders of those securities. The availability of these shares for public resale, as well as actual resales of
these shares, could adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

Our internal controls over financial reporting may not be effective, which could have a significant and adverse effect on our business.

As a public reporting company, we are subject to various regulatory requirements, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which requires our
management to assess and report on our internal controls over financial reporting. For the year ended December 31, 2011, our management identified two
material weaknesses in our internal controls over financial reporting and, therefore, determined that our internal controls over financial reporting were not
adequate. While we are attempting to remedy the internal control weaknesses, we may not be able to adequate correct the issues, and other future material
weaknesses in our internal controls may arise. Material weaknesses in our internal controls could result in a loss of investor confidence in our financial
reports, have an adverse effect on our stock price, and subject us to sanctions or investigation by regulatory authorities.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
Item 2. Properties

We currently maintain a small corporate office 11500 Olympic Blvd., Suite 400, Los Angeles, California 90064 on a month to month basis. Our
monthly rent at our corporate office is $100. We also rent an office in Westwood, California, from Theorem Group, LLC (“Theorem”), and have the right to
use certain other office facilities pursuant to an unwritten month-to-month facilities sharing arrangement with Theorem Group, LLC. Under this facilities
sharing arrangement, we rent an office (which is principally used by our Chief Financial Officer), and have the right to use Theorem’s other office facilities
and services (including the conference rooms, telecommunications equipment, parking and office staff) for $5,000 per month. As of February 29, 2012,
Theorem beneficially owned approximately 9.9% of our common stock. Since we intend to outsource substantially all of our clinical development work to
contract research and manufacturing providers, we do not have any laboratory facilities. We do not own or lease any other real property.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are not a party to any material legal proceedings. While we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings from time to time
arising in the ordinary course of business, we are unaware of any material pending legal proceedings to which we are a party or of which any of our property
is the subject.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not Applicable.

25




PART II
Item 5. Market for Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Our common stock has been quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “GNBP” since October 15, 2010.

Trading in our common stock has been extremely limited and sporadic since we were first listed on the OTC Bulletin Board. As a result, the high and
low bid information for our common stock may not be meaningful given the level of trading in our stock and our lack of business operations, revenues and
assets. The following table shows the high and low prices of our common shares on the OTC Bulletin Board. Since trading in our stock did not commence
until the second quarter of our 2010 fiscal year, the table below reflects quotations commencing then. The following quotations reflect inter-dealer prices,
without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

YEAR PERIOD HIGH LOW
Fiscal Year 2011 Fourth Quarter $ 137 $ 0.80
Third Quarter 1.50 0.82
Second Quarter 1.59 1.11
First Quarter 1.26 1.10
Fiscal Year 2010 Fourth Quarter $ 1.25 $ 0.96
Third Quarter 1.24 1.02
Second Quarter 1.25 0.25

Stockholders

As of March 27, 2012, there were approximately 559 holders of our Common Stock, including non-objecting beneficial holders. The transfer agent
for our common stock is Corporate Stock Transfer, Inc., located at 3200 Cherry Creek South Drive, Suite 430, Denver, Colorado 80209.

Dividends

We have not paid any dividends on our common stock to date and do not anticipate that we will pay dividends in the foreseeable future. Any
payment of cash dividends on our common stock in the future will be dependent upon the amount of funds legally available, our earnings, if any, our financial
condition, our anticipated capital requirements and other factors that the Board of Directors may think are relevant. However, we currently intend for the
foreseeable future to follow a policy of retaining all of our earnings, if any, to finance the development and expansion of our business and, therefore, do not
expect to pay any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

See Part III, Item 11 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation
plans.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Returns
The following line graph presentation compares the cumulative total stockholder returns of the Company with The NASDAQ Composite Index and
the NASDAQ Pharmaceutical Index (the “Peer Index”) for the twenty two month period from March 15, 2010, the first day our stock was traded on the OTC

Bulletin Board, to December 31, 2011. The graph and table assume that $100 was invested in each of the Company’s common stock, the NASDAQ
Composite Index and the Peer Index on March 15, 2010, and that all dividends were reinvested. This data was furnished by Zacks Investment Research.

26




Companson of 22 Monh Cumulates Total Retum
Assumes Indial Immstment of 3100
Dacomber 2011

40.00 //
20.00

a.dao

¥ X
_,‘:;‘» L

) ]
& & ) &
o o g & of e

| —— G Enesis Bopharma, Inc

== HASDAQ Compasils

——NASDAD Pharmacauticals |

2010 2011
3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31 3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31
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NASDAQ Pharmaceuticals 104.65 89.69 98.73 104.13 109.36 116.48 100.87 111.58

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not issue any unregistered securities during the three-month period ended December 31, 2011 that were not previously reported in a Current
Report on Form 8-K, other than certain stock option grants made pursuant to our 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

Repurchase of Shares

We did not repurchase any shares during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
General

The following selected financial data are derived from our audited financial statements. Our financial statements for 2011 and 2010 have been
audited by Weinberg & Company, P.A., our independent registered public accounting firm. These historical results do not necessarily indicate future results.

When you read this data, it is important that you also read our financial statements and related notes, as well as the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Risk Factors” sections of this Annual Report.
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Statement of Operations Data:
Total revenues
Operating expenses

Net loss applicable to common stockholders
Basic and diluted (loss) per share applicable to common stock

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities
Long Term Obligations

Total assets

Total stockholders’ equity (deficiency)

Factors Affecting Comparability

Period

Sept. 17
(Inception)
Years Ended December 31, to Dec. 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ — 3 —  $ — % — 3 —
$ 21218318 $ 815,413 $ 15,772 $ 57,140 $ 1,576
$ (25694,100) $ (1,607,988) $ (15,772) $ (57,140) $ (1,576)
$ (0.34) $ 0.02) $ — % (0.01) $ —
December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ 510,217 % 1,292,469 $ 8,257 $ 2905 $ 60,208
$ — 3 —  $ — $ — 3 —
$ 568,430 $ 1,460,952 $ 9,632 $ 5612 $ 64,247
$ (12,780,918) $ 638,085 $ (13,488) $ 2,284 $ 59,424

We were incorporated on September 17, 2007. Until March 2010 our goal was to engage in the development of an internet-based, intelligent online
system for business owners and freight forwarders in the shipping/freight industry and export/import industry. However, we never engaged in the online
freight business, and were an inactive company until March 15, 2010.

On March 15, 2010, we acquired certain assets and technologies related to the development and commercialization of biotechnology drugs, and then
commenced developing anti-cancer drugs based primarily on the anti-CD55+ antibody (the “Anti-CD55+ Antibody Program”). In order to develop our newly
acquired technologies, on September 1, 2010, we entered into a research agreement with the University of Nottingham, England, through which we
commenced preclinical research on a prospective therapeutic antibody (anti-CD55+ antibody) directed against expression of complement decay-accelerating
factor CD55 protein which in humans is encoded by the CD55 gene. However, test results we received in mid-2011 from the University of Nottingham failed
to meet the pre-clinical development endpoints. Accordingly, based on these test results and on a further evaluation of the anti-CD55+ technology, in mid-
2011 our Board of Directors determined that it was in the best interests of this company to end our development efforts for the Anti-CD55+ Antibody
Program and to pursue the development of a new product candidate we refer to as Contego™. Accordingly, since mid-2011 we have not been pursuing the
Anti-CD55+ Antibody Program and have, instead, been engaged in our current line of business. Our new operations have required us to engage additional

officers, employees, advisors and consultants, and to enter into significant licensing, manufacturing and research and development agreements.
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As indicted above, since our formation, we have been involved in three separate lines of business with three different business models. As a result,
the financial results of each of these three different activities during each of the past three years should not be compared, and the financial results of the prior
operations are not indicative of our current activities and our proposed business.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our results of operations and financial condition should be read in conjunction with our financial
statements and the notes to those financial statements that are included elsewhere in this report. Our discussion includes forward-looking statements based
upon current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties, such as our plans, objectives, expectations and intentions. Actual results and the timing of
events could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of a number of factors, including those set forth under the
“Business” section and elsewhere in this report. We use words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” ” continuing,” “ongoing,” “expect,”

» « » « » « » «

plan,” “project,
“believe,” “intend,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” and similar expressions to identify forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements
included in this report are based on information available to us on the date hereof and, except as required by law, we assume no obligation to update any such
forward-looking statements.

Background on the Company and Recent Change in Strategic Focus

Until March 2010, we were known as Freight Management Corp., and we were engaged in the development of an internet-based, intelligent online
system for business owners, freight forwarders in the shipping/freight industry and export/import industry. We were unable to develop this business and never
generated any revenues from those proposed operations and thus determined to discontinue such business.

On March 15, 2010, we entered the biopharmaceutical business when we acquired the rights, title and interest to certain assets, including certain
patents, patent applications, materials, and know-how, related to the development and commercialization of biotechnology drugs, and then commenced
developing anti-cancer drugs based primarily on anti-CD55+ antibodies (the “Anti-CD55+ Antibody Program”). We engaged the University of Nottingham to
conduct our research and development. Although we initially believed that the proposed anti-CD55+ therapies that we were attempting to develop had
significant commercial potential, test results received in mid-2011 from the studies performed for us by the University of Nottingham failed to meet the pre-
clinical development endpoints. Accordingly, in 2011 we decided to (i) end our development efforts for the anti-CD55+ technology, and (ii) pursue the
development of a new ready-to-infuse adoptive cell therapy product candidate we refer to as Contego™.

On October 5, 2011 we licensed the rights to the adoptive cell therapy from the National Institute of Health and to a manufacturing process for
Contego (initially for Stage IV metastatic melanoma) that we intend to develop to enable us to make the adoptive cell therapy available to a larger number of
patients. The license agreement required us to pay the NIH approximately $723,000 of upfront licensing fees and expense reimbursements in 2011. In
addition, we will have to pay royalties of six percent (6%) of net sales (subject to certain annual minimum royalty payments), a percentage of revenues from
sublicensing arrangements, and lump sum benchmark royalty payments on the achievement of certain clinical and regulatory milestones for each of the
various indications. We also have to make certain benchmark payments to the NIH based on the development and commercial release of licensed products
using the technology underlying the License Agreement. If we achieve all benchmarks for metastatic melanoma, up to and including the product’s first
commercial sale in the United States, the total amount of such benchmark payments will be $6,050,000 for the melanoma indication. The benchmark
payments for the other three indications, if all benchmarks are achieved, will be $6,050,000 for ovarian cancer, $12,100,000 for breast cancer, and
$12,100,000 for colorectal cancer. Accordingly, if we achieve all benchmarks for all four licensed indications, the aggregate amount of benchmark royalty
payments that we will have to make to NIH will be $36,300,000.
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In order to develop the adoptive cell immunotherapies we licensed from the NTH, effective August 5, 2011, we signed a Cooperative Research and
Development Agreement (“CRADA”) with the NIH and the National Cancer Institute (“NCI”). Under the terms of the CRADA, we are required to provide
$1,000,000 per year (in quarterly installments of $250,000) to support research activities thereunder and to pay for supplies and travel expenses. We paid the
two $250,000 quarterly installments due in September 2011 and December 2011. However, as of the date of this Annual Report, we have not paid the
$250,000 installment that was due on March 5, 2011. Accordingly, unless we cure this default, the NIH will have the right to terminate the CRADA.

In December 2011, we entered into a five-year Manufacturing Services Agreement with Lonza Walkersville, Inc. under which Lonza agreed to
manufacture, package, ship and handle quality assurance and quality control of our Contego autologous cell therapy products. All of Lonza Walkersville’s
services will be provided under separate statements of work that we have agreed to enter into, from time to time, with Lonza Walkersville, Inc. In 2011, we
paid Lonza a total of $500,000.

Results of Operations
Revenues

We have not generated any revenues since the inception of this company. As a development stage company that is currently engaged in the
development of therapeutics to fight cancer, we have not yet generated any revenues from our biopharmaceutical business. We currently do not anticipate that
we will generate any revenues during 2012 from the sale or licensing of any products. In addition, we have also not generated any revenues from our prior
business plans.
Costs and expenses
Operating Expenses. Operating expenses include compensation-related costs for our employees dedicated to general and administrative activities, legal fees,

audit and tax fees, consultants and professional services, and general corporate expenses. Our operating expenses were $19,303,000, $644,000 and $16,000
for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 (“fiscal 2011”), 2010 (“fiscal 2010”) and 2009 (“fiscal 2009”), respectively.

Our operating expenses in fiscal 2011 increased by $18,659,000 compared to fiscal 2010 primarily as a result of the non-cash compensation we paid
in fiscal 2011 to our two new executive officers, our consultants, and our advisors. In fiscal 2010 we only had two part-time officers, and our operations were
limited. In fiscal 2011, we changed our business as we started our new Contego line of business. In connection with the change in our business focus, we
hired two full-time executives and retained a consulting firm to assist us with the acquisition and development of our intellectual properties. In addition, we
expanded the size of our Board of Directors and established a scientific advisory board. Most of the compensation paid to our officers, directors, consultants
and advisors was paid in securities rather than in cash. The total amount of such non-cash compensation we paid in fiscal 2011 was $14,608,000. In addition,
in fiscal 2011 our legal, accounting and other professional fees increased substantially due to the filing of a registration statement, the various financings that
we were involved in, and the regulatory related activities of our new business.

Our operating expenses increased to $644,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 from only $15,772 for the year ended December 31,
2009 due to the expenses we incurred following our change to become a biopharmaceutical company in March 2010. Prior to March 15, 2010, we were an
inactive company with few expenses. Following the acquisition of our biopharmaceutical assets on March 15, 2010, we increased our business activities,
which resulted in an increase in general and administrative expenses. These additional expenses include rent, professional fees, salaries, and the fees and
expenses related to the company’s SEC filings.
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Research and Development. Research and development costs were $1,755,561 for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $171,000 in fiscal
2010. No research and development costs were incurred in fiscal 2009. Research and development expenses in fiscal 2011 include $500,000 that we paid
under the CRADA with the National Institutes of Health, $723,000 we paid to the NTH under the License Agreement, and $500,000 we paid on the process
development and scale-up consulting agreement with Lonza Walkersville relating to Contego.

Impairment of intangible asset. In 2011 decided to, and in February 2012 did terminate the Anti-CD55+ Antibody Program and the CRT License Agreement.
In connection with the termination of the CRT License Agreement, we will have to return to the CRT all rights to the anti-CD55+ related patents and patent
applications that were licensed and transferred to us by the CRT. The $160,000 impairment expense represents that value we wrote off related to the return of
these intangible assets to the CRT.

Other income (expense)

outstanding warrants of $1,596,035. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we recorded a loss as a result of an increase in the fair market value of those
warrants of $229,227. The increase is the result of the increase in the amount of warrants issued during fiscal 2011, primarily in connection with the issuance
of the Notes. Because no warrants were outstanding in fiscal 2009, no such costs or gains were recognized in the 2009 period.

Interest expense. Interest expense represents the amount of interest that accrued on the Notes during fiscal 2011. Since the Notes were not outstanding in
either fiscal 2010 or 2009, no interest expense as incurred during those years.

Amortization of discount on convertible notes. During the year ended December 31, 2011 we recorded a valuation discount of $5,000,000 upon issuance of
our $5,000,000 7% Tranche A Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes and Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes (collectively, the “Notes”) and the
associated warrants to purchase 4,000,000 shares of our common stock. The total discount to the Notes of $5,000,000 was amortized over the term of the

Notes, from July 26, 2011 through the original maturity date of November 30, 2011 and recorded as an expense. There were no such costs in 2010 or 20009.

Private placement costs. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we incurred total private placement costs of $920,000, which included $535,000 of non-
cash costs relating to a derivative liability upon issuance of our convertible notes and warrants and closing costs of $385,000. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, we incurred total private placement costs of $563,000 of non-cash costs relating to a derivative liability upon issuance of shares of the
Company’s common stock.

Net Loss

We had a net loss of $25,694,100, $1,607,988 and $15,772 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Our net loss for fiscal 2011
mainly increased compared to fiscal 2010 due to the significant non-cash charges that included noncash compensation charges of $12,044,393 related to the
issuance of equity instruments, amortization of debt discount on our convertible notes of $5,000,000, and the recording of a derivative liability of $2,563,647
upon the issuance of our warrants. These costs were offset by a change in the fair value of our derivative liability of $1,596,035. In addition, we experienced
an overall increase in general and administrative expenses.

Similarly, our net loss for fiscal 2010 increased compared to fiscal 2009 because we had no revenues, and our general and administrative expenses increased

substantially. As we are a development stage company and do not expect to earn significant revenues during the next fiscal year, we expect to continue to
incur net losses, and we expect those losses to increase during the 2012 fiscal year as we incur significant expenses to develop our products.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2011, we had a working capital deficiency of $4,887,000 (excluding our derivative liability of $7,938,000), compared to
working capital of $1,271,000 (excluding our derivative liability of $792,000) as of December 31, 2010 and a working capital deficiency of $15,000 as of
December 31, 2009. In addition, as described below, the Notes will mature and become due and payable on March 30, 2012. Accordingly, as of March 30,
2012, the Notes will be in default if we do not repay them in full by that date. We currently do not have sufficient funds to repay the Notes on the foregoing
maturity date. Although the holders of the Notes have, to date, granted us several extensions on the maturity date, no assurance can be given that we will
obtain further extensions, or that we will be able to repay the Notes by such other subsequent maturity dates.

All of our capital resources during fiscal 2011 were derived through the sale of convertible debt and equity securities. No assurance can be given that
we will have access to the capital markets in future, or that financing will be available to us on acceptable terms to satisfy the future and on-going cash
requirements that we need to implement our business strategies. Our inability to access the capital markets or obtain acceptable financing could have a
material adverse affect on our results of operations and financial condition, and could severely threaten our ability to continue as a going concern.

As shown in the accompanying financial statements, we incurred a net loss of $25,694,100 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Our current
liabilities exceeded current assets by $4,887,474 (excluding our derivative liability of $7,937,793) at December 31, 2011 and negative cash flow from
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2011 was $6,189,199. These factors, and our ability to meet our obligations from current operations, and
the need to raise additional capital to accomplish our objectives, create a substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.

We currently do not have sufficient capital on hand to fund our anticipated on-going operating expenses, and we do not have any bank credit lines or
other sources of capital. Accordingly, we will have to obtain additional debt or equity funding in the near future in order to continue our operations. We have
not yet identified, and cannot be sure that we will be able to obtain any additional funding from either of these sources, or that the terms under which we may
be able to obtain such funding will be beneficial to us or our stockholders.

Net cash used in operating activities was $6,189,199 for the year ended December 31, 2011 (based on a net loss of $25,694,100) compared to net
cash used in operating activities of $620,805 for the year ended December 31, 2010 (based on a net loss of $1,607,988). The increase in net cash used in
operating activities was primarily due to significantly increased operating activities in fiscal 2011 compared to the prior years and, as a result, to the larger net
loss in fiscal 2011. Cash used in operating activities included the payment of $723,000 to the NIH in early December 2011, the $500,000 payment to Lonza in
December 2011, $500,000 paid pursuant to the CRADA, and $2,103,719 that was paid to our officers and consultants in cash. Net cash used in operating
activities was, however, significantly less than the our net loss of $25,694,000 due to non-cash expenses, including $8,010,000 of common stock paid to an
officer for services, $498,000 of other services paid in shares of common stock, $1,793,904 fair value of vested stock options and warrants, $2,563,647 fair
value of derivative liability recorded upon issuance of warrants, $498,452 of common stock issued for services and $1,742,037 fair value of common stock
transferred to officer and director and $5,000,000 of amortization of discounts on our convertible notes.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $5,488,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $1,905,017 for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily due to $5,000,000 of Notes (excluding related costs) that we issued in July 2011.

Since our inception, we have funded our operations primarily through private sales of equity securities and convertible loans. In 2010, we raised a

total of $1,945,000 from the sale of our common stock (including warrants). In 2011, we raised a total of $895,000 from the sale of 850,000 shares of our
common stock and five-year Class “C” Warrants to purchase 850,000 shares that exercisable at $1.25 per share.
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In a private placement that closed on July 27, 2011, we raised gross proceeds of $5,000,000 from the sale of the Notes and five year warrants (the
“Note Warrants”) to purchase 4,000,000 shares of our common stock. The Notes were initially convertible at $1.25 per share, and the Warrants are initially
exercisable at $1.25 per share, subject in both cases to anti-dilution adjustments for issuances below the exercise price then in effect and customary
adjustments in the event of stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, reorganization or similar transaction involving this company’s
common stock. One-half of the gross proceeds of the $5,000,000 Note Offering (i.e. $2,500,000) was released to us at the closing, and the balance of the
proceeds were held in escrow. The second tranche of $2,500,000 was released on October 5, 2011 following the signing of worldwide nonexclusive license
with the NTH for the rights to certain intellectual property owned by the United States Government related to tumor infiltrating lymphocytes and T-cell
technologies.

The Notes initially were to mature November 30, 2011. The Notes have been amended seven prior times to extend the maturity date of the Notes,
most recently to March 30, 2012 (effective March 13, 2012, we entered into Amendment No. 7 to Tranche A Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes and
Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes with the holders of the Notes to further extend the maturity date to March 30, 2012).

As of the date of this Annual Report, we do not have sufficient funds to repay the Notes on their current maturity date. As a result, unless the Note
holders elect to convert their Notes or unless we either obtain at least $5,000,000 of new funding by the maturity date of the Notes or obtain an extension of
the maturity date of the Notes, we will be in default on our payment obligations under the Notes. Upon a default, the interest rate on the Notes increases to
15% per annum, and the holders of the Notes have the right to demand that we immediately redeem all of the Notes at a price that is the greater than the
outstanding balance of the Notes. In general, the investors may demand that the Notes be redeemed at a price equal to the greater of (i) 125% of the
outstanding balance of the Notes, or (ii) an amount based on 135% of the greatest closing sale price of our common stock during the period beginning on the
date of default until the redemption demand. A default will also permit the holders of the Notes to pursue collection actions against us.

Furthermore, even if the holders of the Notes were to agree to extend the maturity date of the Notes, based on our internally prepared budget, our
current financial resources are only sufficient to fund our operations through the middle of April 2012. Our current cash position will be further reduced by
the next $250,000 quarterly installment that we are required to pay under the CRADA, which was due March 5, 2012 and, therefore, is currently overdue and
in default. In addition, we received an invoice in the amount of $684,183 from the NIH, which amount is due by May 26, 2012. Finally, in order to develop
our Contego™ program in accordance with our business plan and our agreement with the NIH we believe that we would have to spend in excess of $35
million during the next twelve months. Accordingly, in order to operate our business, we have to obtain substantial additional proceeds in the near future.

Our goal is to attempt to obtain the additional funds that we need through the sale of additional debt or equity securities. The sale of additional equity
or convertible debt securities will result in additional dilution to our shareholders. The issuance of additional debt will result in increased expenses and could
subject us to covenants that may have the effect of restricting our operations. We may also in the future seek to obtain funding through strategic alliances with
larger pharmaceutical or biomedical companies. However, we currently have no agreements in place with any funding sources or with any strategic partners
that could provide us with some or all of the funding that we need. Accordingly, we can provide no assurance that additional financing will be available to us
in an amount or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Even if we are able to obtain additional funding from either financings or alliances, no assurance can be
given that the terms of such funding will be beneficial to us or our stockholders. If we are unsuccessful or only partly successful in our efforts to secure
additional financing, we may find it necessary to suspend or terminate some or all of our product development and other activities.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these
financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. When making these estimates and assumptions, we consider our historical experience, our knowledge of
economic and market factors and various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ under different
estimates and assumptions.

The accounting estimates and assumptions discussed in this section are those that we consider to be the most critical to an understanding of our
financial statements because they inherently involve significant judgments and uncertainties.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Intangible Assets

We record intangible assets in accordance with guidance of the FASB. Intangible assets consist mostly of intellectual property rights that were
acquired from an affiliated entity and recorded at their historical cost and are being amortized over a three years life. We review intangible assets subject to
amortization at least annually to determine if any adverse conditions exist or a change in circumstances has occurred that would indicate impairment or a
change in the remaining useful life. If the carrying value of the assets is determined not to be recoverable, we record an impairment loss equal to the excess of
the carrying value over the fair value of the assets. Our estimate of fair value is based on the best information available. If the estimate of an intangible asset’s
remaining useful life is changed, we amortize the remaining carrying value of the intangible asset prospectively over the revised remaining useful life.

Stock-Based Compensation

We periodically issue stock options and warrants to employees and non-employees in non-capital raising transactions for services and for financing
costs. We adopted FASB guidance effective January 1, 2006, and are using the modified prospective method in which compensation cost is recognized
beginning with the effective date (a) for all share-based payments granted after the effective date and (b) for all awards granted to employees prior to the
effective date that remain unvested on the effective date. We account for stock option and warrant grants issued and vesting to non-employees in accordance
with accounting guidance whereby the fair value of the stock compensation is based on the measurement date as determined at either (a) the date at which a
performance commitment is reached, or (b) the date at which the necessary performance to earn the equity instrument is complete.
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We estimate the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which was developed for use in estimating the fair value
of options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. This model requires the input of subjective assumptions, including the expected price
volatility of the underlying stock and the expected life of stock options. Projected data related to the expected volatility of stock options is based on the
historical volatility of the trading prices of the Company’s common stock and the expected life of stock options is based upon the average term and vesting
schedules of the options. Changes in these subjective assumptions can materially affect the fair value of the estimate, and therefore the existing valuation
models do not provide a precise measure of the fair value of our employee stock options.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We evaluate all of our financial instruments to determine if such instruments are derivatives or contain features that qualify as embedded derivatives.
For stock-based derivative financial instruments, we use both a weighted average Black-Scholes-Merton and Binomial option pricing models to value the
derivative instruments at inception and on subsequent valuation dates. The classification of derivative instruments, including whether such instruments should
be recorded as liabilities or as equity, is evaluated at the end of each reporting period. Derivative instrument liabilities are classified in the balance sheet as
current or non-current based on whether or not net-cash settlement of the derivative instrument could be required within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance which amends the disclosure of fair value measurements to help achieve common fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements in generally accepted accounting principles for the United States and in international financial reporting
standards. This new guidance does not require additional fair value measurements and is not intended to establish valuation standards or affect valuation
practices outside of financial reporting. The updated standard is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. We will adopt
the new standard as required. The updated guidance will affect our fair value disclosures, but will not affect our results of operations, financial condition or
liquidity.

In June 2011, the FASB issued new accounting guidance regarding the presentation of comprehensive income. The new guidance eliminates the
option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, and instead requires consecutive
presentation of the statement of net income and other comprehensive income either in a continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but
consecutive statements. This new guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. We will adopt the new standard as
required. The new guidance will have no affect on our results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

In September 2011, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance related to testing goodwill for impairment. This updated guidance simplifies the
assessment of goodwill for impairment by allowing companies to consider qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value
of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount before performing the two step impairment review process. The new guidance also amends the examples of
events or circumstances that would be considered in a goodwill impairment evaluation. The amended guidance is effective for annual and interim goodwill
impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the affects adoption
of this new standard may have on our goodwill impairment testing.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the AICPA, and the SEC did not or are not
believed by management to have a material impact on our present or future consolidated financial statements.
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Contractual Obligations

We acquire assets still in development and enter into research and development arrangements with third parties that often require milestone and
royalty payments to the third party contingent upon the occurrence of certain future events linked to the success of the asset in development. Milestone
payments may be required, contingent upon the successful achievement of an important point in the development life-cycle of the pharmaceutical product
(e.g., approval of the product for marketing by a regulatory agency). If required by the arrangement, we may have to make royalty payments based upon a
percentage of the sales of the pharmaceutical product in the event that regulatory approval for marketing is obtained. Because of the contingent nature of these
milestone payments, they are not included in the table of contractual obligations.

These arrangements may be material individually, and in the event that milestones for multiple products covered by these arrangements were reached
in the same period, the aggregate charge to expense could be material to the results of operations in any one period. In addition, these arrangements often give
us the discretion to unilaterally terminate development of the product, which would allow us to avoid making the contingent payments.

Our current contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011 that will require future cash payments are as follows:

Payments due by period

Less than 1 More than
Contractual obligations Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years

Long-Term Debt Obligations
Capital Lease Obligations
NIH obligations $ 135,000 $ 20,000 $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 35,000
CRADA obligations $ 4,500,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,500,000 -
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on the
Registrant's Balance Sheet under GAAP

Total $ 4,635,000 $ 1,020,000 $ 2,040,000 $ 1,540,000 $ 35,000

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2011, we had no obligations that would require disclosure as off-balance sheet arrangements.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our exposure to market risk is limited primarily to interest income sensitivity, which is affected by changes in the general level of U.S. interest rates,
particularly because a significant portion of our investments are in short-term debt securities issued by the U.S. government and institutional money market
funds. The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal; we do not enter into any instruments for trading purposes. Due to the nature
of our marketable securities, we believe that we are not exposed to any material market risk. We do not have any derivative financial instruments or foreign
currency instruments. If interest rates had varied by 10% in the year ended December 31, 2011, it would not have had a material effect on our results of
operations or cash flows for that period.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Financial Statements are referred to in Item 15, listed in the Index to Financial Statements and filed and included elsewhere herein as a part of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K, and are incorporated herein by this reference.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified by the rules promulgated by the SEC, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required financial disclosure.

In connection with the preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we completed an evaluation, as of December 31, 2011, under the
supervision of and with participation from this company’s management, including the current Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers, as to the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon this evaluation, management concluded that as of
December 31, 2011, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective because of the material weaknesses described below under Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting .

In light of the material weaknesses described below, additional analyses and other procedures were performed to ensure that our consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K were prepared in accordance with GAAP. These measures included expanded year-end
closing procedures, the dedication of significant internal resources and external consultant to scrutinize account analyses and reconciliations and
management’s own internal reviews and efforts to remediate the material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting described below. As a result
of these measures, management concluded that this company’s consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K present fairly,
in all material respects, this company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows as of the dates, and for the periods, presented in conformity
with GAAP.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company, as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance
with GAAP.

This company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized use, acquisition, or disposition of this company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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In making its assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, management used
the criteria established in the Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSO”). A “material weakness” is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Based on
the criteria established by COSO, management identified the following material weaknesses in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011:

a. The Company did not maintain an effective financial reporting organizational structure to support the complexity and operating activities of the
Company resulting in a weakness in internal controls related to the financial statement closing process. Furthermore, the Company does not
have a formalized and consistent finance and accounting policies and procedures; and

b. The Company did not have effective corporate governance and financial controls to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the accounting for,
and the disclosure of, issuance of the Company’s securities such as shares of common stock, options and warrants.

The foregoing material weaknesses contributed to a delay in the filing of the Company’s quarterly and annual financial statements to the SEC. In
addition, these material weaknesses could result in misstatements of the Company’s consolidated financial statement accounts and disclosures which would
result in a material misstatement of future annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

As aresult of these material weaknesses, management concluded that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework , issued by the COSO.

The Company’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 has been audited by
Weinberg and Company, P.A., an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Management's Further Remediation Initiatives and Interim Measures

In response to the identified material weaknesses, the Company has dedicated significant resources to improve its control environment. Management
believes that actions taken beginning in December 2011, along with other improvements not yet fully implemented, will address the material weaknesses in
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting noted above. Company management plans to continue to review and make changes to the overall
design of its control environment, including the roles and responsibilities within the organization and reporting structure, as well as policies and procedures to
improve the overall internal control over financial reporting. In particular, the Company has implemented, or plans to implement, the measures described
below to remediate the material weaknesses described above.

The Company is implementing and/or enhancing a number of key accounting and finance-related policies and procedures, including with respect to our
financial closing process, disbursements, treasury and stockholders’ equity. Furthermore, the Company is improving its existing internal control policies
and implementing procedures to ensure that all required account balances are appropriately reconciled in a timely manner and that journal entries are
properly prepared and approved.

The Company will enhance and properly define the equity award policy and responsibilities of the Company’s Board of Directors and the Compensation
Committee in its oversight of the Company’s practices and administration of equity awards.

The Company retained and intends to continue to retain the services of outside consultants with relevant accounting experience, skills and knowledge,
working under the supervision and direction of the Company’s management, to supplement the Company’s existing accounting personnel in anticipation
of increased business activity in fiscal 2012.

The Company expects that these improvements and procedures will be substantially implemented by December 31, 2012 and intends to continue to
monitor the effectiveness of these actions and will make changes that management determines appropriate.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls.

Internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness of
internal control to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our last fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is

reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The following table sets forth information concerning our current executive officers and directors:

Name Age Position
Anthony Cataldo 61 Chief Executive Officer and Director
Michael Handelman 52 Secretary, Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer, and Director
Martin Schroeder 58 Director
Dr. L. Stephen Coles 60 Director
Dr. William Andrews 59 Director
Merrill A. McPeak 76 Director
David Voyticky 42 Director
Hans Bishop 47 Executive Chairman of the Board

Recent Management Changes

On February 7, 2011, all of the former executive officers and directors of this company resigned, and Anthony Cataldo was appointed as our new
President and Chief Executive Officer, and Michael Handelman was appointed as our new Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary. In addition, Mr.
Cataldo and Mr. Handelman were appointed as our sole directors. The goals of Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman were to (i) evaluate our existing technologies
and operations and, if appropriate, to reposition or restructure our business plan and operations, (ii) recruit new members to our Board of Directors, (iii) hire
additional executive officers who have the scientific, regulatory and managerial experience and skills to develop our planned product candidates, (iv)
establish a scientific advisory Board to assist us in evaluating and developing its technologies and product candidates, and (v) to raise sufficient capital to
fund our planned level of operations (including seeking to employ additional personnel) and all of our anticipated development work on our product
candidates.

In accordance with our plans, from February 2011 through July 2011, we recruited Dr. L. Stephen Coles, Dr. William Andrews, General (Ret.)
Merrill McPeak, David Voyticky and Martin Schroeder to join our Board of Directors. On January 9, 2012, Hans Bishop joined the Board of Directors as our
eighth director. In addition, we have established a new nine-person scientific advisory board, and have added Gray Davis, the former Governor of the State of
California, to our Corporate Advisory Board.

By June 2011, our Board had decided to pursue the acquisition additional anti-cancer assets and to pursue the development additional anti-cancer

products. In order to obtain the expertise to acquire and develop the new assets and technologies, in June 2011 we appointed Mr. Martin Schroeder to the
Board of Directors. Mr. Schroeder was instrumental in obtaining both the CRADA and the NIH License.
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Business Experience and Directorships

Anthony J. Cataldo. Mr. Cataldo has served as our Chief Executive Officer and a Director since February 7, 2011. Mr. Cataldo also was the
Chairman of our Board of Directors from February 2011 to March 2012. Mr. Cataldo served as Chief Executive Officer of Oxis International, Inc., a public
company engaged in the research, development and commercialization of nutraceutical products, from March 2009 until June 2011, and as the Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Oxis from March 2009 until October 2011. Mr. Cataldo also served as President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Matech Corp., a public company engaged in the research and development of metal fatigue detection, measurement, and monitoring
technologies, from September 2009 through December 2010. Matech Corp. filed a voluntary petition for liquidation under Chapter 7 in the U.S. Bankruptcy
Court for the Central District of California in November 2010. In May 2009, Mr. Cataldo filed a voluntary petition for a Chapter 7 bankruptcy in the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court for the Central District of California, which was ultimately dismissed in October 2009. From September 2006 through April 2008, Mr.
Cataldo served as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of VoIP, Inc., a public company and a provider of Voice over Internet Protocol
communications. Since September 2008, Mr. Cataldo has also served as the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Green St. Energy, Inc., a
public company formerly known as M-Wave, Inc., that intends to enter the alternative energy business. Mr. Cataldo no longer serves as a director of any other
public company.

From October 2003 through August 2006, Mr. Cataldo served as non-executive Chairman of the Board of Directors of BrandPartners Group, Inc., a
public company provider of integrated products and services dedicated to providing financial services and traditional retail clients with turn-key
environmental solutions. Mr. Cataldo also served from February 2005 through July 2006 as non-executive Co-Chairman of the Board of MultiCell
Technologies, Inc., a public company supplier of functional, non-tumorigenic immortalized human hepatocytes. Mr. Cataldo also served as Executive
Chairman of Calypte Biomedical Corporation, a publicly traded biotechnology company involved in the development and sale of urine based HIV-1 screening
tests, from May 2002 through November 2004. Prior to that, Mr. Cataldo served as the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Miracle Entertainment, Inc., a Canadian film production company, from May 1999 through May 2002, and as President and Chairman of the Board of
Senetek, PLC, a publicly traded biotechnology company involved in age-related therapies, from August 1995 to December 1998.

Mr. Cataldo brings to the Board extensive prior experience as both an operating executive and board member in a variety of start- up and early stage
companies.

Michael Handelman. Mr. Handelman has served as our Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President and as a director since February 2011. Mr.
Handelman served as the Chief Financial Officer and as a financial management consultant of Oxis International, Inc., a public company engaged in the
research, development and commercialization of nutraceutical products, from August 2009 until October 2011. From November 2004 to July 2009, Mr.
Handelman served as Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of TechnoConcepts, Inc., formerly a public company engaged in designing,
developing, manufacturing and marketing wireless communications semiconductors, or microchips. Prior thereto, Mr. Handelman served from October 2002
to October 2004 as Chief Financial Officer of Interglobal Waste Management, Inc., a manufacturing company, and from July 1996 to July 1999 as Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Janex International, Inc., a children’s toy manufacturer. Mr. Handelman was also the Chief Financial Officer from
1993 to 1996 of the Los Angeles Kings, a National Hockey League franchise. Mr. Handelman is a certified public accountant and holds a degree in
accounting from the City University of New York.

Mr. Handelman brings to the Board his extensive experience in financial and accounting matters for public reporting companies, as well as his
perspective as a member of our management team.

Martin Schroeder. Mr. Schroeder has been a member of our Board of Directors since June 2011. Since August 1998, Mr. Schroeder has served as
Executive Vice President and Managing Director of the Emmes Group, Inc., a strategic business consulting firm, and is responsible for its West Coast and
International practices. Prior to that, Mr. Schroeder held a number of industry management and executive positions, including Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of AMS, Inc., a venture capital backed genomics company. He was also a Visiting Scientist at the U.S. Department of Agriculture. From
August 2007 through April 2008, Mr. Schroeder was a director of Global Clean Energy Holdings, Inc., a public company engaged in the development of non-
food based bio-fuel feedstock. Mr. Schroeder holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Biochemistry from the University of California Los Angeles, and a
Master of Science degree in Biochemistry from California State University, Long Beach.
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Mr. Schroeder brings to the Board extensive prior experience in strategic business consulting.

Stephen Coles, M.D., Ph.D. Dr. Coles has served as a member of our Board of Directors since February 2011. Dr. Coles has been a lecturer in the
Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry at the University of California, Los Angeles (“UCLA”) since November 2004. Dr. Coles served as Co-Principal
Investigator in the Department of Surgery at the UCLA School of Medicine from January 2002 to November 2004, and has served as Vice President for
Medical Education and Internet Content at The Kronos Group, an integrated health care delivery network, from January 2000 to December 2002. Dr. Coles is
also the co-founder of the Image Data Corporation, and has served as its Senior Vice President and Chief Scientist. Dr. Coles has also served as Chief
Technical Officer of Rcommunity.com, Inc. from January 1999 to January 2002. Dr. Coles is also the co-founder of the Image Data Corporation, and has
served as its Senior Vice President and Chief Scientist. Dr. Coles has also served as Chief Technical Officer of Rcommunity.com, Inc. January 1999 to
January 2000. He is the author or co-author of over 156 scientific papers and holds two patents. Dr. Coles received his B.S. in Electrical Engineering from
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, his Master’s in Mathematics from the Carnegie Institute of Technology, and his Ph.D. in Systems and Communication
Sciences from Carnegie-Mellon University. After attending Stanford University Medical School, Dr. Coles completed his Clinical Internship in OB/GYN at
the Jackson Memorial Hospital of the University of Miami School of Medicine.

Dr. Coles brings to the Board his medical expertise and technical expertise in product development for early stage biopharmaceutical companies.

William Andrews, Ph.D. Dr. Andrews has served as a member of our Board of Directors since March 2011. He currently serves as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of Sierra Sciences, LLC, a privately held biotechnology company that focuses exclusively on finding drugs that will transiently
induce the expression of endogenous telomerase in human cells. Dr. Andrews has been the President and Chief Executive Officer of Sierra Sciences since
January 2009, and was its Vice President of Research from January 1998 through December 2008. Prior to founding Sierra Sciences in 1998, Dr. Andrews
was the Director of Technology Development at EOS Biotechnology, Inc., the Director of Molecular Biology at Geron Corporation, a biopharmaceutical
corporation that focuses on cancer treatments and therapies, the Director of Molecular Biology at Codon Corporation/Berlex Biosciences for three years, and
a Senior Scientist at Armos Corporation. While serving as Director of Molecular Biology at Geron Corporation, Dr. Andrews was one of the principal
discoverers of both the RNA and protein components of human telomerase and was awarded second place as “National Inventor of the Year” in 1997 for this
work. He is presently a named inventor on 43 US issued telomerase patents. Dr. Andrews earned his Ph.D. in Molecular and Population Genetics at the
University of Georgia in 1981.

Dr. Andrews contributes to the Board his background in development of novel pharmaceutical therapy candidates, as well as his experience and
operational leadership with early stage biopharmaceutical companies.

Merrill A. McPeak. General (Ret.) McPeak has served as a member of our Board of Directors since July 2011. General McPeak currently is the
President of McPeak and Associates, a consulting firm that he founded in 1995. He has previously served as a director of several public companies, including
Tektronix, Inc., Trans World Airlines, Inc., and ECC International Corp., where he was for many years the chairman of the Board. Since 2010, General
McPeak has served as a director of Miller Energy Resources, Inc., a public company engaged in oil and gas exploration, production and related property
management, and since August 2008 as a director of Point Blank Solutions, Inc., a former public company that on April 14, 2010 filed a voluntary petition for
relief under Chapter 11 of the United States Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware. General McPeak also currently serves as a
director of many other companies, including DGT Holdings, Corp., a public company that develops, manufactures and markets medical and dental imaging
systems and power conversion subsystems and components worldwide, since April 2005, and Derycz Scientific Inc. since November 2010, Mosquito
Consolidated Gold Holdings since October 2011, and Chairman of the company since November, 2011. He is a director of Coast Plating, Inc., a privately held
turnkey provider of metal processing and metal finishing services, since January 2009, and, since December 2003 , he has been the Chairman of the Board of
Ethicspoint, Inc., a provider of risk management and compliance software-as-a-service, including secure, anonymous reporting of ethical violations in the
workplace.
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From 1990 until his retirement from active military service in late-1994, General McPeak was Chief of Staff of the United States Air Force. As a
member of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, General McPeak was a military advisor to the Secretary of Defense and the President of the United States. General
McPeak received a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics from San Diego State College and a Master of Science degree in international relations from
George Washington University, and is a member of the Council on Foreign Relations.

General McPeak brings to the Board his wide variety of experiences as directors of public companies in a broad array of industries.

David Voyticky. Mr. Voyticky has been a member of our Board of Directors since July 2011. Since April 2010, he has been a director of Miller
Energy Resources, Inc., a public company that engages in the exploration, production, and drilling of oil and natural gas resources in the United States, and
has been its President since June 9, 2011. Mr. Voyticky has over 15 years of domestic and international mergers and acquisitions, restructuring and financing
experience. Since August 2005, Mr. Voyticky has been an independent consultant to companies in the middle market on value maximization strategies,
providing strategic and capital markets advice to high growth businesses. He served as a vice president with Goldman, Sachs & Co. from June 2000 to May
2002, a vice president of Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Capital, Inc. in Los Angeles from July 2002 to January 2005, and an associate with J.P. Morgan in
London and New York from June 1996 to May 2000. During that period, he advised public and private domestic and multinational corporations and financial
sponsors on mergers, acquisitions, divestitures, joint ventures, cross-border transactions, anti-raid (defense) preparation and capital-raising activities. Mr.
Voyticky designed and was a founding partner of Red Mountain Capital Partners. From December 2005 through June 2006, Mr. Voyticky was a partner in the
$300 million re-launch of Chapman Capital L.L.C., an activist hedge fund focused on publicly traded middle market companies. He served on the Board of
Directors of Best Energy Services, Inc. from January 2010 to February 2011. In July 2011, Mr. Voyticky was named to the board of a biotechnology company,
Genesis Biopharma, Inc., and in January 2012, he was named to the board of Mosquito Consolidated Gold Mines, Ltd. Mr. Voyticky received a J.D. and a
M.B.A degree from the University of Michigan and a Masters in International Policy and Economics from the Ford School at the University of Michigan. He
also received a Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy from Pomona College.

Mr. Voyticky contributes to the Board knowledge and expertise with respect to financing and capital raising for public companies through his
experience with investment banking institutions.

Hans Bishop. Mr. Bishop was appointed as a member of our Board of Directors in January 2012, and was designated as or Executive Chairman of
the Board in March 2012. Since February, 2011, Mr. Bishop has been, and current still is the Chief Operating Officer of PhotoThera, Inc., a private medical
device company. He was the Chief Operating Officer of Dendreon Corporation from January 2009 until September 2010. Prior to that, from December 2006
to January 2009, he was with Bayer Healthcare AG, where he served as President of the Specialty Medicine business unit which included responsibility for a
portfolio of Oncology, Neurology, Ophthalmology and Haematology products. Before joining Bayer Healthcare, Mr. Bishop was Senior Vice President,
Global Commercial Operations for Chiron Corporation from 2004 to 2006, and Vice President of Global Operations for Sonera Zed Ltd. from 2000 until
2004. From 1995 to 2000, Mr. Bishop was with SmithKline Beecham where he held a number of positions, including Director of European Business
Development and Strategy and Managing Director of SB UK Pharmaceuticals. From 1988 until he joined SmithKline Beecham in 1995, Mr. Bishop was with
Glaxo Wellcome PLC, where he served as in various commercial roles. Mr. Bishop earned his B.S. in Chemistry from Brunel University in London.
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Mr. Bishop brings to the Board his expertise and experience as an operational leader in biopharmaceutical companies.
There are no family relationships among any of our directors, executive officers or key employees.
Scientific & Medical Advisory Board

To assist with its development and commercialization of Contego we have recruited a team of scientists and clinicians experienced with the
development and use of adoptive cell therapy using autologous tumor infiltrating lymphocytes for the treatment of cancer. All members of our Scientific &
Medical Advisory Board receive monthly compensation of $5,000 except for Dr. Laszlo Radvanyi who receives monthly compensation in the sum of $2,395.
Our Scientific & Medical Advisory Board advises regarding our scientific and regulatory strategy. The members include:

Cassian Yee, M.D., Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center. Dr. Yee is on the cutting edge adoptive immunotherapy which is one of many
unexpected breakthroughs to emerge from the bone-marrow transplantation treatments pioneered by the Hutchinson Center’s Dr. E. Donnall Thomas to cure
leukemia and other blood cancers. His research was among the first to show that adoptive T-cell therapy holds great promise for treating melanoma, a
potentially fatal form of skin cancer. In recognition of the potential for his research, Dr. Yee received a prestigious five-year grant from the Burroughs
Wellcome Fund in 2006 to refine the therapy and improve its tumor-fighting ability.

Mario Sznol, M.D., Yale University School of Medicine. Dr. Mario Sznol, associate professor of medicine and vice-chief of the Section of Medical
Oncology, is helping to direct the academic and clinical research activities of the section. Dr. Sznol, formerly with the National Cancer Institute, has an
international reputation in cancer drug development. He currently cares for patients with melanoma and serves as head of the melanoma disease unit at Yale
University’s School of Medicine. In addition, he chairs the Yale Cancer Center’s Protocol Review Committee and is a member of the Yale Human
Investigations Committee. Dr. Sznol’s expertise and experience is in cancer immunotherapy, drug development for cancer, and treatment of patients with
melanoma and renal cell carcinoma. Dr. Sznol is working to establish a strong multidisciplinary clinical research program for patients with melanoma by
expanding the opportunities for clinical trials at the Yale Cancer Center, particularly those focusing on immunotherapy and novel agents. Dr. Sznol received
his BA from Rice University, and his MD from the Baylor College of Medicine.

James Mulé, Ph.D. H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center & Research Institute. Dr. James J. Mulé is Executive Vice President, Associate Center Director for
Translational Research, the Michael McGillicuddy Endowed Chair for Melanoma Research and Treatment, and the Director of Cell-Based Therapies at H.
Lee Moffitt Cancer Center & Research Institute. Dr. Mulé received his formal training at the Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center in Seattle, and at the
Surgery Branch, Division of Cancer Treatment, National Cancer Institute, NIH, Bethesda, Md. He then moved to Palo Alto, Calif., where he was involved in
the birth of two startup companies while an adjunct faculty member in the Department of Surgery, Stanford University. He moved to Ann Arbor, Mich., as the
Director of the Tumor Immunology and Immunotherapy Clinical Research Program at the University of Michigan Comprehensive Cancer Center. He was
also the Maude T. Lane Endowed Professor of Surgery, Department of Surgery and held the appointment of Professor in the Department of Internal
Medicine. Dr. Mulé is recognized for his translational research studies in cancer immunotherapy. His research group is involved in vaccine strategies and
other approaches to stimulate the immune system to recognize and destroy tumors. Dr. Mulé serves on the advisory boards of seven NCI-designated Cancer
Centers and was a member of the NCI’s Board of Scientific and Clinical Counselors. Dr. Mulé has published nearly 200 articles in the areas of cancer
vaccines and cancer immunotherapy. He was honored as the 25th Meadow Brook Lecturer in Medicine and Surgery.
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Melanoma Research Center at Moffitt Cancer Center, with the charge of bringing together basic scientists, clinical and translational investigators, and
prevention/epidemiology scientists in an integrated overall melanoma research effort that rapidly brings new drugs and ideas to the clinic. Dr. Weber has an
extensive history of conducting translational and investigator-initiated clinical trials. Dr. Weber is also a professor of Oncology and Medicine at the
University of South Florida College of Medicine. Dr. Weber received his doctorate in Molecular Cell Biology from Rockefeller University. He received his
medical degree from New York University Medical Center. He then completed an internship and residency in Medicine at the University of California. Dr.
Weber also trained at the National Cancer Institute. Dr. Weber’s clinical interests are in the immunotherapy of melanoma and other malignancies, with a
focus on vaccines, adoptive immunotherapy, dendritic cell therapy and the use of immune modulating antibodies.

Patrick Hwu, M.D., MD Anderson Cancer Center. Dr. Patrick Hwu is considered one of the leading tumor immunologists in the country, and a
primary force in the development of novel vaccine and adoptive T-cell therapies. His laboratory and clinical work have led to insights and advances in the
understanding of the interactions between tumors and the immune system, and the development of cellular immunotherapies. He was recruited to be the first
Chairman of the Department of Melanoma Medical Oncology in 2003. Since that time, he has also served as Associate Director of the Center for Cancer
Immunology Research and is the current Chair of MD Anderson Cancer Center’s Promotion and Tenure Committee. Dr. Hwu’s laboratory is significantly
funded by the National Cancer Institutes. Dr. Hwu is the principal investigator on three RO1 translational immunotherapy grants, as well as a PO1
comprehensive program grant that is investigating the use of plasmacytoid dendritic cells to enhance immunotherapy. Dr. Hwu is a member of the editorial
board of the Journal of Immunotherapy. He has published more than 90 peer-reviewed articles. Dr. Hwu is the recipient of numerous awards such as the
George and Barbara Bush Endowment for Innovative Cancer Research in 2004, the Robert R. Herring Professorship in Clinical Research 2004 — 2007, the
Moshe Talpaz Endowed Chair in Immunology from 2007 to present, and the Division of Cancer Medicine Hematology/Oncology Fellowship Program
Mentor of the Year for FY2009.

Laszlo Radvanyi, Ph.D., MD Anderson Cancer Center. Dr. Radvanyi received his Ph.D. in clinical biochemistry from the University of Toronto.
His main research area is tumor immunology studying immune regulation in cancer and identifying new antigens as targets for anti-cancer T-cell therapy.
After completing postdoctoral work in Toronto and at Harvard University in Boston at the Joslin Diabetes Center, Dr. Radvanyi joined the Immunology
Group at Sanofi-Pasteur in Toronto in 2000 as a Senior Scientist. There he helped lead an antigen discovery program that led to the discovery of a group of
over-expressed breast cancer-specific genes that are candidates for antigen-specific vaccines against breast cancer. In 2005, Dr. Radvanyi joined the faculty of
the University of Texas, M.D. Anderson Cancer Center as an Associate Professor. He has a dual appointment in the Departments of Breast Medical Oncology
and Melanoma Medical Oncology.

David DiGiusto, Ph.D., City of Hope. Dr. DiGiusto cell biologist and immunologist. Dr. David DiGiusto has over 17 years of experience developing
cellular therapeutics for cancer and infectious disease. At the City of Hope, Dr. DiGiusto has been instrumental in the development of the GMP
manufacturing and Cellular Therapeutics programs. He serves in a number of positions with City of Hope, including: Director, Analytical Cytometry Core
Facility; Professor, Cancer Immunotherapeutics & Tumor Immunology; Director, Cellular Process Development & Manufacturing; Associate Member,
Cancer Immunotherapeutics Program, Comprehensive Cancer Center; and, Associate Member, Hematologic Malignancies Program, Comprehensive Cancer
Center.

Daniel Powell, Ph.D., University of Pennsylvania School of Medicine. Dr. Powell holds the following positions at the University of Pennsylvania
School of Medicine: Research Assistant Professor of Pathology and Laboratory Medicine; Assistant Director, Clinical Cell and Vaccine Production Facility;
Director, Cellular Therapy Tissue Facility; and, Department: Pathology and Laboratory Medicine. Dr. Powell’s research centers on the generation and
isolation of high avidity, tumor-reactive T cells for use in adoptive immunotherapy. In this effort, he explores the use of novel cancer vaccines, the isolation
of naturally occurring tumor-reactive T cells from tumor explants and the de novo generation of tumor reactive T cells through novel, sophisticated genetic
engineering methods.
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Key Consultants

We have also assembled a team of consultants who are currently compensated on a per diem basis for their time and who will provide services in cell
therapy bioprocess engineering, clinical trial design, biostatistics, regulatory affairs and FDA compliance relating to Contego. The consultants we have
assembled include:

Karin M. Abitorabi is an independent cell therapy bioprocess engineering consultant. Ms. Abitorabi most recently was Senior Scientist, Process
Development at Progenitor Cell Therapy, a client services-based cell therapy support company. She previously served as an R&D scientist with work ranging
from discovery research to developing therapeutic drugs at a number of top-tier pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies including Schering Plough,
Cell Genesys and Systemix (a Novartis company). She holds an M.S. degree (Diplom) in immunology and microbiology from the University of Konstanz in
Germany, and completed her thesis work in the Department of Molecular and Cell Biology at University of California Berkeley. Ms. Abitorabi is the author
of and has contributed to numerous scientific and clinical publications and presentations.

Brent A. Blumenstein, Ph.D. is a Principal Consultant at Trial Architecture (TriArc) Consulting, where he advises clients on trial architecture and
biostatistics. Dr. Blumenstein has held academic positions at Emory University, Duke University, University of Washington, Fred Hutchinson Cancer
Research Center and Northwestern University, having taught numerous courses on clinical trial methodology and management, biostatistics and multivariate
analysis, among others. Dr. Blumenstein also has advised numerous companies including Dendreon Corporation on the design of clinical trials. He has been
a consultant to leading cancer centers including, St. Jude Children's Research Hospital, City of Hope, Massachusetts General Hospital, Pittsburg Cancer
Institute and The Cleveland Clinic. He is widely published and has participated as a reviewer for many prestigious journals. He holds a B.S. in Chemistry
and a Ph.D. in Biometry from Emory University.

Lizabeth J. Cardwell, MT (ASCP), MBA, RAC is an independent Quality Assurance and Regulatory Compliance consultant. Ms. Cardwell has more than
25 years of experience in cGMP, GCP and QSR management at biotechnology and cell therapy companies. Prior to forming her consultancy, she served as
Director, Quality Assurance and Regulatory Affairs at Xcyte Therapies. Previous to that, Ms. Cardwell was Vice President-Quality Assurance and Quality
Control at Dendreon Corporation. She also was Manager, Biologicals Manufacturing for Genetic Systems/Sanofi. Ms. Cardwell holds an MBA in Quality
Management from City University in Seattle, a Medical Technology Certification from Children’s Orthopedic Hospital in Seattle and a Bachelor of Science in
Biology from Pacific Lutheran University in Tacoma, Wash.

Carol A. Gloff, Ph.D. is Principal of Carol A. Gloff & Associates, a regulatory affairs, quality assurance and compliance, product development and
pharmacokinetics consultancy. Previously, Dr. Gloff was Vice President, Chief Regulatory Officer at InmunoGen. She also was with Alkermes, rising from
Director of Product Development to Vice President, Regulatory Affairs. At Triton Biosciences she held roles from Research Scientist to Manager,
Toxicology/Pharmacokinetics. Since 1997 Dr. Gloff has been an Adjunct Professor at Boston University, where she teaches graduate and undergraduate
courses in regulatory affairs and compliance issues, covering drugs, biologics and devices. Dr. Gloff holds a B.S. in Pharmacy from SUNY at Buffalo and
she received a Ph.D. in Pharmaceutical Chemistry from the University of California San Francisco.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board has a standing Audit Committee, Nominating and Governance Committee, and Compensation Committee.
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Audit Committee. The Audit Committee operates pursuant to a written charter. Among other things, the Audit Committee is responsible for:

reviewing and discussing with management and the independent registered public accounting firm our annual and quarterly financial
statements and related disclosures;

hiring our independent registered public accounting firm, and coordinating the oversight and review of the adequacy of our internal
control over financial reporting with both management and the independent registered public accounting firm; and

reviewing and, if appropriate, approving all transactions between our company or its subsidiaries and any related party.

As of March 30, 2012, David Voyticky, Dr. William Andrews and Dr. L. Stephen Coles constitute the members of the Audit Committee. Each of
Messrs. David Voyticky, Dr. William Andrews and Dr. L. Stephen Coles is a non-employee director and independent as defined under The Nasdaq Stock
Market’s listing standards. Mr. Voyticky has significant knowledge of financial matters, and our Board has designated him as the “audit committee financial
expert” of the Audit Committee.

Nominating and Governance Committee. The Nominating and Governance Committee recommends candidates to be nominated for election as
directors at our annual meeting, consistent with criteria approved by the Board; develops and regularly reviews corporate governance principles and related
policies for approval by the Board; oversees the organization of the Board to discharge the Board’s duties and responsibilities properly and efficiently; and
sees that proper attention is given and effective responses are made to stockholder concerns regarding corporate governance. The Nominating and
Governance Committee also reviews proposed changes to our Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and Board committee charters and conducts ongoing
reviews of potential related party transactions and conflicts of interest, including the review and approval of all “related person transactions” as defined under
SEC rules.

Usually, nominees for election to our Board are proposed by our existing directors. In identifying and evaluating individuals qualified to become
Board members, our current directors will consider such factors as they deem appropriate to assist in developing a board of directors and committees thereof
that are diverse in nature and comprised of experienced and seasoned advisors. Our Board of Directors has not adopted a formal policy with regard to the
consideration of diversity when evaluating candidates for election to the Board. However, our Board believes that membership should reflect diversity in its
broadest sense, but should not be chosen nor excluded based on race, color, gender, national origin or sexual orientation. In this context, the Board does
consider a candidate’s experience, education, industry knowledge and, history with the Company, and differences of viewpoint when evaluating his or her
qualifications for election the Board. In evaluating such candidates, the Board seeks to achieve a balance of knowledge, experience and capability in its
composition. In connection with this evaluation, the Board determines whether to interview the prospective nominee, and if warranted, one or more directors
interview prospective nominees in person or by telephone.

As of the date of this Annual Report, Merrill McPeak, Dr. William Andrews and Dr. L. Stephen Coles, constitute the members of the Nominating
and Governance Committee.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee is responsible for the compensation of our executives and directors; reviews and approves
any reports required by the SEC for inclusion in the annual report and proxy statement; provides general oversight of our compensation structure; and, if
deemed necessary, retains and approves the terms of the retention of compensation consultants and other compensation experts. Other specific duties and
responsibilities of the Compensation Committee include reviewing senior management selection and overseeing succession planning; reviewing and
approving objectives relevant to executive officer compensation, evaluating performance and determining the compensation of executive officers in
accordance with those objectives; approving severance arrangements and other applicable agreements for executive officers; overseeing our equity-based and
incentive compensation; and establishing compensation policies and practices for service on the Board and its committees and for the Chairman of the Board.
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As of the date of this Annual Report, Martin Schroder, David Voyticky and Merrill McPeak constitute the members of the Compensation Committee.
Code of Ethics

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct to provide guidance to our executive officers regarding standards for
conduct of our business, which code has been delivered to all of our executive officers. The full text of our Code of Ethics is available on our website at
www.genesis-biopharma.com. A copy of our Code of Ethics will be furnished without charge to any person upon written request. Requests should be sent to
Secretary, Genesis Biopharma, Inc., 11500 Olympic Boulevard, Suite 400, Los Angeles, California 90064.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our executive officers and directors, and persons who own more than 10% of a
registered class of the company’s equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish the company with copies of all Section

16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on its review of the copies of reporting forms received by the Company, the Company believes that the following Forms 3 and 4 for
transactions effected in 2011 were filed later than is required under Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934:

Messrs. Cataldo, Handelman, Schroeder, Coles, Andrews and McPeak were each late in filing Form 3’s in connection with their
appointment as officers and/or directors as applicable;

Mr. Voyticky has failed to file a Form 3; and
Messrs. Schroeder, McPeak, McKilligan and Brooke were each late in filing one Form 4.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Overview of Executive Compensation Program
The Compensation Committee of our board of directors has responsibility for establishing, implementing and monitoring our executive
compensation program philosophy and practices. The Compensation Committee seeks to ensure that the total compensation paid to our named executive
officers is fair, reasonable and competitive. Throughout this Annual Report, the individuals included in the Summary Compensation Table on page 51 are
referred to as the “named executive officers.”
The Compensation Committee was established in August, 2011. However, the general economic terms of the compensation paid to our two named
executive officers during 2011 were determined by our Board of Directors prior to the establishment of the Compensation Committee. The two employment

agreements that we entered into with our two named executive officers were formally executed on October 3, 2011 (but were effective as of May 1, 2011).
The Compensation Committee reviewed and approved the October 3, 2011 employment agreements and the terms previously established by the Board.
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Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the following discussion and analysis of our executive compensation
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on such review and discussion with management, the Compensation Committee recommended to the
Board of Directors that the following disclosure be included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

The Compensation Committee:

Martin Schroeder
Merrill McPeak
David Voyticky

Overview During 2009, 2010 and 2011, our organization structure has changed as a result of the change in our business activities, our goals and the
amount of financing available. As a result, the compensation packages established for our two executive officers in 2011 are based on the evolving
development of this company and its new focus of operations.

On February 7, 2011, all of the former executive officers and directors of this company resigned, and Anthony Cataldo was appointed as our new
President and Chief Executive Officer, and Michael Handelman was appointed as our new Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary. We have no other
executive officers.

This compensation discussion describes the material elements of compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid to each of our two executive officers
who served as named executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2011. This compensation discussion focuses on the information contained in the
following tables and related footnotes and narrative for primarily the last completed fiscal year.

Compensation Program Objectives and Philosophy Our Compensation Committee currently oversees the design and administration of our executive
compensation program. It reviews and approves all elements of compensation for each of our named executive officers taking into consideration
recommendations from our principal executive officer (for compensation other than his own), as well as competitive market guidance. We define our
competitive markets for executive talent to be early and mid-stage biotechnology companies. During 2011, the Compensation Committee engaged
TechnoQuest Executive Search, Inc., a third party market compensation specialist firm, to benchmark our executive compensation. However, the
compensation packages described below for Mr. Cataldo and Mr. Handelman were established early in 2011 before TechnoQuest Executive was engaged, and
before the Compensation Committee was established. Accordingly, the packages were not based on any compensation surveys.

The principal elements of our executive compensation program for Mr. Cataldo and Mr. Handelman consist of base salary, long-term equity
incentives in the form of stock options and shares of common stock, standard benefits, and post-termination severance upon termination and/or a change in
control. The fundamental terms of the compensation packages of Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman were established before we commenced our new business
of developing and commercializing adoptive cell therapy using autologous tumor infiltrating lymphocytes for the treatment of certain cancers, and before we
raised $6,100,000 of debt and equity funding in 2011. Because we had limited financial resources at the time that we established the principal terms of the
compensation packages for Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman, the Company’s philosophy in establishing the compensation packages was to position the cash
portion of the compensation packages to be at a level that, we believe, is below average level of companies competitive within our industry, but is
commensurate with our current size and resources. However, the non-cash portion of the compensation paid to our two executives was increased to raise the
overall level of compensation of the officers. Accordingly, the Company implemented a compensation plan which provides base salary and potential earnings
through stock option grants and, in the case of Mr. Cataldo, stock awards.
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Because of the size of our company, the small number of executive officers in our company, and our company’s financial priorities, the
Compensation Committee has not implemented any pension benefits, deferred compensation plans, or other similar plans for our named executive officers.

Base Salaries During 2011, the base salary of our named executives was reflective of the availability of resources and level of operations. As a result,
effective May 1, 2011, Mr. Cataldo began receiving an annual salary of $300,000 and Mr. Handelman began to receive an annual salary of $120,000.
However, during 2011, both Mr. Cataldo and Mr. Handelman agreed to defer a portion of their salaries because of this company’s limited financial resources.
The deferred compensation was paid in full by the end of 2011 as the company obtained additional funding.

As we develop our new business and raise additional funding to support the higher level of operations, our Compensation Committee may review
base salaries and other compensation of our executive officers. In making its determination, the Compensation Committee may, in the future, consider the
time commitment necessary and the roles our executives will play in implementing our plans. Accordingly, depending on our future level of activities and our

future funding efforts, our Compensation Committee may increase the compensation levels of our two executive officers beyond their current levels.

As we increase our level of operations and hire additional executive officers, our Compensation Committee expects to establish future base salaries
based on the position and responsibility of such officers. The Compensation Committee expects to consider:

the negotiated terms of each executive’s employment agreement, if any;
an internal review of the executive’s compensation, both individually and relative to other named executive officers;
each executive’s individual performance; and
base salaries paid by comparable companies.
Long-term Equity Incentives We provide the opportunity for our two named executive officers to earn a long-term equity incentive award. Long-
term incentive awards provide employees with the incentive to stay with us for longer periods of time, which in turn, provides us with greater stability. Equity

awards also are less costly to us in the short term than cash compensation. We intend to periodically review long-term equity incentives for our named
executive officers and other executives.

As indicated above, the Compensation Committee also aims to encourage the Company’s executive officers to focus on long-term company
performance by allocating to them stock options. In 2011, we granted Mr. Cataldo and Mr. Handelman stock options to purchase up to 2,500,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock, exercisable at $1.25 a share, under the Company’s 2011 Equity Compensation Plan. The options will vest in equal monthly
installments over a five year period commencing on the effective date and will be exercisable for a maximum of ten years. The foregoing grants of stock
options were granted with exercise prices greater than the fair market value of our common stock on the grant dates.

On May 27, 2011, as additional compensation for Mr. Cataldo’s services, we issued 3,000,000 shares of our common stock to Mr. Cataldo. The

closing price of our common stock on May 27, 2011 was $1.34 per share. The foregoing grant of shares was not part of Mr. Cataldo’s employment agreement
of made pursuant to any agreement or obligation of the company.
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Employment Agreements and Severance Arrangements We have entered into written employment agreements with each of our two named executive
officers (see, “Employment Agreements,” below). The main purpose of these agreements is to protect the company from business risks such as competition
for the executives’ service, loss of confidentiality or trade secrets, and solicitation of our other employees, and to define our right to terminate the employment
relationship. The employment agreements also protect the executive from termination without “cause” (as defined) and termination upon a “change in
control” (as defined). Generally, both employment agreements provide for termination and severance benefits that we believe are consistent with industry
practices for similarly situated executives. The Compensation Committee believes that the termination and severance benefits help the company retain the
named executive officers by providing them with a competitive employment arrangement and protection against termination without “cause” or upon a
change in control.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

There are no “interlocks,” as defined by the SEC, with respect to any member of the Compensation Committee. Messrs. Schroeder, McPeak and
Voyticky served as members of the Compensation Committee during 2011.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table presents summary information concerning all compensation paid or accrued by us for services rendered in all capacities during
2011 by Anthony Cataldo and Michael Handelman (our named executive officers), who served as our principal executive and financial officers from February
7, 2011 until December 31, 2011, and during 2011 and 2010 by Robert T. Brooke and Richard McKilligan, who served as our principal executive officer and
principle financial officer from March 15, 2010 until February 7, 2011. No executive officers received any compensation during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009.

Summary Compensation Table

All other
Stock Option Compen-
Salary Bonus Awards Awards sation Total

Name and Principal Position  Year ) %) 3) %) (1) ($) %)

Anthony Cataldo 2011 275,000 - 7,912,037(2)(5) $ 2,492,750 $ 10,679,787
President and Chief
Executive Officer(3)

Michael Handelman 2011 110,000 - - $ 2,492,750 $ 2,602,750
Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer(4)

Robert T. Brooke 2011 $ 48,036 = = = $ 48,036
President and Chief 2010 $ 71,250 $ 71,250
Executive Officer(3)

Richard McKilligan 2011 $ 12,648 - - = $ 12,648

Chief Financial Officer and 2010 $ 39,583 $ 39,583

Treasurer(4)

€8 Represents Black-Scholes value of options as determined on the date of grant.
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On May 27, 2011, as additional compensation for Mr. Cataldo’s services, we issued 3,000,000 shares of our common stock to Mr. Cataldo. The
closing price of our common stock on May 27, 2011 was $1.27 per share. The shares were not issued pursuant to any existing stock incentive or
option plan.

On February 7, 2011, Mr. Brooke resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Cataldo was appointed as President and Chief
Executive Officer.

On February 7, 2011, Mr. McKilligan resigned as Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Handelman was appointed as Chief Financial Officer.

Includes the value of 3,501,485 shares ($4,902,037) transferred to Ines Garcia, Mr. Cataldo’s wife, which shares were accounted as additional
compensation to Mr. Cataldo.

2011 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

In 2011, we granted stock options to our named executive officers under our 2011 Equity Incentive Plan as follows:

2011 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

All Other
Option
Awards Exercise or Fair
All Other Stock (# of Base Price of Value of
Awards (# of Securities Option Stock and
Grant Shares of Stock or Underlying Awards Option
Name Date Units) Options) ($ / Share) Awards
Anthony Cataldo
President and Chief
Executive Officer 10/14/2011 - 2,500,000(1) $ 125 $ 2,492,750
Michael Handelman
Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer 10/14/2011 - 2,500,000(2) $ 125 $ 2,492,750
€8 Options were granted under the 2011 Equity Compensation Plan in accordance with the terms of Mr. Cataldo’s employment agreement. Options vest
in equal monthly installments over five (5) years.
2) Options were granted under the 2011 Equity Compensation Plan in accordance with the terms of Mr. Handelman’s employment agreement. Options

vest in equal monthly installments over five (5) years.

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with Anthony J. Cataldo, who serves as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, and Michael

Handelman who serves as our Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President and Secretary.
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The Employment Agreements we entered into with Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman were executed on October 3, 2011, and are effective as of May
1, 2011 for a term of five (5) years from the effective date and, except as described below, are substantially similar in form. Mr. Cataldo is entitled to receive
an annual base salary of $300,000 under his agreement, while Mr. Handelman is entitled to receive the annual base salary of $120,000 under his agreement.
Both Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman will have the right to receive benefits under the Company’s benefit plans, if such plans exist and will have the
opportunity to earn performance bonuses as determined by the Company’s Compensation Committee or any bonus plans then in effect. Additionally, under
the terms of the Employment Agreements, Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman each received stock options to purchase up to 2,500,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock, exercisable at $1.25 a share, under the Company’s 2011 Equity Compensation Plan. The options will vest in equal monthly installments over a
five (5) year period commencing on the effective date, will be exercisable pursuant to the limitations of the 2011 Plan or any successor, and will be
exercisable for a maximum of ten (10) years. The Company has also agreed to grant cost free piggyback registration rights for the shares underlying the
options.

Potential Payment upon Termination or Change in Control

The Employment Agreements of Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman each contain provisions for payment to them in the event we terminate their
employment without “cause” (as defined), or if we terminate their employment upon a change in control of the Company. If the employment of either Messrs.
Cataldo or Handelman with the Company terminates under either of these circumstances, then, in addition to any other benefits described in the Employment
Agreement, they shall receive the following:

i. all compensation and benefits earned through the date of the Employment Agreement;

ii. alump sum payment equivalent to the remaining base salary (as it was in the Employment Agreement prior to the change in control) due from
the date of involuntary termination to the end of the term of the Employment Agreement; and

iii. reimbursement for the cost of medical, life, disability insurance coverage at a level equivalent to that provided by the Company (if provided) for
a period expiring upon the earlier of: (a) one year; or (b) the time Mr. Cataldo or Mr. Handelman begins alternative employment wherein said insurance
coverage is available and offered to them.

In the event that either executive's employment terminates as a result of his death or disability, Mr. Cataldo and Mr. Handelman shall each be entitled
to a pro-rata share of the target bonus (presuming performance meeting, but not exceeding, target performance goals) in addition to all compensation and
benefits earned through the date of termination.

The table below reflects the amount of compensation to each of Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman (our named executive officers) in the event of
termination of such executive’s employment without “cause” or following a change in control. The named executive officers are not entitled to any payments
other than accrued compensation and benefits in the event of their voluntary resignation. The amounts shown in the table below assume that such termination
was effective as of December 31, 2011, and thus includes amounts earned through such time, and are estimates only of the amounts that would be payable to
the executives. The actual amounts to be paid will be determined upon the occurrence of the events indicated.

Termination Payments and Benefits

Termination w/o Change in
Name Benefit Cause($) Control ($) Death ($) Disability ($)
Anthony Cataldo Severance Payment $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000 — —
President and Chief Health Insurance (1) $ 13,384 $ 13,384 — —
Executive Officer
Michael Handelman Severance Payment $ 520,000 $ 520,000 — —
Chief Financial Officer Health Insurance (1) $ 9,264 $ 9,264 — —
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(€)) Represents the cost as of December 31, 2011 for the family health benefit payments provided to Mr. Cataldo and Mr. Handelman for a period of
twelve months.

2011 Equity Incentive Plan

As of October 14, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors, based upon the approval and recommendation of the Compensation Committee,
approved by unanimous written consent the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan”) and form of option agreements for grants under the
2011 Plan (the “Option Agreements”).

Employees, directors, consultants and advisors of the Company are eligible to participate in the 2011 Plan. The 2011 Plan was adopted to encourage
selected employees, directors, consultants and advisors to improve operations, increase profitability, accept or continue employment or association with the
Company through the participation in the growth in value of the common stock of the Company. The 2011 Plan is to be administered by the Board of
Directors or the Company’s Compensation Committee. The Board has delegated the administration of the 2011 Plan to our Compensation Committee that
currently is composed of solely of three non-employee directors.

The 2011 Plan has 18,000,000 shares of common stock reserved for issuance in the form of incentive stock options (available for issuance to
employees, and only upon shareholder approval of the 2011 Plan); non-qualified options; common stock; and grant appreciation rights. No person eligible to
participate in the 2011 Plan shall be granted options or other awards during a twelve (12) month period that exceeds 5,000,000 shares.

Options and SARs. The exercise price of non qualified options and the base value of a stock appreciation right shall not be less than the fair market
value of the common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price of an incentive stock option shall not be less than the fair market value of the stock
covered by the option at the time of grant and in instances where a grantee possesses more than ten (10%) percent of the combined voting power of all classes
of stock of the Company, the exercise price shall not be less than one hundred and ten (110%) percent of the fair market value of the common stock at the
time of grant.

Options granted under the 2011 Plan may be exercisable in cumulative increments, or "vest," as determined by the Board. Our Board has the power
to accelerate the time as of which an option may vest or be exercised.

Subject to certain exceptions, the maximum term of options and SARS under the 2011 Plan is ten years. Generally, Options and SARs awarded
under the 2011 Plan generally will terminate ninety (90) days after termination of the participant’s service; however, pursuant to the terms of the 2011 Plan.
Incentive stock options may not be transferred otherwise than by will or by the laws of descent.

Restricted Stock Awards. Our Board may issue shares of restricted stock under the 2011 Plan as a grant or for such consideration, including
services, and, subject to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, promissory notes, as determined in its sole discretion.

Shares of restricted stock acquired under a restricted stock purchase or grant agreement may, but need not, be subject to forfeiture to the Company or
other restrictions that will lapse in accordance with a vesting schedule to be determined by our Board. In the event a recipient’s employment or service with
the Company terminates, any or all of the shares of Common Stock held by such recipient that have not vested as of the date of termination under the terms of
the restricted stock agreement may be forfeited to the Company in accordance with such restricted stock agreement.
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Rights to acquire shares of common stock under the restricted stock purchase or grant agreement shall be transferable by the recipient only upon
such terms and conditions as are set forth in the restricted stock agreement, as the Board shall determine in its discretion, so long as shares of Common Stock
awarded under the restricted stock agreement remains subject to the terms of the such agreement.

Adjustment Provisions. If any change is made to our outstanding shares of Common Stock without the Company’s receipt of consideration
(whether through stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, or other specified change in the capital structure of the Company), appropriate adjustments may
be made in the class and maximum number of shares of Common Stock subject to the 2011 Plan and outstanding awards.

Effect of Certain Corporate Events. In the event of a liquidation, merger or consolidation or a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company, any surviving or acquiring corporation may assume awards outstanding under the 2011 Plan or may substitute similar awards. Unless the stock
award agreement otherwise provides, in the event any surviving or acquiring corporation does not assume such awards or substitute similar awards, then the
awards will terminate if not exercised at or prior to such event. Our Board may, however, in its sole discretion declare all outstanding options, stock
appreciation rights and other awards in the nature of rights that may be exercised to become fully vested and exercisable, and all restrictions on all
outstanding awards to lapse, in each case as of such date as the Administrator may, in its sole discretion, declare. Our Board may discriminate among
participants or among awards in exercising such discretion.

Duration, Amendment and Termination. The Board may suspend or terminate the 2011 Plan without stockholder approval or ratification at any
time or from time to time. Unless sooner terminated, the 2011 Plan will terminate ten years from the date of its adoption by the Board, in October 2021. The
Board may also amend the 2011 Plan at any time, and from time to time. However, subject to certain exceptions, no amendment will be effective unless
approved by our stockholders to the extent stockholder approval is necessary to preserve incentive stock option treatment for federal income tax purposes.

2010 Stock Incentive Plan

On March 29, 2010, our Board adopted the Genesis Biopharma, Inc. 2010 Equity Compensation Plan (the "2010 Plan") pursuant to which the Board
reserved an aggregate of 3,500,000 shares of common stock for future issuance. The 2010 Plan provided for awards of incentive stock options, non-qualified
stock options, rights to acquire restricted stock, rights to acquire unrestricted stock, and stock appreciation rights, or SARs, but since we did not obtain
stockholder approval of the 2010 Plan within twelve (12) months after the date the Board adopted the 2010 Plan, incentive stock options could not be granted.
Under the 2010 Plan, no option could have a term of more than 10 years from the date of grant and the exercise price of non qualified options and the base
value of a stock appreciation right shall not be less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. As of October 2011, when the 2011
Plan was adopted, options to grant 3,500,000 shares had been granted, and no shares were available for additional grants.

Outstanding Equity Awards
Equity awards held as of December 31, 2011 by each of our named executive officers were issued under our 2010 Plan and 2011 Plan. The following

table sets forth outstanding equity awards held by our named executive officers as of December 31, 2011:
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2011 Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Option Awards

Number of Securities Underlying
Unexercised Options

#

Option
Exercise Price Option
Name Exercisable Unexercisable (%) Expiration Date

Anthony Cataldo

President and Chief

Executive Officer(1) 333,250 2,166,750 $ 1.25 10/14/2021
Michael Handelman

Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer(1) 333,250 2,166,750 $ 1.25 10/14/2021
Robert T. Brooke

President and Chief

Executive Officer — —
Richard McKilligan

Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer _ _

1) These options vest in equal monthly installments over five (5) years.
Option Exercises and Stock Vested
There were no exercises of stock options by any of our named executive officers during 2011.
Director Compensation
The following table sets forth the compensation paid to our directors other than our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for 2011:

Director Compensation Table

Fees
Earned or
Paid in Option All Other

Cash Stock Awards Awards Compensation Total
Name(1) (&) (&) $@) %) %)
Martin Schroeder — —
Dr. L. Stephen Coles $ 27,000 — % 211,350 $ 238,350
Dr. William Andrews $ 24,000 — % 187,675 $ 211,675
Merrill A. McPeak $ 15,000 — 3 428,050 $ 443,050
David Voyticky $ 15,000 — 3 845,400 $ 860,400

(1) Represents Black Scholes value as determined on the date of grant.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 27, 2012 (a) by each person
known by us to own beneficially 5% or more of any class of our common stock, (b) by each of our current directors and executive officers and (d) by all of
our current executive officers and directors as a group. As of March 27, 2012 there were 78,293,095 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding.
Shares of common stock subject to stock options and warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 27, 2012 are deemed to
be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of that person but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person. Unless indicated below, the persons and entities named in the table have sole voting and sole investment power
with respect to all shares beneficially owned, subject to community property laws where applicable. Except as otherwise indicated, the address of each
stockholder is c/o Genesis Biopharma, Inc. at 11500 Olympic Boulevard, Suite 400, Los Angeles, California 90064.

Shares of Percent of
Common Stock Common Stock
Beneficially Beneficially
Name and address Owned (1) Owned (1)
5% or greater owners:
Theorem Group, LLC (2)

10880 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 950

Los Angeles, CA 90024 7,940,841 9.9%
Ayers Capital Management (3)

230 California Street, Suite 600

San Francisco, CA 94111 4,800,000 5.8%
Bristol Investment Fund Ltd. (4)

Bristol Capital Advisors, LLC

10990 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1410
Los Angeles, CA 90024 6,947,794 8.87%
Batavia Holdings Limited (5)

19/F, Seaview Commercial Building,

21-24 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong 5,854,753 7.5%
Robert Brooke (6) 4,440,008 5.7%
Directors and executive officers:

Anthony Cataldo (7) 3,541,750 4.5%
Martin Schroeder (8) 1,100,000 1.42%
Michael Handelman (9) 541,750 >
Dr. L. Stephen Coles (10) 145,825 *
Dr. William Andrews (11) 250,000 3
Merrill A. McPeak (12) 301,650 *
David Voyticky (13) 580,000 i
Hans Bishop (14) 66,660 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (8 persons) (15) 6,530,935 7.6%
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Applicable percentage ownership is based on 78,293,095 shares of common stock outstanding at March 27, 2012. The number of shares of common
stock owned are those “beneficially owned” as determined under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, including any shares of
common stock as to which a person has sole or shared voting or investment power and any shares of common stock which the person has the right to
acquire within sixty (60) days through the exercise of any option, warrant or right.

Holdings include those reported on Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on February 10, 2011 plus vested warrants to purchase 1,500,000 shares of
common stock. Anshuman Dube, the manager of Theorem Group, exercises dispositive and voting control with respect to the shares held by
Theorem Group.

Holdings were reported on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on October 21, 2011.

Holdings include shares owned, as reported on Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 15, 2012, plus a vested warrants to purchase
1,500,000 shares of common stock. Does not include 3,250,001 shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants and 1,600,000 shares
issuable upon the conversion of $2,000,000 of our 7% Tranche A Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes and Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible
Notes. On December 30, 2011, Bristol Investment Fund agreed with the Company that it will not exercise any of these warrants or convert any of
these convertible promissory notes, if such exercise/conversion would result in Bristol Investment Fund owning beneficially more than 4.99% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock as determined under Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Bristol Investment Fund may,
upon not less than 61 days prior notice, elect to change the 4.99% limitation to 9.99%). Paul Kessler exercises dispositive and voting control with
respect to the shares held by Bristol Investment Fund.

Holdings were reported on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on December 20, 2010. Janny Onggara has the power to vote, or to direct the vote, and
to dispose of, or to direct the disposition of, the securities held by Batavia, in her capacity as Batavia’s Director and sole shareholder.

Holdings were reported on Schedule 13D/A filed with the SEC on May 12, 2011. Mr. Brooke resigned as the Company’s President, Chief Executive
Officer and as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors on February 7, 2011. Pursuant to an advisory agreement, Mr. Brooke agreed to submit
for cancellation 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that he owned.

Includes 3,000,000 shares of common stock and options to purchase 541,750 shares of common stock that are exercisable currently or within 60 days
of March 27, 2012. Does not include 3,501,455 shares of common stock owned by Ines Garcia, Mr. Cataldo’s wife. Mr. Cataldo disclaims beneficial
ownership of Ms. Garcia’s shares.

Consists of shares of common stock owned by Emmes Group, Inc. Mr. Schroeder is the Executive Vice President and Managing Director of the

Emmes Group Consulting, LLC.
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©) Consists of options to purchase 541,750 shares of common stock that are exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 27, 2012.

(10) Consists of options to purchase 145,825 shares of common stock that are exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 27, 2012.

(11) Consists of options to purchase 250,000 shares of common stock that are exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 27, 2012.

(12) Includes 10,000 shares of common stock and options to purchase 291,650 shares of common stock that are exercisable currently or within 60 days of

March 27, 2012.

(13) Consists of options to purchase 580,000 shares of common stock that are exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 27, 2012.

14) Consists of options to purchase 66,660 shares of common stock that are exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 27, 2012.

(15) Includes 4,010,000 shares of common stock and options to purchase 2,520,935 shares of common stock that are exercisable currently or within 60

days of March 27, 2012.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

On October 14, 2011, the Board of Directors, based upon the approval and recommendation of the Compensation Committee, approved by

unanimous written consent the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan and form of option agreements for grants under the 2011 Plan.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had not adopted an equity compensation plan that it had submitted to the stockholders. The following table
summarizes, as of December 31, 2011, (i) the number of shares of our common stock that are issuable under our equity compensation plans upon the exercise
of outstanding options, warrants and other rights, (ii) the weighted-average exercise price of such options, warrants and rights, and (iii) the number of
securities remaining available for future issuance under our equity compensation plans.

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column

Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights (a))

(a) (b) ©
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders - - -
Equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders 9,275,000 (1) 1.085 12,225,000
Total 9,275,000 12,225,000
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(1) Does not include options to purchase a total of 2,600,000 shares that we agreed to grant to a consultant and an employee in 2011, but which
options have not yet been granted by our Board of Directors.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Our Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing and approving, as appropriate, all transactions with related persons. Transactions between us and
one or more related persons, including directors, officers or significant shareholders, may present risks or conflicts of interest or the appearance of conflicts of
interest. It is understood, however, that certain relationships or transactions may arise that would be deemed acceptable and appropriate so long as there is full
disclosure of the interest of the related parties in the transaction and review and approval by disinterested directors to ensure there is a legitimate business
reason for the transaction and that the transaction is fair to us and our stockholders. While we do not have a formal written policy with respect to the approval
of related party transactions, it is the policy of the Board of Directors that all related party transactions are approved by a majority of the disinterested
directors, after disclosure to such directors of all material terms of the transactions, and all the material facts as to the related person’s direct or indirect
interest in, or relationship to, the related person transaction.

Emmes Group Consulting LLC. Effective as of February 15, 2011, we entered into a consulting agreement with Emmes Group Consulting LLC, a
strategic business consulting firm (“Emmes”). Mr. Schroeder, one of this company’s directors and is an Executive Vice President and Managing Director of
Emmes and the Emmes Group, Inc. Under the consulting agreement, Emmes agreed to assist and advise us with respect to the development of an overall
strategic business plan, the identification of in-licensing therapeutic opportunities, and raising debt and equity capital. In consideration for the foregoing
consulting services, we issued to Emmes a ten-year warrant to purchase up to 100,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $1.26 per share. In
addition, we agreed to pay Emmes $10,000 per month. The initial term of the consulting agreement expired on May 15, 2011, but continued in accordance
with the terms of the consulting agreement for an unspecified term until terminated at any time by either party with or without cause.

Effective August 1, 2011, we amended the consulting agreement to increase the monthly consulting fee to $20,000, commencing as of July 11, 2011.
The amendment also extended the term of the consulting agreement December 31, 2011, but continued in accordance with the terms of the consulting
agreement for an unspecified term until terminated at any time by either party with or without cause.

On February 12, 2012, we entered into a Second Amendment to the Consulting Agreement engaging the Emmes Group as our senior contractor and
project manager responsible for the overall management of the design, development, implementation, and installation of our corporate and regulatory
compliant information technology infrastructure and systems. The Second Amendment provides that the term of the consulting agreement shall continue until
December 31, 2015. If Emmes continues to provide consulting services for the company after December 31, 2015, the engagement shall continue for an
unspecified term until terminated at any time by either party with or without cause. Under the Second Amendment, the consulting fee increased from $20,000
per month to $60,000 per month.

As of December 31, 2011, we have paid Emmes a total of $150,000 in consulting fees (in addition to the grant of the warrant for the purchase of
100,000 shares).
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On August 22, 2011, Anthony Cataldo, our Chief Executive Officer, sold 1,000,000 shares of his Genesis common stock to Emmes for $1,000 in a
private transaction. On August 22, 2011, the closing sales price of our common stock as listed on the OTC Bulletin Board was $1.13 per share. In order to
deliver the shares to Emmes, on August 24, 2011, we instructed our transfer agent to issue 1,000,000 shares of our common stock to Emmes. It was Mr.
Cataldo’s intention to deliver 1,000,000 shares of his Genesis common stock to us for cancellation to offset the 1,000,000 shares we issued to Emmes on his
behalf. However, Mr. Cataldo did not return the 1,000,000 shares to us for cancellation until March 12, 2012. As a result, the number of shares that were
outstanding during the period between August 22, 2011 and March 12, 2012, including the number of shares we reported as being outstanding in our Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 201, was overstated by 1,000,000 shares. Furthermore, the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011
incorrectly stated that on August 22, 2011, we issued to Emmes 1,000,000 shares of common stock for consulting services, which shares were valued at
$1,040,000 based on the trading price of our common stock at the date. These shares were transferred to Emmes by Mr. Cataldo, and were not transferred as
compensation paid under a consulting agreement with this company. The value of the shares sold to Emmes was reflected as a compensation expense for the
Company on its accompanying statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Theorem Group, LLC Effective February 15, 2011, we entered into a consulting agreement with Theorem Group, LLC (“Theorem”), a strategic
business consulting firm. Under the consulting agreement, Theorem agreed to advise us with respect to our field of interest and business, and strategic and
commercial matters related to Theorem’s expertise. In consideration for the foregoing consulting services, we agreed to pay of $2,500 per month for the
twelve month term. In 2011, we paid Theorem a total of $26,500 in consulting fees.

Effective July 15, 2011, we entered into a second consulting agreement with Theorem, whereby Theorem agreed to assist us with general corporate
activities including but not limited to strategic and financial planning; management and business operations; financial projections and investor presentation
materials; and any other consulting or advisory services which the Company reasonably requested over the course of the initial six month term of the
agreement. In consideration for the foregoing services, we issued to Theorem a five-year warrant to purchase up to 1,500,000 shares of common stock at an
exercise price of $1.50 per share. This warrant contains full ratchet anti-dilution protection for any sales of common stock, or common stock equivalents, at a
price of less than $1.50 per share, and can be exercised on a cash-less basis after July 15, 2012 if there is no effective registration statement registering the
resale of the underlying warrant shares.

In addition, we currently rent an office in Westwood, California, from Theorem and have the right to use certain other office facilities pursuant to an
unwritten month-to-month facilities sharing arrangement with Theorem for $5,000 per month. In 2011, we paid Theorem a total of $52,500 in cash for the use
of these facilities.

As of February 29, 2012, Theorem beneficially owned approximately 9.9% of our common stock.

Bristol Capital, LL.C. Effective July 15, 2011, we entered into a consulting agreement with Bristol Capital, LLC (“Bristol”), a strategic business
consulting firm. Under the consulting agreement, Bristol agreed to assist us with general corporate activities including but not limited to strategic and
financial planning; management and business operations; financial projections and investor presentation materials; and any other consulting or advisory
services which the Company reasonably requests over the course of the initial six month term of the agreement. In consideration for the foregoing services,
we issued to Bristol a five-year warrant to purchase up to 1,500,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $1.50 per share. This warrant contains full
ratchet anti-dilution protection for any sales of common stock, or common stock equivalents, at a price of less than $1.50 per share, and can be exercised on a
cash-less basis after July 15, 2012 if there is no effective registration statement registering the resale of the underlying warrant shares. Effective September 1,
2011, we entered into an addendum to the consulting agreement with Bristol to pay Bristol an additional $100,000 in cash.

As of February 29, 2012, Bristol Capital, LLC and its affiliates beneficially owned approximately 8.87% of our common stock.
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Oxis International, Inc. After our prior officers and directors were replaced in February 2011, we commenced a re-evaluation of our anti-CD55+
therapeutic antibody technologies, and commenced an investigation of other potential products that we could develop and commercialize. In connection with
this investigation, among other possible transactions, we entered into negotiations with Oxis International, Inc., a Delaware corporation, to license certain
know-how related to the manufacture and production of an approved veterinary and human pharmaceutical product (NAD/NADA 0045-863) known as
Palosein (veterinary) and Orgotein (human). As part of the license negotiations, we provided Oxis with a $50,000 refundable advance against the initial cash
licensing fee. We have terminated our discussions with Oxis, but the $50,000 advance has not yet been refunded. At the time we initiated our discussions with
Oxis International, Inc., our Chief Executive Officer/Director was the Chairman of the Board of Oxis, and our Chief Financial Officer/Director also was the
Chief Financial Officer of Oxis. Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman resigned their respective positions with Oxis on October 25, 2011.

Director Independence

We believe that Hans Bishop, David Voyticky, Merrill A. McPeak, Dr. L. Stephen Coles and Dr. William Andrews qualify as “independent directors”
as under the Nasdaq Stock Market’s listing standards.

Our common stock is traded on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “GNBP.” The OTC Bulletin Board electronic trading platform does not
maintain any standards regarding the “independence” of the directors on our company’s Board of Directors, and we are not otherwise subject to the
requirements of any national securities exchange or an inter-dealer quotation system with respect to the need to have a majority of our directors be
independent.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Summary of Principal Accounting Fees for Professional Services Rendered

The following table presents the aggregate fees for professional audit services and other services rendered by Weinberg & Company, our independent
registered public accountants for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Audit Fees $ 128,175 $ 43,389
Audit-Related Fees - -
Tax Fees - -
All Other Fees - -
$ $

Audit Fees consist of fees billed for the annual audit of our financial statements and other audit services including the provision of consents and the
review of documents filed with the SEC.

We do not have an independent audit committee and the full Board of Directors, therefore, serves as the audit committee for all purposes relating to

communication with our auditors and responsibility for our audit. Our Board of Directors has considered whether the provision of the services described
above for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, is compatible with maintaining the auditor’s independence.
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All audit and non-audit services that may be provided by our principal accountant to us require pre-approval by the Board of Directors. Further, our
auditor shall not provide those services to us specifically prohibited by the SEC, including bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records or
financial statements of the audit client; financial information systems design and implementation; appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinion, or
contribution-in-kind reports; actuarial services; internal audit outsourcing services; management functions; human resources; broker-dealer, investment
adviser, or investment banking services; legal services and expert services unrelated to the audit; and any other service that the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board determines, by regulation, is impermissible.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statements Schedules.

The Company’s financial statements and related notes thereto are listed and included in this Annual Report beginning on page F-1. The following
exhibits are filed with, or are incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report.

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Description
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger between Freight Management Corp. (renamed Genesis Biopharma, Inc.) and Genesis Biopharma, Inc.
dated March 15, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 19, 2010).
2.2 Asset Purchase Agreement among Freight Management Corp. (renamed Genesis Biopharma, Inc.), Genesis Biopharma, Inc., Hamilton

Atlantic and the other signatories thereto dated March 15, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with
the Commission on March 19, 2010).

3.1 Articles of Incorporation filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on September 7, 2007 (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed with the Commission on January 29, 2008).

3.2 Articles of Merger filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on March 15, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form
8-K filed with the Commission on March 19, 2010).

3.3 Certificate of Change to Articles of Incorporation filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on March 15, 2010 (incorporated herein by
reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 19, 2010).

34 Bylaws (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed with the Commission on January
29, 2008).

4.1 Form of Series A Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated September 17, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form
8-K filed with the Commission on September 23, 2010).

4.2 Form of Series B Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated September 17, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form
8-K/A filed with the Commission on July 2, 2010).

4.3 Form of Warrant for Consulting Services issued to Emmes Group

4.4 Form of Class “C” Warrant (incorporated herein by referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 22, 2011).

4.5 Form of Warrant dated July 15, 2011 issued to Bristol Capital, LLC and Theorem Group, LLC

4.6 Form of seven (7%) percent senior convertible note effective July 27, 2011 as issued by Genesis Biopharma Inc. to selling stockholders
(incorporated herein by referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011).

4.7 Form of seven (7%) percent senior convertible note effective July 27, 2011 as issued by Genesis Biopharma Inc. to selling stockholders
(incorporated herein by referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011).

4.8 Form of Warrant as issued to selling stockholders effective July 27, 2011 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011).

4.9 Form of Traunch B seven (7%) percent senior convertible note as issued by Genesis Biopharma Inc. to selling stockholders (incorporated

herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011).
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4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Form of Traunch B Warrant as issued by Genesis Biopharma Inc. to selling stockholders (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011).

Form of Placement Agent Warrant as issued to Cannacord Genuity, Inc. and Cowen and Company, Inc. effective July 27, 2011
(incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011).

Amendment No. 1 to Tranche A Unsecured Convertible Notes and Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes (incorporated herein by
referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 5, 2011).

Amendment No. 1 Tranche A Warrants to Purchase Common Stock and Tranche B Warrants to Purchase Common Stock (incorporated
herein by referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 5, 2011).

Amendment No. 2 to Tranche A Unsecured Convertible Notes and Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes (incorporated herein by
referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K/A filed with the Commission on December 22, 2011).

Amendment No. 2 Tranche A Warrants to Purchase Common Stock and Tranche B Warrants to Purchase Common Stock (incorporated
herein by referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K/A filed with the Commission on December 22, 2011).

Amendment No. 3 to Tranche A Unsecured Convertible Notes and Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes (incorporated herein
by referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K/A filed with the Commission on January 10, 2011).

Amendment No. 3 Tranche A Warrants to Purchase Common Stock and Tranche B Warrants to Purchase Common Stock

Amendment No. 4 to Tranche A Unsecured Convertible Notes and Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes

Amendment No. 4 Tranche A Warrants to Purchase Common Stock and Tranche B Warrants to Purchase Common Stock (incorporated
herein by referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K/A filed with the Commission on March 6, 2011).

Amendment No. 5 to Tranche A Unsecured Convertible Notes and Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes (incorporated herein by
referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K/A filed with the Commission on February 6, 2011).

Amendment No. 6 to Tranche A Unsecured Convertible Notes and Tranche B Senior Unsecured Convertible Notes (incorporated herein by
referenced to the Registrant’s Form 8-K/A filed with the Commission on March 6, 2011).

Genesis Biopharma, Inc. 2010 Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K filed with the Commission on March 31, 2010).

Form of Stock Option Agreement for grants under the Genesis Biopharma Inc 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on March 31, 2010).

Genesis Biopharma, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by referenct to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on October 20, 2011)

Form of ISO Stock Option Agreement for grants under the Genesis Biopharma Inc 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 20, 2011).

Form of NQSO Stock Option Agreement for grants under the Genesis Biopharma Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 20, 2011).

Patent and Know How License between Cancer Research Technology Limited and Genesis Biopharma, Inc. (formerly Freight
Management Corp.) dated March 15, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
March 19, 2010)

Form of Private Placement Subscription Agreement dated September 17, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form
8-K filed with the Commission on September 23, 2010).

Form of Private Placement Subscription Agreement dated October 22, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on October 28, 2010).
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10.9

10.10

10.11
10.12

10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.24
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2
101

Form of Private Placement Subscription Agreement dated December 28, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form
8-K filed with the Commission on January 3, 2011).

Consulting Agreement, dated February 15, 2011, by and between Emmes Group and Genesis Biopharma, Inc., Amendment No. 1, dated
___,2011, Amendment No. 2, dated February 12, 2012.

Consulting Agreement, dated February __, 2012, between Theorem and Genesis Biopharma, Inc.

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated April 17, 2011(incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on April 22, 2011).

Consulting Agreement dated July 15, 2011, between Theorem and Genesis Biopharma, Inc.

Consulting Agreement dated July 15, 2011, between Bristol and Genesis Biopharma, Inc. Addendum No. 1, dated ____, 2011

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement effective July 27, 2011 between Genesis Biopharma, Inc. and selling stockholders (incorporated
herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011).

Form of Escrow Agreement between Genesis Biopharma Inc. and the selling stockholders effective July 27, 2011 (incorporated herein by
reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011).

Form of Registration Rights Agreement between Genesis Biopharma Inc. and the selling stockholders effective July 27, 2011
(incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011).

Patent License Agreement between the Company and the National Institutes of Health effective October 5, 2011 (incorporated herein by
reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K/A filed with the Commission on December 13, 2011).*

Cooperative Research and Development Agreement for Intramural-PHS Clinical Research, dated August 5, 2011, between the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, as represented by the National Cancer Institute and the Company. (incorporated herein by
reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K/A (No.2) filed with the Commission on November 29, 2011).

Employment Agreement dated as of May 1, 2011 between the Company and Anthony J. Cataldo (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 20, 2011).

Employment Agreement dated as of May 1, 2011 between the Company and Michael Handelman (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 20, 2011).

Lonza Walkersville Inc. Letter of Intent with Genesis Biopharma Inc. effective November 4, 2011 (incorporated by reference to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on November 21, 2011).

Manufacturing Service Agreement, dated December __, 2011, by and between Lonza Walkersville and Genesis Biopharma, Inc.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

The following financial information from the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Genesis Biopharma, Inc. for the year ended December 31,
2011, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (1) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011, and
2010; (2) Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009; (3) Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009; (4) Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for
the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009; (5) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009; and (6) Notes to Financial Statements

* Certain portions of the Exhibit have been omitted based upon a request for confidential treatment filed by us with the Commission. The omitted portions of
the Exhibit have been separately filed by us with the Commission.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.

Date: March 29, 2012 By: /s/ Anthony Cataldo

Name: Anthony Cataldo
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Anthony Cataldo Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive March 29, 2012
Anthony Cataldo Officer) and Director

/s/ Michael Handelman Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and March 29, 2012
Michael Handelman Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer)

Director March 29, 2012
Martin Schroeder
/s/ L. Stephen Coles Director March 29, 2012
L. Stephen Coles, M.D., Ph.D.
/s/ William Andrews Director March 29, 2012
William Andrews, Ph.D.
/s/ Merrill A. McPeak Director March 29, 2012
Merrill A. McPeak
/s/ David Voyticky Director March 29, 2012
David Voyticky
/s/ Hans Bishop Director March 29, 2012
Hans Bishop
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Genesis Biopharma, Inc.
Los Angeles, CA

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Genesis Biopharma, Inc. (a development stage company) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficiency) and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 and for
the period from September 17, 2007 (date of inception) through December 31, 2011. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Genesis Biopharma, Inc. as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 and for the
period from September 17, 2007 (date of inception) through December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Genesis Biopharma, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated March 30, 2012 expressed an adverse opinion thereon.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1, the
Company is in the development stage and has not generated any revenues from operations to date, and does not expect to do so in the foreseeable future. The
Company has experienced recurring operating losses and negative operating cash flows since inception, and has financed its working capital requirements
through the recurring sale of its debt and equity securities. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1 to the financial statements. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

WEINBERG & COMPANY, P.A.
Los Angeles, California
March 30, 2012




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Genesis Biopharma, Inc.

We have audited Genesis Biopharma, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Genesis
Biopharma, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting (Item 9A).
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weaknesses have been identified and included in management’s assessment as of December
31, 2011:

a. The Company did not maintain an effective financial reporting organizational structure to support the complexity and operating activities of the
Company resulting in a weakness in controls related to the financial statement closing process. Furthermore, the Company does not have a
formalized and consistent finance and accounting policies and procedures; and

b. The Company did not have an effective corporate governance and financial controls to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the accounting
for, and the disclosure of, issuance of the Company’s securities such as shares of common stock, options and warrants.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheet of Genesis Biopharma, Inc. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
(deficiency) and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011. These material weaknesses were considered in determining the
nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2011 financial statements and this report does not affect our report dated March 30, 2012,
which expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.
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In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, Genesis
Biopharma, Inc. has not maintained, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on the COSO criteria.

WEINBERG & COMPANY, P.A.

Los Angeles, California
March 30, 2012
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GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Balance Sheets

December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 510,217 $ 1,292,469
Deposit 9,391 5,000
Prepaid expenses 4,473 3,447
Total Current Assets 524,081 1,300,916
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $2,704 28,349 -
Intellectual property licenses, net of accumulated amortization of $217,408 and $57,372 - 160,036
Rent Deposit 16,000 -
Total Assets $ 568,430 $ 1,460,952
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 190,048 $ 30,292
Accrued expenses 221,507 -
Unsecured convertible promissory notes 5,000,000 -
Derivative liabilities 7,937,793 792,575
Total Current Liabilities 13,349,348 822,867
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency)
Common stock, $0.000041666 par value; 1,800,000,000 shares authorized, 77,993,591 and 73,638,349 shares
issued and outstanding, respectively 3,250 3,068
Additional paid-in capital 14,592,408 2,317,493
Accumulated deficit (27,376,576) (1,682,476)
Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency) (12,780,918) 638,085
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency) $ 568,430 $ 1,460,952

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Operations

For the Period from
September 17, 2007

For the Years Ended (Date of Inception)
December 31, through
2011 2010 2009 December 31, 2011
Revenues $ - $ - $ -5 -
Costs and expenses
Operating expenses (including $14,608,040, $114,016, $0 and
$14,722,056 of non-cash share-based compensation costs) 19,302,721 643,929 15,772 2,021,138
Research and development 1,755,561 171,484 - 1,927,045
Impairment of intangible asset 160,036 - - 160,036
Total costs and expenses 21,218,318 815,413 15,772 22,108,219
Loss from operations (21,218,318) (815,413) (15,772) (22,108,219)
Other income (expense)
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities 1,596,035 (229,227) - 1,366,808
Interest expense (151,507) - - (151,507)
Amortization of discount on convertible notes (5,000,000) - - (5,000,000)
Private placement costs (920,310) (563,348) - (1,483,658)
Total other income (expense) (4,475,782) (792,575) - (5,268,357)
Net Loss $ (25,694,100) $ (1,607,988) $ (15,772) $ (27,376,576)
Net Loss Per Share, Basic and Diluted $ (0.34) $ (0.02) $ (0.00)
Weighted-Average Common Shares Outstanding, Basic and Diluted 75,923,905 65,246,250 38,100,024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency)

For the Period from September 17, 2007 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2011

Initial capitalization, sale of common stock to
directors, September 17, 2007

Private placement, closed December 31, 2007
Net loss

Balance - December 31, 2008

Net loss

Balance - December 31, 2009

Common stock sold in private placement at $0.03125

per share, March 2010

Common stock issued for intellectual property, March

2010

Common stock sold in private placement at $0.75 per

share, September 2010

Common stock sold in private placement at $1.00 per

share, October 2010

Common stock sold in private placement at $1.00 per

share, December 2010
Forgiveness of debt by director
Fair value of vested stock options
Net loss
Balance - December 31, 2010

Common stock sold in private placement at $1.00
per share, January 2011

Common stock and warrant sold in private
placement at $1.00 per share, April to June 2011,
net of fair value of warrant derivative

Common stock issued to consultants for services

Common stock returned for cancelation

Fair value of common stock issued to officer for
services

Fair value of common stock transferred to officer

Fair value of common stock transferred from CEO

to a director
Fair value of vested stock options and warrants
Net loss

Balance - December 31, 2011

Total
Additional Stockholders’
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated Equity
Shares Amount Capital Deficit (Deficiency)
12,660,024 $ 528 $ 7,472 $ - 8,000
25,440,000 1,060 51,940 - 53,000
- - - (58,716) (58,716)
38,100,024 1,588 59,412 (58,716) 2,284
- - - (15,772) (15,772)
38,100,024 1,588 59,412 (74,488) (13,488)
12,799,968 533 364,467 - 365,000
20,960,016 873 216,535 - 217,408
933,341 39 699,961 - 700,000
250,000 10 249,990 - 250,000
595,000 25 594,975 - 595,000
- - 18,137 - 18,137
- - 114,016 - 114,016
- - - (1,607,988) (1,607,988)
73,638,349 3,068 2,317,493 (1,682,476) 638,085
45,000 2 44,998 - 45,000
850,000 35 185,669 - 185,704
460,242 20 498,432 - 498,452
(3,000,000) (125) 125 - -
6,000,000 250 8,009,750 - 8,010,000
- - 702,037 - 702,037
- - 1,040,000 - 1,040,000
- - 1,793,904 - 1,793,904
- - - (25,694,100) (25,694,100)
77,993,591 $ 3250 $ 14,592,408 $  (27,376,576) (12,780,918)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.






GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Period from
September 17, 2007

For the Years Ended (Date of Inception)
December 31, through
2011 2010 2009 December 31, 2011
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net loss $  (25,694,100) $ (1,607,988) $ (15,772) $ (27,376,576)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,704 58,597 1,332 64,076
Impairment of intangible asset 160,036 - - 160,036
Fair value of vested stock options and warrants 1,793,904 114,016 - 1,907,920
Fair value of derivative liability recorded upon issuance of warrants 2,563,647 - - 2,563,647
Amortization of discount on convertible notes 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Private placement costs 920,310 563,348 - 1,483,658
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities (1,596,035) 229,227 - (1,366,808)
Common stock issued to officer for services 8,010,000 - - 8,010,000
Common stock issued for services 498,452 - - 498,452
Fair value of common stock transferred to officer and director 1,742,037 - - 1,742,037
Write off of advances to related party 50,000 - - 50,000
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Deposit (4,391) (4,850) - (9,391)
Prepaid expenses (1,026) (3,447) - (4,473)
Other assets (16,000) - - (16,000)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 381,263 30,292 8) 411,555
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (6,189,199) (620,805) (14,448) (6,881,867)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Property and equipment (31,053) - - (35,053)
Advances to related party (50,000) - - (50,000)
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (81,053) - - (85,053)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from the issuance of convertible notes, net 4,615,000 - - 4,615,000
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 873,000 1,910,000 - 2,844,000
Due to director - (4,983) 19,800 18,137
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities 5,488,000 1,905,017 19,800 7,477,137
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (782,252) 1,284,212 5,352 510,217
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning Of Year 1,292,469 8,257 2,905 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End Of Year $ 510,217 $ 1,292,469 $ 8,257 $ 510,217
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Derivative liability recorded upon issuance of convertible notes and
warrants $ 5,535,310 $ - $ - $ 5,535,310
Derivative liability recorded as offering cost 642,296 - - 642,296
Common stock issued for intellectual property - 217,408 - 217,408
Forgiveness of debt by director, treated as contribution of capital - 18,137 - 18,137

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
and for the Period September 17, 2007 (Inception) to December 31, 2011

NOTE 1. GENERAL ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

Genesis Biopharma, Inc. (the Company) was originally incorporated under the laws of the state of Nevada on September 17, 2007. The Company has had
limited operations, is considered a development stage company, and has had no revenues from operations to date.

The Company’s initial operations included organization, capital formation, target market identification, new product development and marketing plans. As a
result of the acquisition of the assets related to the Anti-CD55 Antibody Program and the License Agreement (see Notes 3 and 8),the Company has become a
biopharmaceutical company engaged in the development and commercialization of drugs and other clinical solutions for underserved diseases, including
metastatic cancers and lethal infectious diseases.

On March 15, 2010, the Company (then named Freight Management Corp.) and Genesis Biopharma, Inc., a Nevada corporation and newly formed merger
subsidiary wholly owned by the Company (“Merger Sub”), consummated a merger transaction (the “Merger”) whereby Merger Sub merged into the
Company, with the Company as the surviving corporation. The Company and Merger Sub filed the Articles of Merger on March 15, 2010 with the Secretary
of State of Nevada, along with the Agreement and Plan of Merger entered into by the two parties effective as of March 15, 2010 (the “Merger
Agreement”). The Merger Agreement and the Articles of Merger provided for an amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, which changed the
Company’s name to “Genesis Biopharma, Inc.” effective as of March 15, 2010.

On March 15, 2010, the Company also effected a 24—for—1 forward stock split, with a record date of March 15, 2010, and correspondingly increased the
number of its authorized shares to 1,800,000,000 and reduced the par value of each share from $0.001 to $0.000041666. Simultaneously with that
transaction, 83,339,976 shares of the Company’s common stock initially issued to the original shareholders were cancelled. All share and per share amounts
have been retroactively restated as if the stock split and cancellation of shares had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. The Company has not had
significant revenue and is still considered to be in the development stage. As shown in the accompanying financial statements, the Company has incurred net
losses of $25,694,100 and $1,607,988 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively and has used $6,189,199 and $620,805 of cash in its
operating activities during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has a stockholders’ deficiency
of $12,780,918 and has a working capital deficiency of $4,887,474 (excluding our derivative liability). The Company has cash and cash equivalents of
$510,217 at December 31, 2011. In addition, as described in Note 4, the Company has convertible notes of $5 million that are due March 30, 2012. As of the
date of this Annual Report, the Company does not have sufficient funds to repay the Notes on their current maturity date. As a result, unless the Note holders
elect to convert their Notes or unless the Company either obtains at least $5,000,000 of new funding by the maturity date of the Notes or obtains an extension
of the maturity date of the Notes, the Company will be in default on its payment obligations under the Notes. The Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern is dependent upon its ability to develop additional sources of capital and to ultimately achieve sustainable revenues and profitable operations. The
Company’s financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties. At December 31, 2011, the
Company has not yet commenced any revenue-generating operations and is dependent on debt and equity funding to finance its operations.

Because the Company is currently engaged in research at an early stage, it will likely take a significant amount of time to develop any product or intellectual
property capable of generating revenues. As such, the Company’s business is unlikely to generate any sustainable revenues in the next several years, and may
never do so. Even if the Company is able to generate revenues in the future through licensing its technologies or through product sales, there can be no
assurance that the Company will be able to generate a profit.




GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
and for the Period September 17, 2007 (Inception) to December 31, 2011

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES
Earnings per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares
of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) applicable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding
if all dilutive potential common shares had been issued. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the calculations of basic and diluted loss per
share are the same because inclusion of potential dilutive securities in the computation would have an anti-dilutive effect due to the net losses.

The potentially dilutive securities at December 31, 2011 consist of options to acquire 9,275,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, warrants to acquire
9,680,022 shares of the Company’s common stock, and 4,000,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the conversion of the unsecured convertible
promissory notes. The potentially dilutive securities at December 31, 2010 consist of options to acquire 1,150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
and warrants to acquire 1,050,022 shares of the Company’s common stock. There were no potentially dilutive securities at December 31, 2009.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company uses various inputs in determining the fair value of certain assets and liabilities and measures these on a recurring basis. Financial assets and
liabilities recorded at fair value in the balance sheets are categorized by the level of objectivity associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value.
Authoritative guidance provided by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) defines the following levels directly related to the amount of
subjectivity associated with the inputs to fair valuation of these financial assets and liabilities:

Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2—Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly.
Level 3—Unobservable inputs based on the Company's assumptions.

The following table presents liabilities of the Company that are measured and recorded at fair value on the Company’s balance sheets on a recurring basis and
their level within the fair value hierarchy.

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivative
liabilities $ - $ 7,937,793 $ - $ 7,937,793 $ - $ 792,575 $ - $ 792,575

Derivative financial instruments

The Company evaluates all of its financial instruments to determine if such instruments are derivatives or contain features that qualify as embedded
derivatives. For stock-based derivative financial instruments, the Company uses probability weighted average Black-Scholes-Merton models to value the
derivative instruments at inception and on subsequent valuation dates. The classification of derivative instruments, including whether such instruments should
be recorded as liabilities or as equity, is evaluated at the end of each reporting period. Derivative instrument liabilities are classified in the balance sheet as
current or non-current based on whether or not net-cash settlement of the derivative instrument could be required within twelve months of the balance sheet
date.




GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
and for the Period September 17, 2007 (Inception) to December 31, 2011

Intangible Assets

The Company records intangible assets in accordance with guidance of the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”). Intangible assets consist mostly
of intellectual property rights that were acquired from an affiliated entity and recorded at their historical cost, and amortized over a three year life. The
Company reviews intangible assets subject to amortization at least annually to determine if any adverse conditions exist or a change in circumstances has
occurred that would indicate impairment or a change in the remaining useful life. If the carrying value of the assets is determined not to be recoverable, the
Company records an impairment loss equal to the excess of the carrying value over the fair value of the assets. The Company’s estimate of fair value is based
on the best information available. If the estimate of an intangible asset’s remaining useful life is changed, the Company amortizes the remaining carrying
value of the intangible asset prospectively over the revised remaining useful life. As further described in Note 3, based upon management’s annual
assessment, the Company recorded an impairment loss in the amount of the remaining carrying value of its intangible assets of $160,036 as of December 31,
2011. No impairment was recorded on intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided in accordance with guidance of the FASB. A deferred tax asset or liability is recorded for all temporary differences between
financial and tax reporting and net operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax expense (benefit) results from the net change during the year of deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the
date of enactment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company periodically issues stock options and warrants to officers, directors and consultants for services rendered. Options vest and expire according to
terms established at the grant date.

The Company accounts for share-based payments to employees, officers and directors by measuring the cost of services received in exchange for equity
awards based on the grant date fair value of the awards, with the cost recognized as compensation expense in the Company’s financial statements over the
vesting period of the awards.

The Company accounts for share-based payments to consultants by determining the value of the stock compensation based upon the measurement date at
either (a) the date at which a performance commitment is reached or (b) the date at which the necessary performance to earn the equity instruments is
complete. Options granted to outside consultants are revalued each reporting period to determine the amount to be recorded as an expense in the respective
period. As the options vest, they are valued on each vesting date and an adjustment is recorded for the difference between the value already recorded and the
then current value on the date of vesting.
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GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
and for the Period September 17, 2007 (Inception) to December 31, 2011

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance which amends the disclosure of fair value measurements to help achieve common fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements in generally accepted accounting principles for the United States and in international financial reporting standards.
This new guidance does not require additional fair value measurements and is not intended to establish valuation standards or affect valuation practices
outside of financial reporting. The updated standard is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company will adopt
the new standard as required. The updated guidance will affect the Company’s fair value disclosures, but will not affect the Company’s results of operations,
financial condition or liquidity.

In June 2011, the FASB issued new accounting guidance regarding the presentation of comprehensive income. The new guidance eliminates the option to
present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, and instead requires consecutive
presentation of the statement of net income and other comprehensive income either in a continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but
consecutive statements. This new guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company will adopt the new
standard as required. The new guidance will have no affect on the Company’s results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

In September 2011, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance related to testing goodwill for impairment. This updated guidance simplifies the
assessment of goodwill for impairment by allowing companies to consider qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value
of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount before performing the two step impairment review process. The new guidance also amends the examples of
events or circumstances that would be considered in a goodwill impairment evaluation. The amended guidance is effective for annual and interim goodwill
impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the affects
adoption of this new standard may have on its goodwill impairment testing.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force) and the SEC did not or are not believed by
management to have a material impact on the Company's present or future consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LICENSES

Effective March 15, 2010, the Company entered into a purchase agreement with Hamilton Atlantic, a Cayman Islands company (“Hamilton”), whereby
Hamilton sold, and the Company acquired, all of Hamilton’s rights, title and interest to certain assets related to the development and commercialization of
biotechnology drugs, primarily anti-CD55 antibodies (the “Anti-CD55 Antibody Program”), including certain patents, patent applications, materials, and
know-how. The Anti-CD55 Antibody Program consisted of antibodies that could be developed and commercialized for the treatment of cancer. As
consideration, the Company agreed to issue to Hamilton 20,960,016 shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company valued the shares issued to
Hamilton at $217,408, which was based upon the historical cost initially paid by Hamilton to acquire the intellectual property rights from an unrelated third
party. The intellectual property rights are being amortized over a three year life.

On October 5, 2011, the Company decided to terminate its efforts to develop anti-CD55+ antibodies for the treatment of cancer. As a result, the Company
terminated its exclusive license agreement, and will return all rights thereunder to certain patents and patent applications. As a consequence of this action, the
Company recorded an impairment loss in the amount of the remaining carrying value of its intangible assets of $160,036 as of December 31, 2011.




GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
and for the Period September 17, 2007 (Inception) to December 31, 2011

Amortization expense related to the intellectual property licenses was $57,372 during the year ended December 31, 2010 (none in year ended December 31,
2009).

NOTE 4. UNSECURED CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES AND WARRANTS

Effective July 27, 2011 the Company completed an offering of $5,000,000 of its convertible notes and warrants to acquire 4,000,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock. Under the terms of the offering, the investors entered into a securities purchase agreement with the Company whereby the investor received
notes that were originally scheduled to mature on November 30, 2011 and which are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion
price of $1.25 per share, subject to adjustment. The terms of the notes have been amended to extend the maturity date to December 19, 2011, then to extend
the maturity date to January 5, 2012, and subsequently to March 30, 2012. Management believes that additional extensions will be secured, as needed.
However, management can give no assurance that such extensions will be received, and the loans may go in default as of that date. The investors also
received warrants that have a term of five years and are exercisable at $1.25 per share, subject to adjustment. Interest on the notes accrues at 7% per annum
and is due on the maturity date of the notes. The notes also contain a redemption feature whereby the Company can force conversion in the event its common
stock trades at 200% of the conversion price for twenty consecutive trading days with a minimum daily trading volume of 100,000 shares. Net proceeds to the
Company from the issuance of the convertible notes and warrants was $4,615,000 after placement and other direct closing costs.

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Company does not have sufficient funds to repay the Notes on their current maturity date. As a result, unless the
Note holders elect to convert their Notes or unless the Company either obtains at least $5,000,000 of new funding by the maturity date of the Notes or obtains
an extension of the maturity date of the Notes, the Company will be in default on its payment obligations under the Notes. Upon a default, the interest rate on
the Notes increases to 15% per annum, and the holders of the Notes have the right to demand that the Company immediately redeem all of the Notes at a price
that is the greater than the outstanding balance of the Notes. In general, the investors may demand that the Notes be redeemed at a price equal to the greater of
(i) 125% of the outstanding balance of the Notes, or (ii) an amount based on 135% of the greatest closing sale price of the Company’s common stock during
the period beginning on the date of default until the redemption demand. A default will also permit the holders of the Notes to pursue collection actions
against the Company.

As a part of the offering, the Company also entered into an escrow agreement. Under the terms of the securities purchase agreement, the offering closed in
two equal traunches. With the completion of the offering, the Company received gross proceeds of $2,500,000. The escrow agreement provided that the
remaining $2,500,000 be placed into escrow. The escrow agreement provided that the remaining proceeds could be released to the Company following the
Company signing a worldwide nonexclusive license to certain intellectual property owned by the United States Government related to tumor infiltrating
lymphocytes and T-cell technologies and a Cooperative Research and Development Agreement for exclusive access to additional technologies for the conduct
of clinical trials prior to November 30, 2011. As further described in Note 8 to these financial statements, on October 5, 2011, the Company completed the
requirements of the escrow agreement and the remaining $2,500,000 of proceeds was released to the Company.

As a part of the offering, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement which provides in part that the Company file a registration statement with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (Commission) for the shares of common stock underlying the notes and warrants as issued in the offering and have
the registration statement declared effective by the Commission within ninety days of the closing date of the Offering if there is no review by the Commission
or within 120 days of the closing date in the event the registration statement is reviewed. Failure to have the registration statement declared effective within
the time parameters afforded or to keep the registration effective per the terms of the registration rights agreement will result in a penalty imposed on the
Company of an amount in cash equal to one percent of the aggregate purchase price of such investor's registrable securities every thirty days until such time
as the Company complies with the terms of the registration rights agreement. The Company filed the registration statement on Form S3 with the Commission
on June 28, 2011 and the Commission declared the registration effective on December 16, 2011
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GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
and for the Period September 17, 2007 (Inception) to December 31, 2011

The notes and warrants contain anti-dilution protection. As such, the conversion price of the notes and the exercise price of the warrants are subject to
adjustment based upon the pricing of subsequent financings undertaken by the Company, as more fully described in the securities purchase agreement, notes,
and warrants. The Company has determined that this anti-dilution reset provision caused the conversion feature to be bifurcated from the notes, treated as a
derivative liability, and accounted for at its fair value. Upon issuance, the Company determined the fair value of the beneficial conversion feature was
$1,844,422 and recorded a corresponding discount to the convertible notes. The Company has also determined that the anti-dilution reset provision of the
warrants is subject to derivative liability treatment and is required to be accounted for at its fair value. Upon issuance, the Company determined the fair value
of the warrants was $3,616,870 and recorded a discount of $3,155,578 to the convertible notes, and recognized the remaining amount of $461,292 as private
placement costs in the statement of operations.

The total discount to the notes of $5,000,000 was amortized over the term of the notes, from July 26, 2011 through the original maturity date of November 30,
2011 and recorded as other expense under the caption “Amortization of discount on convertible notes” in the accompanying statement of operations.

In connection with this sale of convertible notes and warrants, the Company 1) incurred a placement fee of $350,000 (7% of gross proceeds of the offering),
2) issued five-year warrants to its placement agent to acquire 80,000 shares of common stock, and 3) paid $35,000 for legal and escrow services in connection
with the issuance of these convertible notes and warrants. The warrants issued to the placement agent are exercisable at $1.25 per share, may be exercised on
a cashless basis, and contain anti-dilution protection. The Company has determined that this anti-dilution reset provision of the warrants is subject to
derivative liability treatment and is required to be accounted for at its fair value. Upon issuance, the Company determined the fair value of the warrants was
$74,018 and recorded a corresponding charge to private placement costs. The aggregate amount of the above costs was $459,018, and were considered as a
cost of the private placement. Total private placement costs recorded for the issuance of convertible debentures was $920,310.

NOTE 5. COMMON STOCK

Issuance of common stock for cash

Effective March 15, 2010, the Company sold 12,799,968 shares (post-split) of its common stock at $0.03125 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of
$400,000, resulting in net proceeds to the Company of $365,000, net of offering costs. The private offering was to accredited investors pursuant to
subscription agreements. The subscription agreements granted the investors “piggy-back” registration rights with respect to the acquired shares of common
stock, pursuant to which the Company agreed, in the event the Company determines to register its common stock with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, that it would include the common stock as part of the registration statement registering its common stock. The securities sold by the Company
in the private placement were exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

On September 17, 2010, the Company closed a private placement offering with accredited investors providing for the issuance and sale, for an aggregate
purchase price of $700,000, of (i) an aggregate of 933,341 shares of the Company’s common stock, (ii) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 466,674 shares
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share and (iii) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 466,674 shares of the Company’s
common stock at an exercise price of $1.25 per share. Each of the warrant agreements included an anti-dilution provision that allowed for the automatic reset
of the exercise price upon any future sale of common stock instruments at or below the current exercise price. The Company considered the current FASB
guidance which indicates that any adjustment to the fixed amount (either conversion price or number of shares) of the instrument regardless of the probability
or whether or not within the issuer’s control, means the instrument is not indexed to the issuer’s own stock. Accordingly, the Company determined that as the
strike price of these warrants contain exercise prices that may fluctuate based on the occurrence of future offerings or events, and as such is not a fixed
amount. As a result, the Company determined that these warrants are not considered indexed to the Company’s own stock and characterized the fair value of
these warrants as derivative liabilities upon issuance. The fair value of the derivative liability was determined to be $563,348 upon issuance and recorded as a
cost of the private placement (see Note 7).
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On October 22, 2010, the Company closed a private placement offering pursuant to which it entered into a private placement subscription agreement with an
accredited investor providing for the issuance and sale of 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at $1.00 per share for a total purchase price of
$250,000. This offering triggered anti-dilution provisions contained in certain warrants previously issued because the $1.00 purchase price per share in the
offering is lower than the $1.25 exercise price of those warrants. As a result, effective October 22, 2010, the exercise price of 466,667 warrants issued on
September 17, 2010 was reduced to $1.00 per share and the holders of those warrants have become entitled to purchase an aggregate of 116,674 additional
shares of the Company’s common stock upon exercise of those warrants, bringing the total number of shares of common stock underlying those warrants to
583,348.

On December 28, 2010, the Company closed a private placement offering pursuant to which it entered into private placement subscription agreements with
accredited investors providing for the issuance and sale of 595,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at $1.00 per share for a total purchase price of
$595,000. The Subscription Agreements granted the investors “piggy-back” registration rights with respect to the acquired shares, pursuant to which the
Company agreed, with specified exceptions, to register the shares in the event the Company determines to register its common stock with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

In January 2011, the Company closed a private placement offering pursuant to which it entered into private placement subscription agreements with two
accredited investors providing for the issuance and sale of 45,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for a purchase price of $45,000. The subscription
agreements granted the investors “piggy-back” registration rights with respect to the shares, pursuant to which the Company agreed, with specified
exceptions, to register the shares in the event the Company determines to register its common stock with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Between April and June 30, 2011, the Company completed its private placement offering and issued an aggregate of 850,000 shares of common stock for
$1.00 per share, or net proceeds of $828,000 after closing costs. As an added incentive to the buyers, the Company granted a total of 850,000 warrants to the
buyers that are fully vested, will expire in five years and are exercisable at $1.25 per share. Each of the warrant agreements included an anti-dilution provision
that allowed for the automatic reset of the number of warrants issued and exercise price of the warrants upon any future sale of common stock or warrants at
or below the current exercise price. The Company considered the current FASB guidance which indicates that any adjustment to the fixed amount (either
conversion price or number of shares) of the instrument regardless of the probability or whether or not within the issuer’s control, means the instrument is not
indexed to the issuer’s own stock. Accordingly, the Company determined that as the strike price of these warrants contain exercise prices that may fluctuate
based on the occurrence of future offerings or events, and as such is not a fixed amount. As a result, the Company determined that these warrants are not
considered indexed to the Company’s own stock and characterized the fair value of these warrants as an offering cost and derivative liabilities upon issuance.
The aggregate value of these warrants issued was $642,296 using the probability weighted average Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model with the
following assumptions; average risk-free interest rate of 2.00%; dividend yield of 0%; average volatility of 49%; and an expected life of five years (statutory
term). The warrants were accounted for as an offering cost and the entire value was deducted from additional paid-in capital.

Issuance of common stock for services

In February 2011, Robert Brook, former CEO and Richard McKilligan, former CFO entered into advisory agreements with the Company. Pursuant to the
terms of the advisory agreements, Messrs. Brooke and McKilligan were each required to submit for cancellation 1,500,000 shares or a total of 3,000,000 of
the Company’s common stock that they owned (see further discussion at Note 9). On May 23, 2011, Messrs. Brooke and McKilligan transferred 1,500,000
common shares each owned by them to Ines Garcia, who subsequently became the wife of Mr. Anthony Cataldo, CEO of the Company. The transfer was
accounted for as additional compensation to Mr. Cataldo and the shares were valued at $1.40 per share, or $4,200,000, based upon the market price of the
common stock on the date of the transfer.
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On May 6, 2011, Anthony Cataldo, the Company’s President, Chief Executive Officer and director, was granted 3,000,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock as part of his executive compensation package. These shares were valued at $3,810,000 based on the trading price of the Company’s common stock at
the date of the agreement.

On May 23, 2011, BC Limited, a shareholder of the Company, agreed to transfer 501,455 shares it owned to Ines Garcia, who subsequently became the wife
of Mr. Anthony Cataldo, CEO of the Company. The transfer was accounted for as compensation to Mr. Cataldo and the 501,455 shares were valued at $1.40
per share, or $702,037, based upon the market price of the common stock on the date of the transfer.

From April to May 2011, the Company granted 130,000 shares of common stock for consulting services. These shares were valued at $155,000 based on the
trading price of the Company’s common stock at the date of the agreement.

On August 22, 2011, Mr. Cataldo sold 1,000,000 shares of his Genesis common stock to Emmes Group Consulting LL.C for $1,000 in a private transaction. In
order to deliver the shares to Emmes, on August 24, 2011, the Company instructed its transfer agent to issue 1,000,000 shares of our common stock to
Emmes. It was Mr. Cataldo’s intention to deliver 1,000,000 shares of his Company common stock to the Company for cancellation to offset the 1,000,000
shares that the Company issued to Emmes on his behalf. However, Mr. Cataldo did not return the 1,000,000 shares to the Company for cancellation until
March 12, 2012. The transaction has been accounted for as a cost to the company. The shares were valued at $1,040,000 based on the trading price of the
Company’s common stock at the date of the agreement and reflected as a consulting cost in the accompanying statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2011. Martin Schroeder, a director of the Company, is Executive Vice President and Managing Director of the Emmes, a strategic business
consulting firm.

From July through September, 2011, an additional 330,242 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued for consulting services. These shares were
valued at $343,452 based on the trading price of the Company’s common stock at the date of the agreements.

NOTE 6. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

Options

As of October 14, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors, based upon the approval and recommendation of the Compensation Committee, approved by
unanimous written consent the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan”) and form of option agreements for grants under the 2011 Plan.
Employees, directors, consultants and advisors of the Company are eligible to participate in the 2011 Plan. The 2011 Plan was adopted to encourage selected
employees, directors, consultants and advisors to improve operations, increase profitability, accept or continue employment or association with the Company
through the participation in the growth in value of the common stock of the Company. The 2011 Plan will be administered by the Board of Directors or the
Company’s Compensation Committee and has 18,000,000 shares of common stock reserved for issuance in the form of incentive stock options (available for
issuance to employees, and only upon shareholder approval of the 2011 Plan); non-qualified options; common stock; and grant appreciation rights. No person
eligible to participate in the 2011 Plan shall be granted options or other awards during a twelve month period that exceeds 5,000,000 shares. No options or
stock appreciation rights may be granted after ten years of the adoption of the 2011 Plan by the Board of Directors, nor may any option have a term of more
than ten years from the date of grant. The exercise price of non qualified options and the base value of a stock appreciation right shall not be less than the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price of an incentive stock option shall not be less than the fair market value of the stock
covered by the option at the time of grant and in instances where a grantee possesses more than 10% percent of the combined voting power of all classes of
stock of the Company, the exercise price shall not be less than 110% percent of the fair market value of the common stock at the time of grant.
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On March 30, 2010, the Company granted options to purchase 675,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a director and two consultants at an
exercise price of $0.03125. These options vest over three (3) years and have a seven-year life. The options were valued at $374,955, using the Black Scholes
option pricing model. The following assumptions were utilized in valuing the options: strike price of $0.03125; term of seven (7) years; volatility of 59%;
expected dividends 0%; and discount rate of 4%.

On May 21, 2010, the Company granted options to purchase 100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a consultant at an exercise price of
$0.03125. These options vest over four (4) years and have a seven-year life. The options were valued at $122,600, using the Black Scholes option pricing
model. The following assumptions were utilized in valuing the options: strike price of $0.03125; term of seven (7) years; volatility of 50%; expected
dividends 0%; and discount rate of 4%.

On May 26, 2010, the Company granted options to purchase 375,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a director at an exercise price of
$0.03125. These options vest over three (3) years and have a seven-year life. The options were valued at $6,750, using the Black Scholes option pricing
model. The following assumptions were utilized in valuing the options: strike price of $0.03125; term of seven (7) years; volatility of 54.25%; expected
dividends 0%; and discount rate of 4%.

On March 16, 2011, the Company granted options to purchase 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a director at an exercise price of $1.25.
These options vest one year from the grant date and have a ten-year life. The options were valued at $187,675, using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The following assumptions were utilized in valuing the options: strike price of $1.25; term of ten (10) years; volatility of 50.95%; expected dividends 0%; and
discount rate of 2.82%.

On April 15, 2011, the Company granted options to purchase 825,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to members of its scientific advisory board at
an exercise price of $1.19 per share. These options vest quarterly over 12 months from the grant date and have a five-year life. The value of these options are
being estimated at the end of each reporting period, and are being amortized over the vesting period The options were estimated at $495,578 at December 31,
2011, using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The following assumptions were utilized in valuing the options: strike price of $1.19; term of five (5)
years; volatility of 74%; expected dividends 0%; and discount rate of 0.84%.

On April 25, 2011, the Company granted options to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a member of its corporate development
advisory board at an exercise price of $1.17 per share. These options vest quarterly over 12 months from the grant date and have a ten-year life. The value of
these options are being estimated at the end of each reporting period, and are being amortized over the vesting period. The options were estimated at $162,520
at December 31, 2011, using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The following assumptions were utilized in valuing the options: strike price of $1.17;
term of ten (10) years; volatility of 74%; expected dividends 0%; and discount rate of 1.85%.

On October 14, 2011, with the approval and adoption of the 2011 Plan, the board of directors approved the grant of options to acquire 5,000,000 shares of
common stock under the employment agreements to Messrs Cataldo and Handelman. The options have an exercise price of $1.25 per share, a term expiring
May 1, 2021, and vest in equal monthly installment over the five-year term of their employment agreements. The options were valued at $4,985,500, using
the Black Scholes option pricing model and are being amortized over the vesting period. The following assumptions were utilized in valuing the options:
strike price of $1.25; term of ten years; volatility of 73.8%; expected dividends 0%; and discount rate of 2.26%.
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On October 14, 2011, the board approved the grant under the 2011 Plan to three directors of the Company, options to purchase 1,750,000 shares of common
stock with exercise prices ranging from $1.15 to $1.25 per share with these options vesting in equal monthly installments over one year and expiring in 2021.
The options were valued at $1,484,800, using the Black Scholes option pricing model and are being amortized over the vesting period. The following
weighted-average assumptions were utilized in valuing the options: strike price of $1.22; term of ten years; volatility of 73.8%; expected dividends 0%; and
discount rate of 2.26%.

On December 1, 2011, the Company granted an option to purchase 100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock a member of its scientific advisory board
at an exercise price of $1.15 per share. This option vests quarterly over 12 months from the grant date and has a ten-year life. The value of these options is
being estimated at the end of each reporting period, and is being amortized over the vesting period. The option was estimated at $82,960 at December 31,
2011, using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The following assumptions were utilized in valuing the options: strike price of $1.15; term of ten years;
volatility of 73.8%; expected dividends 0%; and discount rate of 2.11%.

A summary of the status of stock options at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the changes during the years then ended, is presented in the following table:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Shares Average Remaining Aggregate
Under Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Option Price Life Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 - $ - - $ -
Granted 1,150,000 0.03125
Exercised - -
Expired - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 1,150,000 0.03125 6.3 years 1,401,563
Granted 8,125,000 1.23
Exercised - -
Expired - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 9,275,000 $ 1.09 8.5years $ 1,114,063
Exercisable at December 31, 2011 2,025,000 $ 0.99 7.3 years $ 371,354

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded compensation costs of $1,706,364, $114,016, and $0, respectively,
relating to the vesting of the stock options discussed above. As of December 31, 2011, the aggregate value of unvested options was $5,982,037, which will
continue to be amortized as compensation cost as the options vest over terms ranging from 1 to 5 years, as applicable.

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an employment agreement with an individual. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the Company committed
to issue options to purchase 2,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $1.25. The options vest as follows: a) 500,000 shares
vested immediately and b) 2,000,000 shares vest in equal monthly installments over the 2-year life of the agreement. Neither the Board of Directors nor the
Compensation Committee has actually granted the foregoing options. Accordingly, the Company may be obligated to grant these options, but has not done so
yet. Therefore, as the grant of these options has not been approved, they are not included in compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2011, or
in number of granted options listed as of December 31, 2011.
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Warrants

A summary of the status of stock warrants at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the changes during the years then ended, is presented in the following table:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Shares Average Remaining Aggregate
Under Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Warrants Price Life Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 - $ - - 3 -
Issued 1,050,022 1.00
Exercised - -
Expired - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 1,050,022 1.00 4.7 years 262,506
Issued 8,630,000 1.34
Issued - -
Expired - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 9,680,022 $ 1.22 4.5years $ =

On September 17, 2010, the Company issued warrants to purchase 466,674 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share
and warrants to purchase 466,674 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $1.25 per share. Each of the warrant agreements included an
anti-dilution provision that allowed for the automatic reset of the exercise price upon any future sale of common stock instruments at or below the current
exercise price. The Company considered the current FASB guidance of “Determining Whether an Instrument Indexed to an Entity’s Own Stock” which
indicates that any adjustment to the fixed amount (either conversion price or number of shares) of the instrument regardless of the probability or whether or
not within the issuer’s control, means the instrument is not indexed to the issuer’s own stock. Accordingly, the Company determined that as the strike price of
these warrants contain exercise prices that may fluctuate based on the occurrence of future offerings or events, and as such is not a fixed amount. As a result,
the Company determined that these warrants are not considered indexed to the Company’s own stock and characterized the fair value of these warrants as
derivative liabilities upon issuance (see Note 7).

On October 22, 2010, the Company closed a private placement offering pursuant to which it entered into a Private Placement Subscription Agreement with an
accredited investor providing for the issuance and sale of 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for a purchase price of $250,000. This offering
triggered anti-dilution provisions contained in certain warrants previously issued because the $1.00 purchase price per share in the offering is lower than the
$1.25 exercise price of those warrants. As a result, effective October 22, 2010, the exercise price of 466,674 warrants issued on September 17, 2010 was
reduced to $1.00 per share and the holders of those warrants have become entitled to purchase an aggregate of 116,674 additional shares of the Company’s
common stock upon exercise of those warrants, bringing the total number of shares of common stock underlying those warrants to 583,348.

On February 15, 2011, pursuant to a consulting agreement, the Company issued 100,000 fully vested, ten year warrants to acquire shares of its common stock
at $1.26 per share. The warrants were valued at $87,540, using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: strike price of $1.26;
term of ten years; volatility of 57%; expected dividends 0%; and discount rate of 3.61%. As the warrants were fully vested, the entire $87,540 was share-
based compensation at issuance date.
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During the second quarter 2011, the Company completed a private placement offering of 850,000 shares of common stock. In connection, the Company
entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with accredited investors which provided for the issuance and sale of 850,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock, par value $0.000041666 (the “Shares”) at a per Share purchase price of $1.00 (the “Per Share Purchase Price”) and 850,000 five year Class “C”
Warrants exercisable at $1.25 per warrant share (the “Per Warrant Exercise Price”) (the “Warrants”) for a purchase price of $850,000 (the “Offering”). Each
of the Warrants issued from April to June 2011 contain certain purchase price reset protections in the event the Company issues or sells any Shares or any
Share equivalents at less than the Per Warrant Exercise Price. The Per Warrant Exercise Price will be adjusted in the event the Company issues or sells any
Shares or equivalents pursuant to which Shares may be acquired at less than the Per Warrant Exercise Price (which is subject to adjustment). In addition, in
the event of a reduction in the Per Warrant Exercise Price, the number of Shares that a holder of a Warrant shall be entitled to receive upon exercise shall be
adjusted by multiplying the number of Shares that would otherwise be issuable on such exercise by a fraction of which (a) the numerator is the Per Warrant
Exercise Price that would otherwise be in effect, and (b) the denominator is the Per Warrant Exercise Price in effect on the date of such exercise. The
Warrants also contain a cashless exercise provision and the Offering also provides the purchaser the right of first refusal in connection with any future
offerings undertaken by the Company for a term of eighteen months.

As more fully described in Note 4 to these financial statements, effective July 27, 2011, the Company completed an offering of $5 million of its seven percent
senior convertible notes and five year warrants exercisable at $1.25 to accredited investors. According to the terms of the agreement, the Company issued
warrants exercisable for 4,080,000 shares of common stock which were accounted for as a derivative liability due to the anti-dilution reset provision of the
warrants.

In July 2011, pursuant to consulting agreements, the Company issued warrants to two consultants to purchase an aggregate of 3,000,000 fully vested, five-
year warrants to acquire shares of its common stock at $1.50 per share. The warrants contain anti-dilution protection. As such, the exercise price of the
warrants is subject to adjustment based upon the pricing of subsequent financings undertaken by the Company. As a result, effective July 27, 2011, the
exercise price was reduced to $1.25 per share and the holders of those warrants have become entitled to purchase an aggregate of 600,000 additional shares of
the Company’s common stock upon exercise of those warrants, bringing the total number of shares of common stock underlying those warrants to 3,600,000.
The Company has determined that the anti-dilution reset provision of the warrants is subject to derivative liability treatment and is required to be accounted
for at its fair value. Upon issuance, the Company determined the fair value of the derivative liability recorded upon issuance of the warrants was $2,563,647
and recorded this amount as share-based compensation at the date of issuance since the warrants were fully vested.

NOTE 7 - DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

In June 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guidance on determining whether an instrument (or embedded feature) is indexed to an entity’s own stock.

Under the authoritative guidance, effective January 1, 2009, instruments which did not have fixed settlement provisions were deemed to be derivative
instruments. The convertible note and warrants issued related to the private placement described in Notes 4 and 6 do not have fixed settlement provisions
because their conversion and exercise prices may be lowered if the Company issues securities at lower prices in the future. The conversion feature and
warrants have been characterized as derivative liabilities to be re-measured at the end of every reporting period with the change in value reported in the
statement of operations.
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The derivative liabilities were valued using probability weighted average Black-Scholes-Merton valuation techniques with the following average
assumptions:

December 31, 2011 Upon Issuance December 31, 2010
Warrants:
Risk-free interest rate 0.46% 0.80% 1.90%
Expected volatility 86.20% 52.45% 50.03%
Expected life 4.45 years 5.00 years 4.71 years
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fair value of conversion feature $ 177,258 $ 1,844,422 $ -
Fair value of warrants $ 7,760,535 $ 6,896,831 $ 792,575
Total fair value $ 7,937,793 $ 8,741,253 $ 792,575

The risk-free interest rate was based on rates established by the Federal Reserve Bank, the Company uses the historical volatility of its common stock, and the
expected life of the instruments is determined by the expiration date of the instrument. The expected dividend yield was based on the fact that the Company
has not paid dividends to common shareholders in the past and does not expect to pay dividends to common shareholders in the future. In the prior year, the
Company used an average volatility rate of similar publicly traded companies as an input to its fair value calculations. During the current period, the
Company determined that its stock price has matured and there is a consistent level of trading activity, as such, the Company used the volatility percentage of
its common stock.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the aggregate derivative liability was $7,937,793 and $792,575, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the
Company recorded a gain from the decrease in fair value of the derivative liabilities of $1,596,035. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company
recorded a loss from the increase in fair value of the derivative liabilities of $229,227. There was no gain or loss from the change in fair value of derivative
liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2009.

NOTE 8. LICENSE AND COMMITMENTS

Cancer Research Technology Limited

On March 15, 2010, we entered into a Patent and Know How Licence (the “License Agreement”) with Cancer Research Technology Limited, a company
registered in England and Wales (“CRT”). Pursuant to the License Agreement, CRT granted to the Company an exclusive, worldwide right and license in
certain intellectual property related to a proprietary, therapeutic use of anti-CD55 antibodies, including rights to patents and patent applications related
thereto, to research, develop, use, make, distribute, and sell products utilizing the licensed intellectual property. The license granted to the Company expires
on the later to occur of the expiration of the relevant licensed patent in the relevant country or 10 years after the date that the first therapeutic product was
placed on the market in such country. In consideration for the license, the Company agreed to pay to CRT $46,872 (£30,000) in royalties upon the effective
date of the License Agreement, and an additional $49,104 (£30,000) was paid thereafter upon the milestone achieved during the year ended December 31,
2010. A total of $95,976 was paid during the year ended December 31, 2010. No payments were made during the year ended December 31, 2011.
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In addition, the Company agreed to pay CRT additional royalties based on the achievement of certain milestones, as follows:
§ £25,000 (twenty five thousand pounds sterling) on filing of IND or equivalent in each of the US and the European Economic Area;

§  £75,000 (seventy five thousand pounds sterling) on the commencement of Phase III clinical or Pivotal Registration Studies in each of the US and the
European Economic Area;

§ £200,000 (two hundred thousand pounds sterling) on the filing of a new drug application or equivalent application in each of the US and the
European Economic Area;

§ £250,000 (two hundred and fifty thousand pounds sterling) on the grant of the initial Marketing Approval in each of the US and the European
Economic Area; and

§ £50,000 (fifty thousand pounds sterling) on the grant of Marketing Approval in a Major Market.
University of Nottingham, England

On September 1, 2010, the Company entered into a research agreement with the University of Nottingham, England. The term of the agreement commenced
on July 1, 2010 and expires on June 30, 2011. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the Company paid to the University of Nottingham approximately
$51,000 upon signature of the agreement, which has been included as an expense in the accompanying statement of operations for the year ended December
31, 2010. In addition, the Company agreed to pay the University of Nottingham an additional $50,777 (£32,000) upon completion of the program. The early
results of testing conducted by Nottingham University as part of the Anti-CD55+ Antibody Program failed to meet the anticipated clinical development
endpoints. Accordingly, we decided to focus all of this company's efforts on the development of our Contego™ and to terminate the Anti-CD55+ Antibody
Program. We anticipate that the termination of the exclusive license agreement with CRT will become effective in the near future and that we will not incur
any additional costs related to that program in the future.

National Institutes of Health and the National Cancer Institute

Effective August 5, 2011, the Company signed a Cooperative Research and Development Agreement (CRADA) with the National Institutes of Health and the
National Cancer Institute (NCI). Under the terms of the five-year cooperative research and development agreement, the Company will work with Steven A.
Rosenberg, M.D., Ph.D., chief of NCI’s Surgery Branch, to develop adoptive cell immunotherapies that are designed to destroy metastatic melanoma cells
using a patient’s tumor infiltrating lymphocytes.

Specifically, the CRADA will (i) support the in vitro development of improved methods for the generation and selection of tumor infiltrating lymphocytes
with anti-tumor reactivity from patients with metastatic melanoma, (ii) help develop approaches for large-scale production of tumor infiltrating lymphocytes
that are in accord with Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) procedures suitable for use in treating patients with metastatic melanoma, and (iii) conduct
clinical trials using these improved methods of generating tumor infiltrating lymphocytes as well as improved adoptive cell therapy preparative regimens for
the treatment of metastatic melanoma.

Both the Company and the NCI may provide personnel, services, facilities, equipment or other resources under the agreement. Under the terms of the
CRADA, the Company will have an exclusive option to negotiate an exclusive license to any new inventions developed jointly or independently by NCI
scientists during the course of the research project. A CRADA is the only mechanism the National Institutes of Health has to promise exclusive intellectual
property rights in advance to a collaborator.

F-21




GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
and for the Period September 17, 2007 (Inception) to December 31, 2011

The Company will provide funds in the amount of $1,000,000 per year of the CRADA for Dr. Rosenberg to use to acquire technical, statistical, and
administrative support for the research activities, as well as to pay for supplies and travel expenses. The Company will provide funds in the amount of
$250,000 on a quarterly basis. The first quarterly installment of $250,000 was due within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date of the CRADA and each
subsequent installment will be due within thirty (30) days of each quarterly anniversary of the Effective Date. The Company’s last quarterly payment was due
on March 5, 2012, but the Company has not yet made that payment. Accordingly, the Company is currently in default under the CRADA, and the NCI could
terminate that agreement at any time. In addition, although the CRADA has a five year term, either party to the CRADA has the right to terminate the
CRADA upon 60 days’ notice to the other party. The Company also agreed that Dr. Rosenberg can allocate the funding between the various categories in
support of the CRADA research as he sees fit. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company paid $500,000 under this agreement which is
included in Research and Development expenses in the accompanying statement of operations.

National Institutes of Health

Effective October 5, 2011, the Company entered into a Patent License Agreement (the “License Agreement”) with the National Institutes of Health, an agency
of the United States Public Health Service within the Department of Health and Human Services (“NIH”). Pursuant to the License Agreement, NIH granted
to the Company a non-exclusive worldwide right and license to develop and manufacture certain proprietary autologous tumor infiltrating lymphocyte
adoptive cell therapy products for the treatment of metastatic melanoma, ovarian cancer, breast cancer, and colorectal cancer. The intellectual property
subject to the License Agreement is covered by 43 patents and patent applications, consisting of nine issued United States patents, 13 pending patent
applications in the United States, and 21 foreign patents and patent applications as counterparts of U.S. patents/patent applications. The Company also has
limited rights to sublicense the intellectual property subject to the License Agreement. The License Agreement will expire on a product-by-product basis
upon the expiration of the subject patent rights.

The Company has the right to terminate the License Agreement in any country on 60 days notice, and NIH may terminate the agreement if the Company is in
material breach, and the breach is not cured within a specified cure period, upon certain bankruptcy and insolvency events, or if the Company fails to comply
with or achieve certain benchmarks or development plans as set forth in the License Agreement.

In consideration for the rights granted pursuant to the License Agreement, the Company paid $650,000 of upfront licensing fees and $73,186 of expense
reimbursements within 60 days of the effectiveness of the License Agreement which are included in Research and Development expenses in the
accompanying statement of operations. In addition, the Company will have to pay royalties of six percent (6%) of net sales (subject to certain annual
minimum royalty payments), a percentage of revenues from sublicensing arrangements, and lump sum benchmark royalty payments on the achievement of
certain clinical and regulatory milestones for each of the various indications. The Company initially intends to focus on the development of licensed products
in the metastatic melanoma field of use. If the Company achieves all benchmarks for metastatic melanoma, up to and including the product’s first
commercial sale in the United States, the total amount of such benchmark payments will be $6,050,000. The benchmark payments for the other three
indications, if all benchmarks are achieved, will be $6,050,000 for ovarian cancer, $12,100,000 for breast cancer, and $12,100,000 for colorectal
cancer. Accordingly, if the Company achieves all benchmarks for all four licensed indications, the aggregate amount of benchmark royalty payments that the
Company will have to make to NIH will be $36,300,000.

With the Company entering the License Agreement, the escrow provisions of the Company’s previously reported July 27, 2011 $5,000,000 seven (7%)

percent senior convertible note and five (5) year warrant offering have been satisfied. Accordingly, the net proceeds of $2,320,000 held in escrow pending the
execution of the License Agreement has been released to the Company.
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Lonza Walkersville, Inc.

On June 21, 2011, the Company entered into a process development and scale-up consulting agreement with Lonza Walkersville, Inc. (“Lonza”) relating to
the manufacture of Contego. Lonza is a leading international supplier to the pharmaceutical, healthcare and life science industries. Under the terms of the
Lonza consulting agreement, Lonza agreed to work with Dr. Rosenberg and his colleagues at the NCI to transfer to Lonza Walkersville, Inc., Lonza’s U.S.
production facility, the NCI’s standard operating procedures that are used to manufacture the NCI’s physician-sponsored investigational adoptive cell therapy
using tumor infiltrating lymphocytes for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma. The purpose of the transfer of the standard operating procedures is to
assist Lonza Walkersville to develop manufacturing procedures and protocols for the manufacture of Contego for clinical trials and for post FDA approval
sales. Effective as of November 4, 2011 the Company entered into a Letter of Intent with Lonza Walkersville, Inc. (the “LOI”) whereby Lonza will provide
certain process development services as well as to investigate the development and manufacture of Contego™, the Company’s autologous cell therapy using
tumor infiltrating lymphocytes for the treatment of Stage IV metastatic melanoma and to explore the manufacture of Contego™ for clinical trials to be
performed by the Company. Pursuant to the terms of the LOI, the Company paid a reservation fee to Lonza of $500,000 which is included in Research and
Development Costs in the accompany State of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2011. The reservation fee payable to Lonza is non-refundable
except in the event that Lonza terminates the LOI.

In December 2011, the Company entered into a five-year Manufacturing Services Agreement with Lonza. Under the Manufacturing Services Agreement,
Lonza agreed to manufacture, package, ship and handle quality assurance and quality control of our Contego autologous cell therapy products. All of Lonza
services will be provided under separate statements of work that we have agreed to enter into, from time to time, with Lonza . The first statement of work,
which we entered into in December 2011, describes the services Lonza must perform in connection with optimizing the manufacturing process for Contego
products. The fees and costs of Lonza’s services under the Manufacturing Services Agreement depend on each statement of work. Under the Manufacturing
Services Agreement, we shall be the owners of all intellectual property that is developed, conceived, invented or reduced to practice by Lonza, other than
intellectual property that is generally applicable to the development or manufacture of chemical or biological products, or intellectual property that improves
Lonza’s previously owned intellectual property.

The future commitments on the Company’s outstanding research and development contracts as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Amount

2012 $ 1,020,000
2013 1,020,000
2014 1,020,000
2015 1,020,000
2016 520,000
Thereafter 34,849
Total future commitment payments $ 4,634,849

NOTE 9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Recapitalization of Company

On March 15, 2010, Mr. Robert Brooke acquired beneficial ownership of 9,940,008 shares (post-split) of our common stock held by Mr. Ibrahim Abotaleb,
and Mr. Richard McKilligan acquired beneficial ownership of 2,720,016 shares (post-split) of our common stock held by Mr. Abotaleb. The balance of the
remaining shares held by Mr. Abotaleb and all of the shares held by Mr. Gerald Lewis, totaling an aggregate of 83,339,976 common shares, were then
returned to the Company for cancellation and are no longer outstanding.
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Commensurate with the return of the shares, Ibrahim Abotaleb resigned as the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer, and Gerald Lewis resigned
as the Secretary, Treasurer, and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Abotaleb and Mr. Lewis also resigned from the Company's board of directors. The Company
considered this a reorganization of the equity and accounted for it as a recapitalization. At the time of the transaction the value of the company was de
minimus. For financial reporting purposes, the Company considered the cancellation of the shares to the original stockholders to have occurred at the earliest
of the periods presented herein.

On March 15, 2010, the Company appointed Robert Brooke as its President and Chief Executive Officer, and the Company appointed Richard McKilligan as
its Secretary, Treasurer, and Chief Financial Officer. In addition, Mr. Brooke and Mr. McKilligan were appointed to the Company's board of directors.

Rent and Other Services

We currently maintain our corporate office at 11500 Olympic Blvd., Suite 400, Los Angeles, California 90064 on a month to month basis. Our monthly rent at
our corporate office is $100. We also rent an office in Westwood, California, from Theorem Group, LLC (“Theorem”), and have the right to use certain other
office facilities pursuant to an unwritten month-to-month facilities sharing arrangement with Theorem Group, LLC. Under this facilities sharing arrangement,
we rent an office (which is principally used by our Chief Financial Officer), and have the right to use Theorem’s other office facilities and services (including
the conference rooms, telecommunications equipment, parking and office staff) for $5,000 per month. As of February 29, 2012, Theorem beneficially owned
approximately 8.6% of our common stock. Since we intend to outsource substantially all of our clinical development work to contract research and
manufacturing providers, we do not have any laboratory facilities. We do not own or lease any other real property.

Amounts due Former Director

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had amounts due a former director of $23,120. The amounts due were unsecured, non-interest bearing and were due
on demand. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company repaid $4,983 of the amount due to the former director and the director forgave the
remainder of the amount due of $18,137, which was recorded as a capital contribution.

Advances to Related Party

The Company had entered into negotiations to obtain a license from OXIS International, Inc., (“Oxis”) a Delaware Corporation, for certain know-how related
to the manufacture and production of an approved veterinary and human pharmaceutical product (NAD/NADA 0045-863) known as Palosein (veterinary) and
Orgotein (human). As part of the license negotiations, the Company provided OXIS with a $50,000 refundable advance against the initial cash licensing fee.
The Company has terminated its discussions with OXIS International, Inc., but the $50,000 advance has not been refunded. The Company’s Chief Executive
Officer/Director was the Chairman of the Board of OXIS and the Company’s Chief Financial Officer/Director of the Company was also the Chief Financial
Officer of OXIS. On October 25, 2011, Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman resigned their positions with OXIS International, Inc. as Chairman of the Board and
Chief Financial Officer, respectively. At December 31, 2011, the Company wrote off the advance due from OXIS.

NOTE 10. EMPLOYMENT AND ADVISORY AGREEMENTS OBLIGATIONS

On February 7, 2011, the Company appointed Anthony Cataldo as the Company’s new President and Chief Executive Officer, and Michael Handelman as the
Company’s new Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary. In addition, on February 7, 2011, both Messrs. Cataldo and Handelman were also appointed
as additional members to the Company’s Board of Directors.
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In connection with the appointments of Messers. Cataldo and Handelman as new directors and executive officers of the Company, on February 7, 2011, the
Company accepted the resignations of the following individuals:

Robert T. Brooke, resigned as the Company’s President, Chief Executive Officer and as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors;

Richard McKilligan, resigned as the Company’s Secretary, Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer and as a member of the Company’s Board of
Directors; and

Mark J. Ahn, resigned as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Neither Messrs. Brooke, McKilligan nor Ahn had any disagreements with the Company on any matter relating to the Company's operations, policies or
practices.

Concurrently with his resignation, Mr. Brooke entered into an advisory agreement with the Company on February 7, 2011. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr.
Brooke agreed to provide to the Company advisory services related to the development of the Company’s therapeutic products for a period of one year
beginning on February 7, 2011, for which he is to receive a monthly cash compensation of $3,750. Pursuant to the advisory agreement, Mr. Brooke agreed to
submit for cancellation 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that he owned.

On February 7, 2011, the Company also entered into an advisory agreement with Richard McKilligan. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. McKilligan has agreed
provide to the Company advisory services related to the Company’s financial accounting and reporting for a three month period beginning on February 7,
2011, for which he was to receive monthly cash compensation of $2,500. The advisory agreement further required Mr. McKilligan to submit for cancellation
1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that he owns.

On October 3, 2011 the Compensation Committee of the Company approved the employment agreements of Mr. Cataldo who serves as the Company’s
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Handelman who serves as a Director as well as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Executive
Vice President and Secretary (the “Employment Agreements”). The respective Employment Agreements were executed on October 3, 2011 and are effective
as of May 1, 2011 (the “Effective Date”) for a term of five (5) years from the Effective Date. Mr. Cataldo will receive an annual base salary of $300,000
under his agreement and has agreed to accrue $5,000 of his base salary each month until such time as he and the Company mutually agree regarding the
payment of same. Mr. Handelman will receive the annual base salary of $120,000 under his agreement and has agreed to accrue $2,500 of his base salary each
month until such time as he and the Company mutually agree regarding the payment of same. Both Mr. Cataldo and Mr. Handelman will have the right to
receive benefits under the Company’s benefit plans, if such plans exist and will have the opportunity to earn performance bonuses as determined by the
Company’s Compensation Committee or any bonus plans then in effect. Additionally, under the terms of the Employment Agreements, Mr. Cataldo and Mr.
Handelman are each entitled to receive 2,500,000 stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock exercisable at $1.25 per share under the
Company’s 2010 Equity Compensation Plan (“2010 Plan”) or any successor to the 2010 Plan. The Options will vest in equal monthly installments over a five
year period commencing on the Effective Date, will be exercisable pursuant to the limitations of the 2010 Plan or any successor, and shall be exercisable for a
maximum of ten years. The Company has also agreed to grant cost free piggyback registration rights for the shares underlying the options.

On February 22, 2011, the Company appointed Dr. L. Stephen Coles to the Company’s Board of Directors. Dr. Coles will receive a monthly payment of
$3,000 for his services to the Company.

On March 16, 2011, the Company appointed Dr. William Andrews to the Company’s Board of Directors. Dr. Andrews will receive a monthly payment of
$3,000 for his services on the Board of Directors of the Company.
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NOTE 11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Effective January 9, 2012 Mr. Hans E. Bishop was appointed as a director of the Company, to serve for a term expiring at the next annual meeting of
stockholders. In connection with his appointment, the Company granted Mr. Bishop options to acquire 200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at
$0.92 per share. The options vest over twelve months and have a term of ten years. On March 21, 2012, the Company appointed Hans E. Bishop as Executive
Chairman of our Board of Directors. Concurrent with Mr. Bishop’s appointment, Anthony J. Cataldo, the Company’s Executive Chairman, resigned as
Chairman and will maintain his positions as a member of the board and executive officer.

On February 12, 2012, the Company entered into a Second Amendment to the Consulting Agreement engaging the Emmes Group Consulting LLC as the
Company’s senior contractor and project manager responsible for the overall management of the design, development, implementation, and installation of our
corporate and regulatory compliant information technology infrastructure and systems. The Second Amendment provides that the term of the consulting
agreement shall continue until December 31, 2015. If Emmes continues to provide consulting services for the company after December 31, 2015, the
engagement shall continue for an unspecified term until terminated at any time by either party with or without cause. Under the Second Amendment, the
consulting fee increased from $20,000 per month to $60,000 per month.

In February 2012 we agreed with the CRT that we would terminate the CRT License Agreement. In connection with the termination of the CRT License
Agreement, we will have to pay the CRT £18,000 (approx. U.S. $29,000) and return to the CRT all rights to the anti-CD55+ related patents and patent
applications that were licensed and transferred to us by the CRT. We also need to pay Nottingham University £16,000 (approx. U.S. $25,000) as
reimbursement for out-of-pocket Anti-CD55+ Antibody Program research-related expenses. Following our termination of the CRT License Agreement, we
will no longer own, or have a license to use, the intellectual property necessary to develop therapeutic products based on the use of anti-CD55+ antibodies
and our sole focus will be on Contego.

Subsequent to December 31, 2011, the Company issued 49,504 shares of common stock to the principals of an investor relations firm in satisfaction of
amounts owed of $50,000 under their consulting contract.

In February 2012, the Company sold 250,000 shares of its common stock and a five-year warrant to purchase 250,000 shares to a single accredited investor
for $250,000. On the date of the foregoing sale, the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock was above $1.00 per share and, therefore, such sale
would have triggered the foregoing conversion and exercise price adjustments and would have significantly reduced the conversion price of the Notes and the
exercise price of the accompanying warrants. However, the holders of the Notes waived the conversion and exercise price adjustments with respect to the
$250,000 sale of common stock and warrants. No assurance can be given that the holders of the Notes will waive any future sale that triggers the conversion
and exercise price adjustment provisions.
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NOTE 12. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
The following tables contain selected quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 that have been prepared on the same basis as
the accompanying audited financial statements and include all adjustments necessary for a fair statement, in all material respects, of the information set forth

therein on a consistent basis:

Year Ended December 31, 2011

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Net sales $ - 3 - 8 - 8 -
Gross profit - - - -
Net loss (564,296) (10,959,741) (5,818,478) (8,351,585)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted (a) (0.01) (0.15) (0.07) (0.11)

Year Ended December 31, 2010

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Net sales $ - 8 - 8 - 8 -
Gross profit - - - -
Net loss (67,680) (84,629) (713,757) (741,922)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted (a) - - (0.01) (0.01)

(a) The sum of the quarterly net loss per share, basic and diluted, may not equal the fiscal year amount due to rounding and use of weight average shares
outstanding.
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THIS WARRANT HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "1933 ACT"), OR ANY
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND MAY NOT BE SOLD OR TRANSFERRED UNLESS SUCH SALE OR TRANSFER IS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH ACT AND APPLICABLE LAWS OR SOME OTHER EXEMPTION FROM
THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH ACT AND APPLICABLE LAWS IS AVAILABLE WITH RESPECT THERETO.

COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT

Number of Shares: 100,000
Common Stock

GEeNEsIs BiopHARMA, INC.
Void after February 15, 2021

1. Issuance. This Common Stock Purchase Warrant (the "Warrant") is issued by Genesis BiopHARMA, INc., a Nevada corporation (hereinafter
with its successors called the "Company") to Emmes Group Consulting LLC, a California limited liability company, (hereinafter with its successors and
assigns the registered holder of this Warrant or the "Holder™).

2, Purchase Price; Number of Shares. The Holder, commencing on the date hereof, is entitled upon surrender of this Warrant with the
subscription form annexed hereto duly executed, at the principal office of the Company, to purchase from the Company, at a price per share of $1.26 (the
"Purchase Price"), One Hundred Thousand (100,000) fully paid and nonassessable shares of the Company's Common Stock (the "Common Stock").

Until such time as this Warrant is exercised in full or expires, the Purchase Price and the securities issuable upon exercise of this Warrant are subject to
adjustment as hereinafter provided. The person or persons in whose name or names any certificate representing shares of Common Stock is issued hereunder
shall be deemed to have become the holder of record of the shares represented thereby as at the close of business on the date this Warrant is exercised with
respect to such shares, whether or not the transfer books of the Company shall be closed.

3. Payment of Purchase Price. The Purchase Price may be paid (i) in cash or by check, or (ii) by any combination of the foregoing.

4. Net Issue Election. The Holder may elect to receive, without the payment by the Holder of any additional consideration, shares of Common
Stock equal to the value of this Warrant or any portion hereof by the surrender of this Warrant or such portion to the Company, with the net issue election
notice annexed hereto duly executed, at the principal office of the Company. Thereupon, the Company shall issue to the Holder such number of fully paid and
nonassessable shares of Common Stock as is computed using the following formula:

X = Y(A-B)
A
where: X = the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued to the Holder pursuant to this Section 4.
Y = the number of shares of Common Stock covered by this Warrant in respect of which the net issue election is made pursuant to

this Section 4.




A= the Fair Market Value (defined below) of one share of Common Stock, as determined at the time the net issue election is
made pursuant to this Section 4.

B= the Purchase Price in effect under this Warrant at the time the net issue election is made pursuant to this Section 4.
"Fair Market Value" of a share of Common Stock as of the date that the net issue election is made (the "Determination Date") shall mean:

(i) If the net issue election is made in connection with and contingent upon the closing of the sale of the Company's Common Stock to
the public in a public offering pursuant to a Registration Statement under the 1933 Act (a "Public Offering"), and if the Company's Registration Statement
relating to such Public Offering ("Registration Statement") has been declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission, then the initial "Price to
Public" specified in the final prospectus with respect to such offering.

(ii) If the net issue election is not made in connection with and contingent upon a Public Offering, then as follows:

(@) If traded on a securities exchange or the Nasdaq National Market, the fair market value of the Common Stock shall be
deemed to be the average of the closing or last reported sale prices of the Common Stock on such exchange or market over the five day period ending five
trading days prior to the Determination Date;

(b) If otherwise traded in an over-the-counter market, the fair market value of the Common Stock shall be deemed to be the
average of the closing ask prices of the Common Stock over the five day period ending five trading days prior to the Determination Date; and

(o) If there is no public market for the Common Stock, then fair market value shall be determined in good faith by the
Company's Board of Directors.

5. Partial Exercise. This Warrant may be exercised in part, and the Holder shall be entitled to receive a new warrant, which shall be dated as of
the date of this Warrant, covering the number of shares in respect of which this Warrant shall not have been exercised.

6. Fractional Shares. In no event shall any fractional share of Common Stock be issued upon any exercise of this Warrant. If, upon exercise of
this Warrant in its entirety, the Holder would, except as provided in this Section 6, be entitled to receive a fractional share of Common Stock, then the
Company shall issue the next higher number of full shares of Common Stock, issuing a full share with respect to such fractional share.

7. Expiration Date; Automatic Exercise. This Warrant shall expire at the close of business on February 12, 2021 (the "Expiration
Date"). Notwithstanding the term of this Warrant fixed pursuant to this Section 7 and provided Holder has received advance notice of at least five (5) days
and has not earlier converted, this Warrant shall automatically be converted pursuant to Section 4 hereof, without any action by Holder upon the closing of a
sale of all or substantially all of the Company's assets, or the merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another corporation (other than a merger or
consolidation for the principle purpose of changing the domicile of Company), that results in the transfer of fifty per cent (50%) or more of the outstanding
voting power of the Company (collectively a "Merger"). Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Warrant shall automatically be deemed to be exercised in full
pursuant to the provisions of Section 4 hereof, without any further action on behalf of the Holder, immediately prior to the time this Warrant would otherwise
expire pursuant to this Section 7.

8. Reserved Shares; Valid Issuance. The Company covenants that it will at all times from and after the date hereof reserve and keep available
such number of its authorized shares of Common Stock free from all preemptive or similar rights therein, as will be sufficient to permit, respectively, the
exercise of this Warrant in full. The Company further covenants that such shares as may be issued pursuant to such exercise will, upon issuance, be duly and
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and charges with respect to the issuance thereof.




9. Stock Splits and Dividends. If after the date hereof the Company shall subdivide the Common Stock, by split-up or otherwise, or combine
the Common Stock, or issue additional shares of Common Stock in payment of a stock dividend on the Common Stock, the number of shares of Common
Stock issuable on the exercise of this Warrant shall forthwith be proportionately increased in the case of a subdivision or stock dividend, or proportionately
decreased in the case of a combination, and the Purchase Price shall forthwith be proportionately decreased in the case of a subdivision or stock dividend, or
proportionately increased in the case of a combination.

10. Certificate of Adjustment. Whenever the Purchase Price is adjusted, as herein provided, the Company shall promptly deliver to the Holder
a certificate of the Company's chief financial officer or chief executive officer setting forth the Purchase Price after such adjustment and setting forth a brief
statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.

11. Amendment. The terms of this Warrant may be amended, modified or waived only with the written consent of the Holder and Company.

12. Representations and Covenants of the Holder. This Warrant has been entered into by the Company in reliance upon the following
representations and covenants of the Holder, which by its execution hereof the Holder hereby confirms:

(@) Investment Purpose. The right to acquire Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Holder's rights contained herein will be
acquired for investment and not with a view to the sale or distribution of any part thereof, and the Holder has no present intention of selling or engaging in
any public distribution of the same except pursuant to a registration or exemption.

(b) Accredited Investor. Holder is an "accredited investor" within the meaning of the Securities and Exchange Rule 501 of
Regulation D, as presently in effect.

(0 Private Issue. The Holder understands (i) that the Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Holder's rights contained herein is
not registered under the 1933 Act or qualified under applicable state securities laws on the ground that the issuance contemplated by this Warrant will be
exempt from the registration and qualifications requirements thereof, and (ii) that the Company's reliance on such exemption is predicated on the
representations set forth in this Section 12.

(d) Financial Risk. The Holder has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be capable of evaluating
the merits and risks of its investment and has the ability to bear the economic risks of its investment.

13. Notices, Transfers, Etc.

(@) Any notice or written communication required or permitted to be given to the Holder may be given by certified mail or delivered
to the Holder at the address most recently provided by the Holder to the Company.

(b) Subject to compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws, this Warrant may be transferred by the Holder with respect
to any or all of the shares purchasable hereunder; provided, however, this Warrant may not be transferred to a direct competitor of the Company (as
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company) without the prior written consent of the Company. Upon surrender of this Warrant to the
Company, together with the assignment notice annexed hereto duly executed, for transfer of this Warrant as an entirety by the Holder, the Company shall
issue a new warrant of the same denomination to the assignee. Upon surrender of this Warrant to the Company, together with the assignment hereof properly
endorsed, by the Holder for transfer with respect to a portion of the shares of Common Stock purchasable hereunder, the Company shall issue a new warrant
to the assignee, in such denomination as shall be requested by the Holder hereof, and shall issue to such Holder a new warrant covering the number of shares
in respect of which this Warrant shall not have been transferred.




(o) In case this Warrant shall be mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company shall issue a new warrant of like tenor and
denomination and deliver the same (i) in exchange and substitution for and upon surrender and cancellation of any mutilated Warrant, or (ii) in lieu of any
Warrant lost, stolen or destroyed, upon receipt of an affidavit of the Holder or other evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft or
destruction of such Warrant.

14. Governing Law. The provisions and terms of this Warrant shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the
State of Delaware without giving effect to its principles regarding conflicts of laws.

15. Successors and Assigns. This Warrant shall be binding upon the Company's successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the
Holder's successors, legal representatives and permitted assigns.

16. Business Days. If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action required or the expiration of any rights granted herein shall be a

Saturday or Sunday or a legal holiday in California, then such action may be taken or right may be exercised on the next succeeding day which is not a
Saturday or Sunday or such a legal holiday.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be signed by its duly authorized officers this 15t day of February, 2011.
For GEeNEsis BiopHARMA, INC.

By:

Name: Anthony J. Cataldo

Title: Chairman & Chief Executive Officer




Subscription Agreement

To:

Date:

The undersigned hereby subscribes for shares of Common Stock covered by this Warrant. The certificate(s) for such shares shall be
issued in the name of the undersigned or as otherwise indicated below:

Signature

Name for Registration

Mailing Address




Net Issue Election Notice

To: Date:

The undersigned hereby elects under Section 4 to surrender the right to purchase shares of Common Stock pursuant to this Warrant. The certificate(s) for such
shares issuable upon such net issue election shall be issued in the name of the undersigned or as otherwise indicated below:

Signature

Name for Registration

Mailing Address




Assignment

For value received hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

[Please print or typewrite name and address of Assignee]

the within Warrant, and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

on the books of the within named Company with full power of substitution on the premises.

Dated:

Signature

Name for Registration

In the Presence of:

its attorney to transfer the within Warrant




SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED FEBRUARY 15, 2011
BY AND BETWEEN
EMMES GROUP CONSULTING LLC
AND
GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE CONSULTING AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) dated February 12, 2012 (“Effective Date”) is made and
entered into by and between Emmes Group Consulting LLC, having its principle place of business at 92 Natoma Street, Suite 200, San Francisco, CA 94105,
(hereinafter referred to as “EMMES”), and Genesis Biopharma, Inc., a Nevada Corporation, a having a principal place of business at 10880 Wilshire Blvd.,
Suite 950, Los Angeles, CA 90024 (hereinafter referred to as “GENESIS”).

All capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall have the same meanings given such terms in the CONSULTING AGREEMENT (as hereinafter
defined) unless expressly superseded by the terms of this Amendment.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2011, EMMES and GENESIS entered into that certain Consulting Agreement (the “Agreement”), pursuant to the terms
of which EMMES agreed to provide certain consulting services to GENESIS;

WHEREAS, the Agreement sets forth certain amounts of compensation to paid by GENESIS to EMMES; and,
WHEREAS, EMMES and GENESIS now desire to enter into this Amendment for the purposes of amending the Agreement, as hereinafter set forth.
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants contained herein, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1(b) shall now read:

(b) Term of Engagement. Unless terminated earlier as provided herein, the term of the Engagement shall commence effective as of February 15, 2011 and
shall continue until December 31, 2015 (the “Termination Date”). If Consultant continues to perform consulting services for the Company after the
Termination Date, then, unless otherwise agreed in writing, (i) the Engagement shall continue for an unspecified term at the compensation rate set forth in
Section 3(a)(i) herein, and (ii) either party may terminate the Engagement immediately with our without cause by giving the other party written notice of
termination.

Section 3(a)(i) shall now read:

(i) Sixty Thousand Dollars ($60,000) per month commencing February 15, 2012 and ending on the Termination Date; and,




Section 3(b) shall now read:

(b) Payment Schedule. The Company shall make payment to Consultant by bank wire transfer in the lawful currency of the United States of America on the
tenth (10th) day of each month during the term of the Engagement.

Sections 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(ii) are deleted in their entirety.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, both EMMES and GENESIS have executed this First Amendment to the Consulting Agreement by their duly authorized
representatives.

FOR EMMES GROUP CONSULTING LLC: FOR GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.:
Martin F. Schroeder Anthony J. Cataldo

EVP & Managing Director Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Title Title

Date Date




AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED FEBRUARY 15, 2011
BY AND BETWEEN
EMMES GROUP CONSULTING LLC
AND
GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE EXCLUSIVE LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) dated August 1, 2011 (“Effective Date”) is made
and entered into by and between Emmes Group Consulting LLC, having its principle place of business at 92 Natoma Street, Suite 200, San Francisco, CA
94105, (hereinafter referred to as “EMMES”), and Genesis Biopharma, Inc., a Nevada Corporation, a having a principal place of business at 10880 Wilshire
Blvd., Suite 950, Los Angeles, CA 90024 (hereinafter referred to as “GENESIS”).

All capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall have the same meanings given such terms in the Exclusive License Agreement (as hereinafter
defined) unless expressly superseded by the terms of this Amendment.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2011, EMMES and GENESIS entered into that certain Consulting Agreement (the “Agreement”), pursuant to the terms
of which EMMES agreed to provide certain consulting services to GENESIS;

WHEREAS, the Agreement sets forth certain amounts of compensation to paid by GENESIS to EMMES; and,
WHEREAS, EMMES and GENESIS now desire to enter into this Amendment for the purposes of amending the Agreement, as hereinafter set forth.
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants contained herein, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1(b) shall now read:

(b) Term of Engagement. Unless terminated earlier as provided herein, the term of the Engagement shall commence effective as of February 15, 2011 and
shall continue until December 31, 2011 (the “Termination Date”). If Consultant continues to perform consulting services for the Company after the
Termination Date, then, unless otherwise agreed in writing, (i) the Engagement shall continue for an unspecified term at the compensation rate set forth in
Section 3(a)(i) herein, and (ii) either party may terminate the Engagement immediately with our without cause by giving the other party written notice of
termination.

Section 3(a)(i) shall now read:
(i) Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000) per month commencing July 11, 2011 and ending on the Termination Date; and,
Section 3(b) shall now read:

(b) Payment Schedule. The Company shall make payment to Consultant by bank wire transfer in the lawful currency of the United States of America on the
tenth (10th) day of each month during the term of the Engagement.

Sections 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(ii) are deleted in their entirety.




SIGNATURE PAGE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, both EMMES and GENESIS have executed this First Amendment to the Consulting Agreement by their duly authorized
representatives.

FOR EMMES GROUP CONSULTING LLC: FOR GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.:
Martin F. Schroeder Anthony J. Cataldo

EVP & Managing Director Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Title Title

Date Date




CONSULTING AGREEMENT

This Consulting Agreement(the “Agreement”) is made as of this ___day of 2011 by and between Theorem Capital, LL.C, a California
limited liability company with offices at 10880 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 950, Los Angeles, CA 90024 (the “Consultant”) and Genesis Biopharma, Inc., a Nevada
corporation with offices at 11500 Olympic Blvd, Suite 400 Los Angeles, Ca 90064 (the “Company”).

WHEREAS, Consultant has substantial expertise that be useful to the Company, which the Company desires to obtain; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires Consultant to provide certain consulting services to the Company and Consultant is agreeable to performing such
services for the Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, inconsideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter stated, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. APPOINTMENT.

The Company hereby engages Consultant and Consultant agrees to render services to the Company as a consultant upon the terms and conditions
hereinafter set forth.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of this Agreement as set forth above and shall terminate on the sixth (Gth) month anniversary
of the date of this Agreement, unless terminated or extended in accordance with a valid provision contained herein or by a subsequent agreement between the
parties.

3. SERVICES.

During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall assist the Company in general corporate activities including but not limited to strategic and
financial planning; management and business operations; financial projections and investor presentation materials; and any other consulting or advisory
services which the Company reasonably requests that Consultant provide to the Company.

4. DUTIES OF THE COMPANY.

The Company shall provide Consultant, on a regular and timely basis, with all approved data and information about it, its subsidiaries, its
management, its products and services and its operations shall be reasonably requested by Consultant, and shall advise Consultant of any facts which would
affect the accuracy of any data and information previously supplied pursuant to this paragraph. The Company shall promptly supply Consultant with full and
complete copies of all financial reports, all filings with all federal and state securities agencies; with all data and information supplied by any financial
analyst, and with all brochures or other sales materials relating to its products or services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not provide
Consultant with any information which is considered to be material non-public information.

5. COMPENSATION.

Upon the execution of this Agreement, Company agrees to pay Consultant the following as consideration for the services rendered under this
Agreement:




(©) The Company shall immediately, but in no event later than three (3) business days following the date of this Agreement, issue to Consultant
a warrant to purchase 1,500,000 shares of common stock of the Company (the “Warrant”). The Warrant will be available for exercise for a period of five years
and have an exercise price of $1.50 per share.

(b) The underlying common-stock of the Warrant shall be included the Company’s existing shelf registration.
6. BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF SHARES.

Consultant’s beneficial ownership of common stock of the Company shall not exceed 4.99% of the outstanding Shares the Company’s common
stock. For purposes of this paragraph, beneficial ownership shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and Regulations 13D-G thereunder. Consultant may waive the limitations set forth herein to increase its beneficial ownership to 9.9% with sixty-
one (61) days written notice to the Company.

7. COSTS AND EXPENSES.

Subject to the prior approval of the Company, which approval shall not be reasonably withheld, Consultant in providing the foregoing services shall
not be responsible for any out-of-pocket costs, including, without limitation, travel, lodging, telephone, postage and Federal Express charges. Consultant shall
provide the Company with detailed accounting of monthly expenses related to the Agreement. Payment for these expenses shall be made to Consultant within
15 days after submission to the Company.

8. INDEMNIFICATION.

(a) The Company agrees to indemnify, defend, and shall not hold harmless Consultant and/or his agents, and to defend any action brought
against said parties with respect to any claim, demand cause of action, debt or liability, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent that such action us
based upon a claim that: (i) is true, (ii) would constitute a breach of any of the Company’s representations, warranties, or agreements hereunder, or (iii) arises
out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the Company, or any of the Company’s content to be provided by the Company and does not violate any rights
of third parties, including, without limitation, rights of publicity, privacy, patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, and/or licenses.

(b) Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend and shall hold harmless the Company, its directors, employees and agents, and defend any action
brought against same with respect to any claim, demand, cause of action, or liability, including reasonable attorneys’ fee, to the extent that such an action
arises out of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Consultant.

(o) Notice. In claiming indemnification hereunder, the indemnified party shall promptly provide the indemnifying party with written notice of
any claim, which the indemnified party believes falls within the scope of the foregoing paragraphs. The indemnified party may, at its expense, assist in the
defense if it so chooses, provided that the indemnifying party shall control such defense, and all negotiations relative to the settlement of any such claim. Any
settlement intended to bind the indemnified party shall not be final without the indemnified party’s written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.

It is understood and agreed that Consultant will for all purposes hereof be deemed to be an independent contractor and will not, unless otherwise
expressly authorized by the Company, have any authority to act for or represent the Company in any way, execute any transaction on behalf of the Company
or otherwise de deemed an agent of the Company. No federal, state or local withholding deductions will be withheld from any amounts owed by the Company
to Consultant hereunder unless otherwise required by law.




10. CONFIDENTIALITY.

The Company agrees that it will not disclose, and will not include in any public announcement, the name of the Consultant, unless expressly agreed
to by the Consultant or unless and until such disclosure is required by law or applicable regulation, and the only to the extent of such requirement.

11. MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) Termination. Subsequent to and no less than 30 days after the execution of this Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated by either Party
upon written notice to the other Party for any reason. The termination shall be effective within five (5) business days from the date of such notice.
Termination of this Agreement shall cause Consultant to cease providing services under this Agreement; however, termination for any reason whatsoever
shall not decrease or eliminate the compensatory obligations of the Company as outlined in Section 5 of this Agreement.

(b) Modification. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement
may be amended only in writing signed by both Parties.

(o) Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be mailed or otherwise delivered in person or by
facsimile transmission at the address of such party set forth above or to such other address or facsimile telephone number as the party shall have furnished in
writing to the other party.

(d) Notice. In claiming indemnification hereunder, the indemnified party shall promptly provide the indemnifying party with written notice of
any claim, which the indemnified party believes falls within the scope of the foregoing paragraphs. The indemnified party may, at its expense, assist in the
defense if it so chooses, provided that the indemnifying party shall control such defense, and all negotiations relative to the settlement of any such claim. Any
settlement intended to bind the indemnified party shall not be final without the indemnified party’s written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

(e) Assignment. The Shares granted under this Agreement are assignable at the sole discretion of the Consultant.

® Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the balance of this Agreement shall remain in effect, and
if any provision is inapplicable to any person or circumstance, it shall nevertheless remain applicable to all other persons and circumstances.

(g) Disagreements. Any dispute or other disagreement arising from or out of this Agreement shall be submitted to arbitration under the rules of
the American Arbitration Association and the decision of the arbiter(s) shall be enforceable in any court having jurisdiction thereof. Arbitration shall occur
only in Los Angeles, California. The interpretation and the enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of this State of California as applied
to residents of the State of California relating to contracts executed in and to be performed solely within the State of California. In the event any dispute is
arbitrated, the prevailing party (as determined by the arbiter(s)) shall be entitled to recover that party’s reasonable attorney’s fees incurred (as determined by
the arbiter(s)).

Each party may sign identical counterparts of this Agreement with the same effect as if both parties signed the same document. A copy of this
Agreement signed by one party and delivered by facsimile or electronic transmission to the other party shall have the same effect as the delivery of an original
of this Agreement containing the original signature of such party.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the Parties as of the date first above written.

GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC. BRISTOL CAPITAL, LLC

Name Name: Paul Kessler
Title Title: Manager




CONSULTING AGREEMENT

This Consulting Agreement(the “Agreement”) is made as of this ___day of 2011 by and between Bristol Capital, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company with offices at 6353 W. Sunset Blvd., Suite 4006, Hollywood, CA 90028 (the “Consultant”) and Genesis Biopharma, Inc., a Nevada
corporation with offices at 11500 Olympic Blvd, Suite 400 Los Angeles, Ca 90064 (the “Company”).

WHEREAS, Consultant has substantial expertise that be useful to the Company, which the Company desires to obtain; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires Consultant to provide certain consulting services to the Company and Consultant is agreeable to performing such
services for the Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, inconsideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter stated, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. APPOINTMENT.

The Company hereby engages Consultant and Consultant agrees to render services to the Company as a consultant upon the terms and conditions
hereinafter set forth.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of this Agreement as set forth above and shall terminate on the sixth (Gth) month anniversary
of the date of this Agreement, unless terminated or extended in accordance with a valid provision contained herein or by a subsequent agreement between the
parties.

3. SERVICES.

During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall assist the Company in general corporate activities including but not limited to strategic and
financial planning; management and business operations; financial projections and investor presentation materials; and any other consulting or advisory
services which the Company reasonably requests that Consultant provide to the Company.

4. DUTIES OF THE COMPANY.

The Company shall provide Consultant, on a regular and timely basis, with all approved data and information about it, its subsidiaries, its
management, its products and services and its operations shall be reasonably requested by Consultant, and shall advise Consultant of any facts which would
affect the accuracy of any data and information previously supplied pursuant to this paragraph. The Company shall promptly supply Consultant with full and
complete copies of all financial reports, all filings with all federal and state securities agencies; with all data and information supplied by any financial
analyst, and with all brochures or other sales materials relating to its products or services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not provide
Consultant with any information which is considered to be material non-public information.

5. COMPENSATION.

Upon the execution of this Agreement, Company agrees to pay Consultant the following as consideration for the services rendered under this
Agreement:




(@)  The Company shall immediately, but in no event later than three (3) business days following the date of this Agreement, issue to Consultant a
warrant to purchase 1,500,000 shares of common stock of the Company (the “Warrant”). The Warrant will be available for exercise for a period of five years
and have an exercise price of $1.50 per share.

(b) The underlying common-stock of the Warrant shall be included the Company’s existing shelf registration.
6. BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF SHARES.

Consultant’s beneficial ownership of common stock of the Company shall not exceed 4.99% of the outstanding Shares the Company’s common
stock. For purposes of this paragraph, beneficial ownership shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and Regulations 13D-G thereunder. Consultant may waive the limitations set forth herein to increase its beneficial ownership to 9.9% with sixty-
one (61) days written notice to the Company.

7. COSTS AND EXPENSES.

Subject to the prior approval of the Company, which approval shall not be reasonably withheld, Consultant in providing the foregoing services shall
not be responsible for any out-of-pocket costs, including, without limitation, travel, lodging, telephone, postage and Federal Express charges. Consultant shall
provide the Company with detailed accounting of monthly expenses related to the Agreement. Payment for these expenses shall be made to Consultant within
15 days after submission to the Company.

8. INDEMNIFICATION.

(@)  The Company agrees to indemnify, defend, and shall not hold harmless Consultant and/or his agents, and to defend any action brought against
said parties with respect to any claim, demand cause of action, debt or liability, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent that such action us based
upon a claim that: (i) is true, (ii) would constitute a breach of any of the Company’s representations, warranties, or agreements hereunder, or (iii) arises out of
the negligence or willful misconduct of the Company, or any of the Company’s content to be provided by the Company and does not violate any rights of
third parties, including, without limitation, rights of publicity, privacy, patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, and/or licenses.

(b) Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend and shall hold harmless the Company, its directors, employees and agents, and defend any action
brought against same with respect to any claim, demand, cause of action, or liability, including reasonable attorneys’ fee, to the extent that such an action
arises out of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Consultant.

(c)  Notice. In claiming indemnification hereunder, the indemnified party shall promptly provide the indemnifying party with written notice of
any claim, which the indemnified party believes falls within the scope of the foregoing paragraphs. The indemnified party may, at its expense, assist in the
defense if it so chooses, provided that the indemnifying party shall control such defense, and all negotiations relative to the settlement of any such claim. Any
settlement intended to bind the indemnified party shall not be final without the indemnified party’s written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.

It is understood and agreed that Consultant will for all purposes hereof be deemed to be an independent contractor and will not, unless otherwise
expressly authorized by the Company, have any authority to act for or represent the Company in any way, execute any transaction on behalf of the Company
or otherwise de deemed an agent of the Company. No federal, state or local withholding deductions will be withheld from any amounts owed by the Company
to Consultant hereunder unless otherwise required by law.




10. CONFIDENTIALITY.

The Company agrees that it will not disclose, and will not include in any public announcement, the name of the Consultant, unless expressly agreed
to by the Consultant or unless and until such disclosure is required by law or applicable regulation, and the only to the extent of such requirement.

11. MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) Termination. Subsequent to and no less than 30 days after the execution of this Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated by either
Party upon written notice to the other Party for any reason. The termination shall be effective within five (5) business days from the date of such notice.
Termination of this Agreement shall cause Consultant to cease providing services under this Agreement; however, termination for any reason whatsoever shall
not decrease or eliminate the compensatory obligations of the Company as outlined in Section 5 of this Agreement.

(b) Modification. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement
may be amended only in writing signed by both Parties.

(o) Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be mailed or otherwise delivered in person or by
facsimile transmission at the address of such party set forth above or to such other address or facsimile telephone number as the party shall have furnished in
writing to the other party.

(d) Notice. In claiming indemnification hereunder, the indemnified party shall promptly provide the indemnifying party with written notice of
any claim, which the indemnified party believes falls within the scope of the foregoing paragraphs. The indemnified party may, at its expense, assist in the
defense if it so chooses, provided that the indemnifying party shall control such defense, and all negotiations relative to the settlement of any such claim. Any
settlement intended to bind the indemnified party shall not be final without the indemnified party’s written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

(e) Assignment. The Shares granted under this Agreement are assignable at the sole discretion of the Consultant.

® Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the balance of this Agreement shall remain in effect, and
if any provision is inapplicable to any person or circumstance, it shall nevertheless remain applicable to all other persons and circumstances.

(g) Disagreements. Any dispute or other disagreement arising from or out of this Agreement shall be submitted to arbitration under the rules of
the American Arbitration Association and the decision of the arbiter(s) shall be enforceable in any court having jurisdiction thereof. Arbitration shall occur
only in Los Angeles, California. The interpretation and the enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of this State of California as applied
to residents of the State of California relating to contracts executed in and to be performed solely within the State of California. In the event any dispute is
arbitrated, the prevailing party (as determined by the arbiter(s)) shall be entitled to recover that party’s reasonable attorney’s fees incurred (as determined by
the arbiter(s)).

Each party may sign identical counterparts of this Agreement with the same effect as if both parties signed the same document. A copy of this
Agreement signed by one party and delivered by facsimile or electronic transmission to the other party shall have the same effect as the delivery of an original
of this Agreement containing the original signature of such party.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the Parties as of the date first above written.

GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC. BRISTOL CAPITAL, LLC

Name: Name: Paul Kessler
Title: Title: Manager




MANUFACTURING SERVICES AGREEMENT
This Manufacturing Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of December __, 2011 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Lonza Walkersville,
Inc., a Delaware corporation having its principal place of business at 8830 Biggs Ford Road, Walkersville, Maryland 21793 (“LWI”), and Genesis
Biopharma, Inc., a Nevada corporation having its principal place of business at 11500 Olympic Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90064 (“CLIENT”) (each of LWI
and CLIENT, a “Party” and, collectively, the “Parties”).
RECITALS
A. LWI operates a multi-client production facility located at 8830 Biggs Ford Road, Walkersville, Maryland 21793 (the “Facility”).

B. CLIENT desires to have LWI produce a product containing human cells and intended for therapeutic use in humans, and LWI desires to produce such
product.

C. CLIENT desires to have LWI conduct work according to individual Statement of Work, as further defined in Section 1.30 below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, LWI and CLIENT, intending to be
legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

AGREEMENT
1. DEFINITIONS

When used in this Agreement, capitalized terms will have the meanings as defined below and throughout the Agreement. Unless the context indicates
otherwise, the singular will include the plural and the plural will include the singular.

1.1. “Acceptance Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.2.2.

1.2. “Affiliate” means, with respect to either Party, any other corporation or business entity that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such Party. For purposes of this definition, the term “control” and, with correlative meanings, the
terms “controlled by” and “under common control with” means direct or indirect ownership of more than fifty percent (50%) of the securities or other
ownership interests representing the equity voting stock or general partnership or membership interest of such entity or the power to direct or cause the

direction of the management or policies of such entity, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise.

1.3. “Batch” means a specific quantity of Product that is intended to have uniform character and quality, within specified limits, and is produced according to
a single manufacturing order during the same cycle of manufacture

1.4. “Batch Record” means the production record pertaining to a Batch.

1.5. “cGMP” means the regulatory requirements for current good manufacturing practices promulgated by the FDA under 21 CFR Parts 210 and 211, as
amended from time to time.

1.6. “Change Order” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

1.7. “CLIENT Development Materials” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.




1.8. “CLIENT Inventions” means any know-how or inventions, whether or not patentable, conceived, developed or reduced to practice by CLIENT on or
before the Effective Date.

1.9. “CLIENT Materials” means the CLIENT Development Materials and the CLIENT Production Materials.
1.10. “CLIENT Personnel” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.8.1.
1.11. “CLIENT Production Materials” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2.

1.12. “Commencement Date” means the date set forth in the Statement of Work, based on a Draft Plan, for the commencement of the production of the
Product.

1.13. “Confidential Information” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.1.

1.14. “Disapproval Notice” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.2.2.

1.15. “Draft Plan” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

1.16. “FDA” means the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, and any successor agency thereof.

1.17. “First Statement of Work” has the meaning set forth in the definition of Statement of Work.

1.18. “LWI Operating Documents” means the standard operating procedures, standard manufacturing procedures, raw material specifications, protocols,
validation documentation, and supporting documentation used by LWI, such as environmental monitoring, for operation and maintenance of the Facility and
LWI equipment used in the process of producing the Product, excluding any of the foregoing that are unique to the manufacture of Product.

1.19. “LLWI Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.2.

1.20. “Master Production Record” means the documentation developed by LWI that contains a detailed description of a Process and any other instructions
to be followed by LWI in the production of a Product.

1.21. “Materials” means all raw materials and supplies to be used in the production of a Product.

1.22. “Process” means the manufacturing process for a Product developed by LWI pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

1.23. “Product” means CLIENT’s Contego autologous cell therapy product and any such other product as set forth in a Statement of Work.

1.24. “Product Warranties” means those warranties as specifically stated in Section 5.2.2.

1.25. “Production Term” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.4.

1.26. “Quality Agreement” means the Quality Agreement entered into by the Parties simultaneously with the execution hereof relating to a Product.
1.27. “Regulatory Approval” means the approval by the FDA to market and sell the Product in the United States.

1.28. “SOP” means a standard operating procedure.




1.29. “Specifications” means the Product specifications set forth in the Statement of Work or as modified by the Parties in connection with the production of
a particular Batch of Product hereunder.

1.30. “Statement of Work” means a plan to develop a Process or Product that is attached hereto as Appendix A or later becomes attached through an
amendment by the Parties. The first Statement of Work, which is attached hereto, is numbered Appendix A-1 and is hereby incorporated and made a part of
this Agreement (the “First Statement of Work”). It is contemplated that each separate project shall have its own Statement of Work. As each subsequent
Statement of Work is agreed to by the Parties, each shall state that it is to be incorporated and made a part of this Agreement and shall be consecutively
numbered as A-2, A-3, etc.

1.31. “Suite” means one LWI cGMP compliant manufacturing unit space suitable for the production of cellular therapies.
1.32. “Suite Fee” means the one month fee associated with use of a Suite for the manufacture of Product by LWI.

1.33. “Technology Transfer” means the transfer of documentation, specifications, and production process by CLIENT to LWI for the development of the
Master Production Record for the manufacturing of the Product specifically for the CLIENT.

1.34. “Third Party” means any party other than LWI, CLIENT or their respective Affiliates.

2. STATEMENTS OF WORK - PROCESS AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT; TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER; PROCESS OR PRODUCT
MANUFACTURE

2.1 Statement of Work. Prior to performing any Process or Product development, Technology Transfer, or Process or Product manufacture, the Parties will
collaborate to develop a Statement of Work, describing the activities to be performed by the Parties, or to be subcontracted by LWI to Third Parties. Once
agreed to by the Parties, the Statement of Work shall be executed by each of the Parties and appended hereto as part of Appendix A. In the event of a conflict
between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any Statement of Work, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall control.

2.2 Modification of Statement of Work. Should CLIENT want to change a Statement of Work or to include additional services to be provided by LWI,
CLIENT may propose to LWI an amendment to the Statement of Work with the desired changes or additional services (“Change Order”). If LWI determines
that it has the resources and capabilities to accommodate such Change Order, LWI will prepare a modified version of the Statement of Work reflecting such
Change Order (including, without limitation, any changes to the estimated timing, estimated charges or scope of a project) and will submit such modified
version of the Statement of Work to CLIENT for review and comment. The modified Statement of Work shall be binding on the Parties only if it refers to this
Agreement, states that it is to be made a part thereof, and is signed by both Parties. Thereafter such modified version of the Statement of Work will be deemed
to have replaced the prior version of the Statement of Work. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a modified version of the Statement of Work is not agreed to by
both Parties, the existing Statement of Work shall remain in effect.

2.3 CLIENT Deliverables. Within the time period specified in a Statement of Work, CLIENT will provide LWI with (a) the materials listed in the Statement
of Work for which CLIENT is responsible for delivering to LWI, and any handling instructions, protocols, SOPs and other documentation necessary to
maintain the properties of such materials for the performance of the Statement of Work, and (b) any protocols, SOPs and other information and
documentation in possession or control of CLIENT and necessary for the performance of the Statement of Work, and for the preparation of the Master
Production Record in conformance with cGMP, including, without limitation, process information, SOPs, development data and reports, quality control
assays, raw material specifications (including vendor, grade and sampling/testing requirements), product and sample packing and shipping instructions, and
product specific cleaning and decontamination information, (collectively, the “CLIENT Development Materials”).




2.4 Performance by LWI. Subject to the provision by CLIENT of the CLIENT Development Materials pursuant to Section 2.3, LWI will use commercially
reasonable efforts to perform, directly or, subject to the terms of the Statement of Work or approval by CLIENT (such approval not to be unreasonably
withheld), through a Third Party contractor, the work described in a Statement of Work in a professional and workmanlike manner in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement. LWI will use commercially reasonable efforts promptly to notify CLIENT of any material delays that arise during the performance
of the Statement of Work.

2.5 Additional Services. LWI shall make process development services and its subject-matter experts in the areas of process improvement and manufacturing
cost reduction reasonably available to CLIENT during the Term on a fee-for-service basis at then-current commercial rates.

3. TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER

3.1 Based on the information provided by CLIENT and including process changes developed by LWI pursuant to any applicable Statement of Work, LWI will
prepare the Master Production Record for the Process in accordance with the schedule set forth in the Statement of Work. CLIENT will inform LWI of any
specific requirements CLIENT may have relating to the Master Production Record, including, without limitation, any information or procedures CLIENT
wishes to have incorporated therein. If LWI intends to include in the Master Production Record the use of any assay, medium, or other technology that is not
commercially available, LWI will inform CLIENT of such intention and the Parties will meet to discuss and attempt to agree in good faith on the terms of use
of such non-commercially available materials or technology in the Process.

3.2 CLIENT will cooperate with LWI to assist LWI to develop the Master Production Record and Process, including, without limitation, by providing LWI
with additional information and procedures as may be required to create the Master Production Record, Process, and/or any of the following: (i)
manufacturing process information, SOPs, development reports, (ii) quality control assays, (iii) raw material specifications (including vendor, grade and
sampling/testing requirements), (iv) Product and sample packing and shipping instructions, (v) Product specific cleaning and decontamination information.

3.3 LWI will deliver a draft version of the Master Production Record to CLIENT for its review and approval in accordance with the schedule set forth in the
Statement of Work. CLIENT will notify LWI in writing of any objections it has to the draft Master Production Record, and upon such notification,
representatives of LWI and CLIENT will meet promptly to resolve such objections. Upon CLIENT’s written acceptance of the draft Master Production
Record, or in the event that CLIENT does not submit a written notice setting forth CLIENT’s objections to the draft Master Production Record within ten (10)
days following receipt of such draft by CLIENT, such draft will be deemed approved by CLIENT.

3.4 The Process, Master Production Record, Specifications, and any improvements or modifications thereto developed during the term of this Agreement, but
excluding any LWI Operating Documents, New General Application Intellectual Property or LWI Confidential Information included in any of the foregoing,
will be deemed CLIENT Confidential Information and subject to the provisions set forth in Article 10. CLIENT shall be permitted to use the Process and/or
the Master Production Record to manufacture and sell Product; provided, however, that if the Process and/or the Master Production Record incorporates or
contains any LWI Intellectual Property or LWI Confidential Information, prior to any disclosure of such LWI Intellectual Property or LWI Confidential
Information to, or use by, a Third Party manufacturer, CLIENT shall obtain LWI’s written consent to such disclosure.




4. MANUFACTURE OF PRODUCT; ORDER PROCESS; DELIVERIES

4.1 Draft Plan. Together with the draft version of the Master Production Record described in Section 3.3 above, LWI will deliver to CLIENT for review and
comment, a proposed draft plan describing the activities to be performed by LWI, or to be subcontracted by LWI to Third Parties, in the production of a
Product (the “Draft Plan”). Once LWI delivers to CLIENT the proposed Draft Plan, the parties will meet to decide whether to issue a new Statement of Work
pursuant to Section 2.1, or to modify an existing Statement of Work pursuant to Section 2.2, based on that Draft Plan and any agreed upon modifications.

4.2 CLIENT Deliverables. Within any time period specified in the Draft Plan and agreed to in any applicable Statement of Work, CLIENT will provide LWI
with (a) the materials listed in the Statement of Work required to be supplied by CLIENT for the production of the Product, and any handling instructions,
protocols, SOPs and other documentation necessary to maintain the properties of such materials for the performance of the Draft Plan (collectively, the
“CLIENT Production Materials”). LWI shall not be responsible for any delay resulting from CLIENT’s to deliver the CLIENT Production Materials in
accordance with the timelines set forth in the Draft Plan or any applicable Statement of Work.

4.3 Commencement Date. The Statement of Work based on a Draft Plan will include a Commencement Date agreed upon by the Parties.

4.4 Manufacture by LWI. During the time period specified in any Statement of Work during which Product will be manufactured (the “Production Term”),
LWI will use commercially reasonable efforts to manufacture, package, ship, handle quality assurance and quality control for the Product, all as set forth in
the Statement of Work, and to deliver to CLIENT the quantities of Product requested by CLIENT in the Statement of Work, all in accordance with the terms
set forth in Section 4.5 below.

4.4.1 Minimum Purchase Obligations. CLIENT shall order no less than ninety percent (90%) of its annual global clinical trial requirements for Products
from LWI in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (the “Minimum Purchase Obligation”) during each year of the term of this Agreement.

4.4.2 Forecasting. No later than the first (1st) day of each calendar quarter, CLIENT shall supply LWI with a written forecast showing CLIENT's estimated
quarterly requirements for Suite capacity and Product manufacturing for the following fifteen (15) month period (the “Forecast”). Except as set forth in
Clause 4.4.3 below, the forecast shall not be binding on CLIENT and shall be used by LWI solely for planning purposes. No later than thirty days (30) days
following LWT’s receipt of a Forecast, LWI shall provide written notice to CLIENT of whether it has (as of the date of receipt of the Forecast) capacity
available to provide Suite and manufacture the quantities of Product forecasted therein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CLIENT acknowledges and agrees
that such written communication from LWI shall not constitute a binding obligation upon, or create any liability for, LWI and that all purchase orders
submitted by CLIENT are subject to available capacity at the Facility as of the date of LWT’s receipt of such purchase orders. CLIENT and LWI currently
anticipate that CLIENT’s demand during the Term shall consist of Product sufficient to treat approximately 600 patients in Phase III clinical trials to be
conducted in the United States. If CLIENT’s Forecasts would require LWI to expand its capacity beyond the then-current capacity at the Facility used for the
manufacture of Products, then LWI shall notify CLIENT in writing of the potential expansion required, and the Parties will discuss the amount of additional
capacity that is needed, as well as the various options that may be available to provide such capacity as associated costs and tax benefits of the various
options.




4.4.3 Purchase Orders. CLIENT shall place purchase orders binding on CLIENT for its requirements of Product and Suite capacity for the manufacture
thereof at least twelve (12) months (or earlier as may be reasonably requested by LWTI) prior to the Commencement Date. Each binding purchase order, signed
by CLIENT’s duly authorized representative and accepted in writing by LWI, shall authorize LWI to reserve Suites for manufacturing such quantities of the
Product as are set forth therein, subject to available capacity at the Facility as of the date of LWT’s receipt of such purchase order. LWI shall not be obligated
to reserve Suites or commence manufacture of any Product unless and until such written purchase order is accepted in writing by LWI. Any delivery date set
forth for Product in LWT’s written confirmation of a purchase order shall be an estimated delivery date only. Where CLIENT issues any purchase order
hereunder, any additional or inconsistent terms or conditions of any purchase order, acknowledgement or similar standardized form given or received pursuant
to this Agreement shall have no effect and such terms and conditions are hereby excluded.

4.4.4 Rescheduling. LWI shall have the right to reasonably reschedule a Commencement Date upon reasonable prior written notice to CLIENT, provided that
the rescheduled Commencement Date is no earlier or no later than [ninety (90)] days from the original schedule at time of placement of the binding purchase
order. If the CLIENT requests to change the Commencement Date, LWI will make all reasonable attempts to accommodate the request; provided, however, in
the event that this change would impact other projects scheduled for occupancy in the designated suite or suites, the CLIENT’s project may be delayed until
an adequate time period is available in the schedule. Any such change requested by CLIENT may result in a fee as may be set forth in the applicable
Statement of Work.

4.4.5 Cancellation of a Binding Purchase Order. CLIENT may cancel a binding purchase order upon written notice to LWI, subject to the payment of a
cancellation fee as calculated below (the “Cancellation Fee”):

(a) In the event that CLIENT provides written notice of cancellation to LWI less than or equal to five (5) months prior to the Commencement Date, or during
manufacture of Product, then one hundred percent (100%) of the Suite Fee for each Suite engaged in the manufacture of such cancelled Product is payable;

(b) In the event that CLIENT provides written notice of cancellation to LWI more than five (5) months but less than or equal to nine (9) months prior to the
Commencement Date, then eighty five percent (85%) of the Suite Fee for each Suite engaged in the manufacture of such cancelled Product is payable; or

(c) In the event CLIENT provides written notice of cancellation more than nine (9) months prior to the Commencement Date, then no Cancellation Fee is
payable.

4.4.6 Payment of Cancellation Fee. Any Cancellation Fee shall be payable within thirty (30) days following the Commencement Date (or, if cancellation
notice is given prior to the Commencement Date, the scheduled Commencement Date) associated with the cancelled Product manufacturing.

4.4.7 Commercial Scale Manufacture. In the event that CLIENT desires to commence commercial scale manufacture of Product, the Parties agree to
negotiate for the provision of such manufacturing services to CLIENT by LWI.

4.5 Packaging and Shipping. LWI will package and label the Product for shipment in accordance with the Master Production Record and LWI’s standard
practices in effect at the time of performance by LWI. LWI will ship the Product FOB Shipping Point delivered at the Facility to a common carrier designated
by CLIENT to LWI in writing not less than ten days prior to the applicable delivery date unless otherwise agreed to in a Statement of Work. CLIENT will
provide to LWTI its account number with the selected carrier and will pay for all shipping costs in connection with each shipment of Product. Each shipment
will be accompanied by the documentation listed in the Draft Plan. LWI will use commercially reasonable efforts to deliver each shipment of Product to
CLIENT on the requested delivery date for such shipment. LWI will promptly notify CLIENT if LWI reasonably believes that it will be unable to meet a
delivery date. CLIENT shall be required to take delivery of a Batch of Product within thirty (30) days after acceptance of such Batch in accordance with
Section 5.2 (the “Delivery Period”).




4.6 Quality Agreement. Upon the decision to manufacture a Product according to a Draft Plan, the Parties shall enter into a separate Quality Agreement, in
the form attached hereto, setting forth the terms for Product quality, quantity, price, and any other terms necessary for such agreements. Such Quality
Agreement shall be separately appended to this Agreement.

4.7 Records. LWI will maintain accurate records for the production of the Product, as required by applicable laws and regulations. LWI will retain possession
of the Master Production Record, all Batch Records and LWI Operating Documents, and will make copies thereof available to CLIENT upon CLIENT’s
request and at CLIENT’s expense. LWI Operating Documents will remain LWI Confidential Information. CLIENT will have the right to use and reference
any of the foregoing in connection with a filing for Regulatory Approval of the Product or as otherwise authorized by the Agreement.

4.8 CLIENT Access.

4.8.1 CLIENT’s employees and agents (including its independent contractors) (collectively, “CLIENT Personnel”) may participate in the production of the
Product only in such capacities as may be approved in writing in advance by LWI. CLIENT Personnel working at the Facility are required to comply with
LWT’s Operating Documents and any other applicable LWI facility and/or safety policies. For the avoidance of doubt, CLIENT Personnel may not physically
participate in the production or manufacture of any Product that may be used in or on humans.

4.8.2 CLIENT Personnel working at the Facility will be and remain employees of CLIENT, and CLIENT will be solely responsible for the payment of
compensation for such CLIENT Personnel (including applicable Federal, state and local withholding, FICA and other payroll taxes, workers’ compensation
insurance, health insurance, and other similar statutory and fringe benefits). CLIENT covenants and agrees to maintain workers’ compensation benefits and
employers’ liability insurance as required by applicable Federal and Maryland laws with respect to all CLIENT Personnel working at the Facility.

4.8.3 CLIENT will pay for the actual cost of repairing or replacing to its previous status (to the extent that LWI determines, in its reasonable judgment, that
repairs cannot be adequately effected) any property of LWI damaged or destroyed by CLIENT Personnel, provided CLIENT shall not be liable for repair or
replacement costs resulting from ordinary wear and tear.

4.8.4 CLIENT Personnel visiting or having access to the Facility will abide by LWI standard policies, operating procedures and the security procedures
established by LWI. CLIENT will be liable for any breaches of security by CLIENT Personnel. In addition, CLIENT will reimburse LWI for the cost of any
lost security cards issued to CLIENT Personnel, at the rate of $50 per security card. All CLIENT Personnel will agree to abide by LWI policies and SOPs
established by LWI, and will sign an appropriate confidentiality agreement.

4.8.5 CLIENT will indemnify and hold harmless LWI from and against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses) arising out of any injuries suffered by CLIENT Personnel while at the Facility or elsewhere, except to the extent caused by the
gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of any LWI Party.

4.9 Disclaimers. CLIENT acknowledges and agrees that LWI Parties will not engage in any Product refinement or development of the Product, other than as
expressly set forth in this Agreement and the Statement of Work. CLIENT acknowledges and agrees that LWI Parties have not participated in the invention or
testing of any Product, and have not evaluated its safety or suitability for use in humans or otherwise.




5. PRODUCT WARRANTIES; ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION OF PRODUCTS

5.1 Product Warranties. LWI warrants that any Product manufactured by LWI pursuant to this Agreement, at the time of delivery pursuant to Section 4.5:
(a) conforms to the Specifications; (b) was manufactured in accordance with the Master Production Record; and (c) was manufactured in accordance with
cGMP.

5.2 Approval of Shipment.

5.2.1 When the Product ordered by CLIENT is ready for delivery, LWI will notify CLIENT and supply CLIENT with the required documentation set forth in
the Draft Plan.

5.2.2 Within ten (10) calendar days after CLIENT’s receipt of such documentation regarding such Product (the “Acceptance Period”), Client shall determine
by review of such documentation whether or not the given Batch conforms to the product warranties set forth in Section 5.1 above (“Product Warranties™).
If CLIENT asserts that the Product does not comply with the Product Warranties set forth in Section 5.1 above, CLIENT will deliver to LWI, in accordance
with the notice provisions set forth in Section 17.4 hereof, written notice of disapproval (the “Disapproval Notice”) of such Product, stating in reasonable
detail the basis for such assertion of non-compliance with the Product Warranties. If a valid Disapproval Notice is received by LWI during the Acceptance
Period, then LWI and CLIENT will provide one another with all related paperwork and records (including, but not limited to, quality control tests) relating to
both the production of the Product and the Disapproval Notice. If a valid Disapproval Notice is not received during the Acceptance Period, the Product will be
deemed accepted and ready for shipment. Upon acceptance, the Product shall be delivered to CLIENT, and CLIENT shall accept delivery thereof, within 10-
days after such acceptance. Title and risk of loss to such Product shall pass to CLIENT at the time of delivery to the common carrier pursuant to Section 4.5.

5.3 Dispute Resolution. LWI and CLIENT will attempt to resolve any dispute regarding the conformity of a shipment of Product with the Product
Warranties. If such dispute cannot be settled within 30 days of the submission by each Party of such related paperwork and records to the other Party, and if
the Product is alleged not to conform with the Product Warranties set forth in Section 5.1(a), then CLIENT will submit a sample of the Batch of the disputed
shipment to an independent testing laboratory of recognized repute selected by CLIENT and approved by LWI (such approval not to be unreasonably
withheld) for analysis, under quality assurance approved procedures, of the conformity of such shipment of Product with the Specifications. The costs
associated with such analysis by such independent testing laboratory will be paid by the Party whose assessment of the conformity of the shipment of Product
with the Specifications was mistaken.

5.4 Remedies for Non-Conforming Product.

5.4.1 In the event that the Parties agree, or an independent testing laboratory determines, pursuant to Section 5.3, that a Batch of Product materially fails to
conform to the Product Warranties due to the failure of: (a) LWI personnel properly to execute the Master Production Record, (b) LWI personnel to comply
with cGMP, or (c) the Facility utilities, then, at CLIENT’s request, LWI will produce for CLIENT sufficient quantities of Product to replace the non-
conforming portion of such Batch of Product (the “Production Rerun”), in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and at no additional cost to
CLIENT.




5.4.2 In the event that the Parties agree, or an independent testing laboratory determines, pursuant to Section 5.3, that a Batch of Product materially fails to
conform to the Product Warranties for any reason other than as set forth in Section 5.4.1, then LWI shall have no liability to CLIENT with respect to such
Batch and LWI will, at CLIENT’s request, produce for CLIENT a Production Rerun at CLIENT’s expense.

5.4.3 CLIENT acknowledges and agrees that its sole remedy with respect to the failure of Product to conform with any of the Product Warranties is as set
forth in this Section 5.4, and in furtherance thereof, Client hereby waives all other remedies at law or in equity regarding the foregoing claims.

6. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION OF MATERIALS AND/OR PRODUCT

6.1 Remedies. If during the manufacture of Product pursuant to this Agreement, Product and/or Materials are destroyed or damaged by LWI Personnel, and
such damage or destruction resulted from LWI’s failure to execute the Process in conformity with the Master Production Record, then, except as provided in
Section 6.2 below, LWI, as soon as it is commercially practicable to do so, will provide CLIENT with additional Product production time equal to the actual
time lost because of the destruction or damage of the Product and/or Materials and will replace such Product and/or Materials at no additional cost to
CLIENT. CLIENT acknowledges and agrees that its sole remedy with respect to damaged or destroyed Materials and/or Product (except for the non-
conformity of shipped Product described in Section 5) is as set forth in this Section 6.1, and in furtherance thereof, CLIENT hereby waives all other remedies
at law or in equity regarding the foregoing claims.

6.2 Limitations. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the preceding Section 6.1, if during the manufacture of Product pursuant to this
Agreement, Product or Materials are destroyed or damaged by LWI Personnel while LWI Personnel were acting at the direction of CLIENT Personnel, then
LWI will have no liability to CLIENT as the result of such destruction or damage.

7. STORAGE OF MATERIALS

7.1 Pre-Production. LWI will store at the expense of CLIENT any CLIENT Materials, equipment or other property delivered pursuant to the Statement of
Work or the Draft Plan to the Facility by CLIENT more than 30 days prior to the Commencement Date. The storage rates will be set forth in the Statement of
Work and may be amended from time to time by LWI. No storage fees will be charged during the period starting 30 days prior to the Commencement Date
and ending upon the expiration or termination of the Production Term.

7.2 Post-Production. LWI will store at the Facility free of charge any in—process materials, CLIENT Materials, equipment and other CLIENT property (other
than Product manufactured hereunder) that remains at the Facility on the date of expiration or termination of the Production Term (collectively “Remaining
CLIENT Property”), for up to 15 calendar days. If CLIENT has not provided any instructions as to the shipment or other disposition of Remaining CLIENT
Property prior to the expiration of such fifteen (15)-day period, LWI may, in its sole discretion, destroy such Remaining CLIENT Property, or continue to
store such Remaining CLIENT Property at the Facility or elsewhere. In the event that LWI continues to store such Remaining CLIENT Property, CLIENT
will pay to LWI a storage charge at LWI’s then-standard storage rates for the period beginning on the sixteenth (16th) day after the expiration or termination
of the Production Term through the date that the storage terminates.

7.3 Product. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if CLIENT fails to take delivery of a Product within the applicable Delivery Period as required by Section 4.5,
CLIENT will pay to LWI a storage charge at three times LWI’s then standard storage rate, which shall begin accruing on the first day following the expiration
of the applicable Delivery Period.




8. REGULATORY MATTERS

8.1 Permits and Approvals. During the Production Term, LWI will use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain any licenses, permits and approvals
necessary for the manufacture of the Product in the Facility. LWI will promptly notify CLIENT if LWI receives notice that any such license, permit, or
approval is or may be revoked or suspended.

8.2 Inspections/Quality Audit by CLIENT. Up to two times during the Production Term and upon not less than 30 days’ prior written notice, LWI will
permit CLIENT to inspect and audit the parts of the Facility where the manufacture of the Product is carried out in order to assess LWI’s compliance with
cGMP, and to discuss any related issues with LWI’s management personnel. CLIENT Personnel engaged in such inspection will abide by the terms and
conditions set forth in Sections 4.8.4 and 10.

8.3 Inspections by Regulatory Agencies. LWI will allow representatives of any regulatory agency to inspect the relevant parts of the Facility where the
manufacture of the Product is carried out and to inspect the Master Production Record and Batch Records to verify compliance with cGMP and other
practices or regulations and will promptly notify CLIENT of the scheduling of any such inspection relating to the manufacture of Product. LWI will promptly
send to CLIENT a copy of any reports, citations, or warning letters received by CLIENT in connection with an inspection of a regulatory agency to the extent
such documents relate to or affect the manufacture of the Product.

9. FINANCIAL TERMS

9.1 Payments. CLIENT will make payments to LWTI in the amounts and on the dates set forth in the Statement of Work. In the event that CLIENT has not
paid an invoice within thirty (30) business days of the applicable due date (as established by Section 9.3), CLIENT’s failure shall be considered a material
breach under Section 14.2, subject to the cure provisions set forth therein. Further, in addition to all other remedies available to LWI, in the event that
CLIENT has not paid an invoice within sixty (60) business days of the applicable due date (as established by Section 9.3), LWI may elect to suspend the
provision of all or a portion of the services under this Agreement, provided that CLIENT shall remain liable for all fees owed pursuant to the Statement of
Work during any such suspension.

9.2 Security Deposit. The Security Deposit, as defined in the Statement of Work, will be returned to CLIENT within 60 days after the date of expiration or
termination of this Agreement, if CLIENT has paid all fees, charges, or other payments due in connection with charges incurred prior to the expiration or
termination of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, charges for lost, destroyed, stolen or damaged property of LWI (all such fees, charges, or other
payments being called “Obligations”). If any Obligations remain outstanding after the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement, then LWI shall be
entitled to apply the Security Deposit against the payment of such Obligations. The amount of the Security Deposit remaining, if any, after such application
will be returned to CLIENT. CLIENT shall remain liable to LWI for any deficiencies remaining after the application of the Security Deposit against the
Obligations.

9.3 Invoices. Within 30 days of the end of each month during which charges were incurred, LWI will provide CLIENT with an invoice setting forth a detailed
account of any fees, expenses, or other payments payable by CLIENT under this Agreement for the preceding month. The amounts set forth in each such
invoice will be due and payable within 30 days of receipt of such invoice by CLIENT.

9.4 Taxes. CLIENT agrees that it is responsible for and will pay any sales, use or other taxes (the “Taxes”) resulting from LWI’s production of Product under
this Agreement (except for income or personal property taxes payable by LWI). To the extent not paid by CLIENT, CLIENT will indemnify and hold
harmless the LWI Parties from and against any and all penalties, fees, expenses and costs whatsoever in connection with the failure by CLIENT to pay the
Taxes. LWI will not collect any sales and use taxes from CLIENT in connection with the production of any Product hereunder if CLIENT provides to LWI
the appropriate valid exemption certificates.
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9.5 Interest. Any fee, charge or other payment due to LWI by CLIENT under this Agreement that is not paid within 30 days after it is due will accrue interest
on a daily basis at a rate of 1.5% per month (or the maximum legal interest rate allowed by applicable law, if less) from and after such date.

9.6 Method of Payment. All payments to LWT hereunder by CLIENT will be in United States currency and will be by check, wire transfer, money order, or
other method of payment approved by LWI. Bank information for wire transfers is as follows:

Mailing address for wire transfer payments:

Bank of America 1815 Gateway Blvd. Concord, CA 94521

ABA # for wires and ACH for account: 111000012 Lockbox # 12261 Account # 3751943976

Lonza Walkersville, Inc. 12261 Collections Center Drive Chicago, Illinois 60693

9.7 Cost Adjustments. After the first anniversary of the Effective Date, LWI may annually adjust the various costs and rates set forth in the Statement of
Work attached hereto to reflect changes in the cost of materials and/or labor rate paid by LWI in connection with the production of Product under this
Agreement; provided, however, that any increase in labor rates shall not exceed any percentage increase in the US Consumer Price Index for the most recently
published percentage change for the 12-month period preceding the applicable contract anniversary date. LWT agrees to provide CLIENT with written notice
of any such cost adjustment.

10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

10.1 Definition. “Confidential Information” means all technical, scientific and other know-how and information, trade secrets, knowledge, technology,
means, methods, processes, practices, formulas, instructions, skills, techniques, procedures, specifications, data, results and other material, pre-clinical and
clinical trial results, manufacturing procedures, test procedures and purification and isolation techniques, and any tangible embodiments of any of the
foregoing, and any scientific, manufacturing, marketing and business plans, any financial and personnel matters relating to a Party or its present or future
products, sales, suppliers, customers, employees, investors or business, that has been disclosed by or on behalf of such Party to the other Party either in
connection with the discussions and negotiations pertaining to this Agreement or in the course of performing this Agreement. Without limiting the foregoing,

the terms of this Agreement will be deemed “Confidential Information” and will be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Article 10.

10.2 Exclusions. Notwithstanding the foregoing Section 10.1, any information disclosed by a Party to the other Party will not be deemed “Confidential
Information” to the extent that such information:

(a) at the time of disclosure is in the public domain;
(b) becomes part of the public domain, by publication or otherwise, through no fault of the Party receiving such information;

(c) at the time of disclosure is already in possession of the Party who received such information, as established by contemporaneous written records;
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(d) is lawfully provided to a Party, without restriction as to confidentiality or use, by a Third Party lawfully entitled to possession of such Confidential
Information; or

(e) is independently developed by a Party without use of or reference to the other Party’s Confidential Information, as established by contemporaneous written
records.

10.3 Disclosure and Use Restriction. Except as expressly provided herein, the Parties agree that for the term of the Agreement and the five-year period
following any termination of the Agreement, each Party and its Affiliates will keep completely confidential and will not publish or otherwise disclose any
Confidential Information of the other Party, its Affiliates or sublicensees, except in accordance with Section 10.4. Neither Party will use Confidential
Information of the other Party except as necessary to perform its obligations or to exercise its rights under this Agreement.

10.4 Permitted Disclosures. Each receiving Party agrees to (i) institute and maintain security procedures to identify and account for all copies of
Confidential Information of the disclosing Party and (ii) limit disclosure of the disclosing Party’s Confidential Information to its U.S. and European Affiliates
and each of its and their respective officers, directors, employees, agents, consultants and independent contractors having a need to know such Confidential
Information for purposes of this Agreement; provided that such U.S. and European Affiliates and each of its and their respective officers, directors,
employees, agents, consultants and independent contractors are informed of the terms of this Agreement and are subject to obligations of confidentiality, non-
disclosure and non-use similar to those set forth herein.

10.5 Government-Required Disclosure. If a duly constituted government authority, court or regulatory agency orders that a Party hereto disclose
information subject to an obligation of confidentiality under this Agreement, such Party shall comply with the order, but shall notify the other Party as soon as
possible, so as to provide the said Party an opportunity to apply to a court of record for relief from the order.

10.6 Publicity. Neither Party will refer to, display or use the other’s name, trademarks or trade names confusingly similar thereto, alone or in conjunction
with any other words or names, in any manner or connection whatsoever, including any publication, article, or any form of advertising or publicity, except
with the prior written consent of the other Party.

11. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

11.1 Generally. Except as expressly otherwise provided herein, neither Party will, as a result of this Agreement, acquire any right, title, or interest in any
patents, copyrights, trade secrets, know-how, inventions (whether or not patentable), discoveries, improvements, and all other intellectual property rights,
including all applications and registrations with respect thereto, and all data, information, reports and any and all related documentation, made or conceived
by the other Party (collectively, “Intellectual Property”) prior to the Effective Date or independently of this Agreement (“Background Intellectual
Property”). Except as expressly otherwise provided herein, ownership of any Intellectual Property that is developed, conceived, invented, first reduced to
practice or made in connection with the manufacture of Product or performance of the services hereunder shall follow inventorship all as determined under
applicable laws.

11.2 New Client Intellectual Property. Subject to Section 11.3, CLIENT shall own all right, title, and interest in and to any and all Intellectual Property that

LWI develops, conceives, invents, first reduces to practice or makes, solely or jointly with CLIENT or others, that is a development or improvement to
CLIENT Materials or CLIENT’s Background Intellectual Property (collectively, “New Client Intellectual Property”).
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11.3 New General Application Intellectual Property. Notwithstanding Section 11.2, and subject to the license granted in Section 11.4.3, LWI shall own all
right, title and interest in “New General Application Intellectual Property”, which as used in this Agreement means Intellectual Property that LWI or its
Affiliates, contractors or agents develops, conceives, invents, or first reduces to practice or makes in the course of manufacture of Product or performance of
the services hereunder that (i) is generally applicable to the development or manufacture of chemical or biological products or (ii) is an improvement of, or
direct derivative of, any LWI Background Intellectual Property. For avoidance of doubt, “New General Application Intellectual Property” shall include any
material, processes or other items that embody, or that are claimed or covered by, any of the foregoing Intellectual Property.

11.4 License. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein (including payment of the purchase price as set forth herein):

11.4.1 LWT hereby assigns to CLIENT all of its right, title and interest in and to any New Client Intellectual Property. LWI shall promptly disclose to CLIENT
in writing all New Client Intellectual Property. LWI shall execute, and shall require its personnel as well as its Affiliates and their personnel, to execute, any
documents reasonably required to confirm CLIENT’s ownership of the New Client Intellectual Property, and any documents required to apply for, maintain
and enforce any patent or other right in the New Client Intellectual Property;

11.4.2 CLIENT hereby assigns to LWTI all of its right, title and interest in and to any New General Application Intellectual Property. CLIENT shall promptly
disclose to LWTI in writing all New General Application Intellectual Property. CLIENT shall execute, and shall require its personnel as well as its Affiliates to
execute, any documents reasonably required to confirm LWI’s ownership of the New General Application Intellectual Property, and any documents required
to apply for, maintain and enforce any patent or other right in the New General Application Intellectual Property; and

11.4.3 LWI hereby grants to CLIENT a non-exclusive, world-wide, fully paid-up, irrevocable, transferable license, including the right to grant sublicenses,
under the New General Application Intellectual Property, to use, sell and import the Products manufactured under this Agreement.

11.5 License to Client Materials. CLIENT hereby grants LWI the non-exclusive right to use any CLIENT Materials, information and Background
Intellectual Property during the term of this Agreement solely for the purpose of manufacturing of Product or performing the services hereunder.

11.6 Prosecution of Patents.

11.6.1 LWI will have the sole right and discretion to file, prosecute and maintain patent applications and patents claiming New General Application
Intellectual Property at LWI’s expense. CLIENT will cooperate with LWI to file, prosecute and maintain patent applications and patents claiming New
General Application Intellectual Property, and will, upon LWTI’s request, review and provide comments to LWI relating to such patent applications and
patents.

11.6.2 CLIENT will have the sole right and discretion to file, prosecute and maintain patent applications and patents claiming New Client Intellectual

Property at CLIENT’s expense. LWI will cooperate with CLIENT to file, prosecute and maintain patent applications and patents claiming New Client
Intellectual Property, and will, upon CLIENT’s request, review and provide comments to CLIENT relating to such patent applications and patents.

13




12. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

12.1 By CLIENT. CLIENT hereby represents and warrants to LWI that, to the best of its knowledge, (i) it has the requisite intellectual property and legal
rights related to the CLIENT Deliverables and the Product to authorize the performance of LWI’s obligations under this Agreement, and (ii) the performance
of the Statement of Work and the production by LWI of the Product as contemplated in this Agreement will not give rise to a potential cause of action by a
Third Party against LWI for infringement or another violation of intellectual property rights. Such representation and warranty will not apply to any
production equipment supplied by LWL

12.2 By LWI. LWI hereby represents and warrants to CLIENT that, to the best of its knowledge, (i) it has the requisite intellectual property rights in its
equipment and Facility to be able to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and (ii) that LWI’s use of its equipment and Facility as contemplated in this
Agreement will not give rise to a potential cause of action by a Third Party against CLIENT for infringement or another violation of intellectual property
rights.

13. DISCLAIMER; LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

13.1 DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, LWI MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS AND GRANTS NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, BY
STATUTE OR OTHERWISE, WITH RESPECT TO THE PRODUCTS, MATERIALS, AND SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT, AND LWI SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER WRITTEN OR ORAL, OR EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF QUALITY, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE
WITH RESPECT TO SUCH PRODUCTS, MATERIALS, OR SERVICES.

13.2 Disclaimer of Consequential Damages. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER OR ANY OF ITS
AFFILIATES FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES (INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS, BUSINESS OR GOODWILL) SUFFERED OR INCURRED BY SUCH OTHER PARTY OR ITS
AFFILIATES IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

13.3 Limitation of Liability. BOTH PARTIES HEREBY AGREE THAT TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, LWI’S LIABILITY
TO CLIENT, FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, EXPENSES, OR DAMAGES, WHATSOEVER, ARISING OUT OF OR IN
ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT FROM ANY CAUSE OR CAUSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, NEGLIGENCE,
ERRORS, OMISSIONS OR STRICT LIABILITY, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE TOTAL CHARGES PAID BY CLIENT TO LWI DURING THE
12 (TWELVE) MONTHS PRECEDING THE EVENT GIVING RISE TO LIABILITY. TO THE EXTENT THAT THIS CLAUSE CONFLICTS
WITH ANY OTHER CLAUSE, THIS CLAUSE SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SUCH CONFLICTING CLAUSE. IF APPLICABLE LAW
PREVENTS ENFORCEMENT OF THIS CLAUSE, THEN THIS CLAUSE SHALL BE DEEMED MODIFIED TO PROVIDE THE MAXIMUM
PROTECTION FOR LWI AS IS ALLOWABLE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW.

14. TERM AND TERMINATION
14.1 Term. The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and will continue until the fifth anniversary of the Effective Date unless

terminated prior to that time or extended by the Parties; provided, that the term may be extended for additional two-year terms upon mutual written consent of
the Parties.
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14.2 Termination for Material Breach. Either Party may terminate this Agreement, by written notice to the other Party, for any material breach of this
Agreement by the other Party, if such breach is not cured within ninety (90) days (thirty (30) days for nonpayment) after the breaching Party receives written
notice of such breach from the non-breaching Party; provided, however, that if such breach (other than a breach for non-payment) is not capable of being
cured within such ninety-day period and the breaching Party has commenced and diligently continued actions to cure such breach within such ninety-day
period, the cure period shall be extended to 180 days, so long as the breaching Party is making diligent efforts to cure such breach. Such termination shall be
effective upon expiration of such cure period.

14.3 Termination of Clinical Trials. Either Party may terminate this Agreement if such Party receives notice that the production of Product hereunder or the
clinical trials for which Product is being produced hereunder have been or will be terminated by the FDA by providing written notice of termination not less
than 2 months in advance of the date of termination. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event of termination by CLIENT under this Section 14.3, CLIENT
shall, at minimum, remain liable for all fees owed pursuant to any outstanding Statement of Work during such two-month period.

14.4 Termination by Insolvency. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon notice to the other Party, upon (a) the dissolution, termination of
existence, liquidation or business failure of the other Party; (b) the appointment of a custodian or receiver for the other Party who has not been terminated or
dismissed within ninety (90) days of such appointment; (c) the institution by the other Party of any proceeding under national, federal or state bankruptcy,
reorganization, receivership or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally or the making by such Party of a composition or any assignment
for the benefit of creditors under any national, federal or state bankruptcy, reorganization, receivership or other similar law affecting the rights of creditors
generally, which proceeding is not dismissed within ninety (90) days of filing. All rights and licenses granted pursuant to this Agreement are, and shall
otherwise be deemed to be, for purposes of Section 365(n) of Title 11 of the United States Code, licenses of rights of “intellectual property” as defined
therein.

14.5 Effects of Termination.

14.5.1 Accrued Rights. Termination of this Agreement for any reason will be without prejudice to any rights that will have accrued to the benefit of a Party
prior to such termination. Such termination will not relieve a Party of obligations that are expressly indicated to survive the termination of this Agreement.

14.5.2 Disposition of Remaining CLIENT Property and Confidential Information. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, LWI will store any
Remaining CLIENT Property as set forth in Section 7.2 and, at CLIENT’s option, return or destroy any CLIENT Confidential Information in the possession
or control of LWI. Likewise, CLIENT will, at LWI’s option, return or destroy any LWI Confidential Information in the possession or control of CLIENT.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions: (i) LWI may retain and preserve, at its sole cost and expense, samples and standards of each Product following
termination or expiration of this Agreement solely for use in determining LWTI’s rights and obligations hereunder; and (ii) each Party may retain a single copy
of the other Party’s Confidential Information for documentation purposes only and which shall remain subject to the obligations of nonuse and confidentiality
set forth in this Agreement.

14.5.3 Security Deposits. Upon any termination of this Agreement by LWI pursuant to Section 14.2, LWI will have the right to retain the full amount of any
Security Deposit paid to LWI pursuant to a Statement of Work, without limiting any of its rights in law or in equity under this Agreement.

14.5.4 Survival. Sections 1, 3.4, 4.9, 7.2, 10, 11, 13, 14.4, 15, 16 and 17 of this Agreement, together with any appendices referenced therein, will survive any
expiration or termination of this Agreement.
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15. INDEMNIFICATION

15.1 Indemnification of Client. LWI will indemnify CLIENT, its Affiliates, and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents, and defend and
hold each of them harmless, from and against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses)
in connection with any and all liability suits, investigations, claims or demands (collectively, “Losses”) to the extent such Losses arise out of or result from
any claim, lawsuit or other action or threat by a Third Party arising out of: (a) any material breach by LWI of this Agreement, or (b) the gross negligence or
willful misconduct on the part of one or more of the LWI Parties in performing any activity contemplated by this Agreement, except for those Losses for
which CLIENT has an obligation to indemnify the LWI Parties pursuant to Section 15.2, as to which Losses each Party will indemnify the other to the extent
of their respective liability for the Losses.

15.2 Indemnification of LWI. CLIENT will indemnify LWT and its Affiliates, and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents (the “LWI
Parties”), and defend and hold each of them harmless, from and against any and all Losses to the extent such Losses arise out of or result from any claim,
lawsuit or other action or threat by a Third Party arising out of: (a) any material breach by CLIENT of this Agreement, (b) the use or sale of Products, except
to the extent such Losses arise out of or result from a breach by LWI of the Product Warranties, (c) the gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of
CLIENT or its Affiliates in performing any activity contemplated by this Agreement, or (d) the use or practice by LWI of any process, invention or other
intellectual property supplied by CLIENT to LWI under this Agreement, except for those Losses for which LWTI has an obligation to indemnify CLIENT
pursuant to Section 15.1, as to which Losses each Party will indemnify the other to the extent of their respective liability for the Losses.

15.3 Indemnification Procedure.

15.3.1 An “Indemnitor” means the indemnifying Party. An “Indemnitee” means the indemnified Party, its Affiliates, and their respective directors, officers,
employees and agents.

15.3.2 An Indemnitee which intends to claim indemnification under Section 15.1 or Section 15.2 hereof shall promptly notify the Indemnitor in writing of any
claim, lawsuit or other action in respect of which the Indemnitee, its Affiliates, or any of their respective directors, officers, employees and agents intend to
claim such indemnification. The Indemnitee shall permit, and shall cause its Affiliates and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents to permit,
the Indemnitor, at its discretion, to settle any such claim, lawsuit or other action and agrees to the complete control of such defense or settlement by the
Indemnitor; provided, however, that in order for the Indemnitor to exercise such rights, such settlement shall not adversely affect the Indemnitee’s rights
under this Agreement or impose any obligations on the Indemnitee in addition to those set forth herein. No such claim, lawsuit or other action shall be settled
without the prior written consent of the Indemnitor and the Indemnitor shall not be responsible for any legal fees or other costs incurred other than as
provided herein. The Indemnitee, its Affiliates and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents shall cooperate fully with the Indemnitor and its
legal representatives in the investigation and defense of any claim, lawsuit or other action covered by this indemnification, all at the reasonable expense of the
Indemnitor. The Indemnitee shall have the right, but not the obligation, to be represented by counsel of its own selection and expense.
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15.4 Insurance. CLIENT will maintain, at all times during the term of this Agreement and for five years thereafter, a products liability insurance policy (the
“Insurance Policy”), with a per occurrence limit of at least five million dollars ($5,000,000) and an aggregate limit of at least five million dollars
($5,000,000), and will provide a Certificate of Insurance to LWI that the Insurance Policy has been endorsed to designate LWT as an additional insured.
CLIENT will maintain the Insurance Policy with an insurance company having a minimum AM Best rating of A and that is licensed to do business in the
State of Maryland. CLIENT will provide LWI with at least 30 days’ written notice prior to termination of such Insurance Policy.

16. ADDITIONAL COVENANTS

16.1 Non-Solicitation. During the term of this Agreement and for two (2) years thereafter, CLIENT agrees not to seek to induce or solicit any employee of
LWTI or its Affiliates to discontinue his or her employment with LWI or its Affiliate in order to become an employee or an independent contractor of CLIENT
or its Affiliate; provided, however, that CLIENT shall not be in violation of this Section 16.1 as a result of making a general solicitation for employees or
independent contractors. For the avoidance of doubt, the publication of an advertisement shall not constitute solicitation or inducement.

17. MISCELLANEOUS

17.1 Independent Contractors. Each of the Parties is an independent contractor and nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute the relationship
of partners, joint venturers, nor of principal and agent between the Parties. Neither Party shall at any time enter into, incur, or hold itself out to Third Parties
as having authority to enter into or incur, on behalf of the other Party, any commitment, expense, or liability whatsoever.

17.2 Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be in breach of this Agreement if there is any failure of performance under this Agreement (except for payment of
any amounts due under this Agreement) occasioned by any reason beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Party affected thereby,
including, without limitation, an act of God, fire, flood, act of government or state, war, civil commotion, insurrection, acts of terrorism, embargo, sabotage, a
viral, bacterial or mycoplasmal contamination which causes a shutdown of the Facility, prevention from or hindrance in obtaining energy or other utilities, a
shortage of raw materials or other necessary components, labor disputes of whatever nature, or any other reason beyond the control and without the fault or
negligence of the Party affected thereby (a “Force Majeure Event”). Such excuse shall continue as long as the Force Majeure Event continues. Upon
cessation of such Force Majeure Event, the affected Party shall promptly resume performance under this Agreement as soon as it is commercially reasonable
for the Party to do so. Each Party agrees to give the other Party prompt written notice of the occurrence of any Force Majeure Event, the nature thereof, and
the extent to which the affected Party will be unable to fully perform its obligations under this Agreement. Each Party further agrees to use commercially
reasonable efforts to correct the Force Majeure Event as quickly as practicable (provided that in no event shall a Party be required to settle any labor dispute)
and to give the other Party prompt written notice when it is again fully able to perform such obligations.

17.3 Condemnation. If the Facility is condemned or taken as a result of the exercise of the power of eminent domain or will be conveyed to a governmental
agency having power of eminent domain under the threat of the exercise of such power (any of the foregoing, a “Condemnation”), then this Agreement will
terminate as of the date on which title to the Facility vests in the authority so exercising or threatening to exercise such power and CLIENT will not have any
right to the Condemnation proceeds.

17.4 Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by any Party shall be in writing and shall be (a) delivered personally, (b)
sent by registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (c) sent by a nationally-recognized courier service guaranteeing next-day or second day
delivery, charges prepaid, or (d) delivered by facsimile (with documented evidence of transmission), to the addresses or facsimile numbers of the other Party
set forth below, or at such other addresses as may from time to time be furnished by similar notice by any Party. The effective date of any notice under this
Agreement shall be the date of receipt by the receiving Party.
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If to LWI:

Lonza Walkersville, Inc. Attn: Vice President, Cell Therapy Bioservice 8830 Biggs Ford Road Walkersville, Maryland 21793 Fax: (301) 845-6099
With a copy to:

General Counsel Lonza America, Inc. 90 Boroline Road Allendale, NJ 07401 Fax: (201) 696-3589

If to Client:

Genesis Biopharma, Inc.

Attn: [ 1
11500 Olympic Blvd.
Suite 400

Los Angeles, CA 90064
Either Party may change its address for notice by giving notice thereof in the manner set forth in this Section 17.4.

17.5 Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement, including the Appendices attached hereto and referenced herein, constitutes the full understanding
of the Parties and a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of their agreement with respect to the specific subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings, oral and written, among the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. No terms, conditions, understandings or
agreements purporting to amend, modify or vary the terms of this Agreement (including any Appendix hereto) shall be binding unless hereafter made in a
written instrument referencing this Agreement and signed by each of the Parties.

17.6 Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect
to its conflicts of laws provisions.

17.7 Counterparts. This Agreement and any amendment hereto may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall for all purposes be
deemed an original and all of which shall constitute the same instrument. This Agreement shall be effective upon full execution by facsimile or original, and a
facsimile signature shall be deemed to be and shall be as effective as an original signature.

17.8 Severability. If any part of this Agreement shall be found to be invalid or unenforceable under applicable law in any jurisdiction, such part shall be
ineffective only to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability in such jurisdiction, without in any way affecting the remaining parts of this Agreement in
that jurisdiction or the validity or enforceability of the Agreement as a whole in any other jurisdiction. In addition, the part that is ineffective shall be
reformed in a mutually agreeable manner so as to as nearly approximate the intent of the Parties as possible.

17.9 Titles and Subtitles. All headings, titles and subtitles used in this Agreement (including any Appendix hereto) are for convenience only and are not to
be considered in construing or interpreting any term or provision of this Agreement (or any Appendix hereto).
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17.10 Exhibits. All “RECITALS”, “DEFINITIONS”, exhibits and appendices referred to herein form an integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated
into this Agreement by such reference.

17.11 Pronouns. Where the context requires, (i) all pronouns used herein will be deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine or neuter gender as the context
requires, and (ii) the singular context will include the plural and vice versa.

17.12 Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Parties and the name of a Party appearing herein shall be deemed
to include the names of its successors and assigns. Neither Party may assign its interest under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other
Party, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld. Any permitted assignment of this Agreement by either Party will be conditioned upon that Party’s
permitted assignee agreeing in writing to comply with all the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. Any purported assignment without a required
consent shall be void. No assignment shall relieve any Party of responsibility for the performance of any obligation that accrued prior to the effective date of
such assignment.

17.13 Waiver. The failure of any Party at any time or times to require performance of any provision of this Agreement (including any Appendix hereto) will
in no manner affect its rights at a later time to enforce the same. No waiver by any Party of any term, provision or condition contained in this Agreement
(including any Appendix hereto), whether by conduct or otherwise, in any one or more instances, shall be deemed to be or construed as a further or continuing
waiver of any such term, provision or condition or of any other term, provision or condition of this Agreement (including any Appendix hereto).

17.14 Dispute Resolution. If the Parties are unable to resolve a dispute, despite its good faith efforts, either Party may refer the dispute to the President of
each Party’s respective business unit (or other designee). In the event that no agreement is reached by the Presidents (or other designees) with respect to such

dispute within thirty (30) days after its referral to them, either Party may pursue any and all remedies available at law or in equity.

17.15 No Presumption Against Drafter. For purposes of this Agreement, CLIENT hereby waives any rule of construction that requires that ambiguities in
this Agreement (including any Appendix hereto) be construed against the drafter.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date last signed by the parties hereto.
GENESIS BIOPHARMA, INC.

By:

Name:

Title:

LONZA WALKERSVILLE, INC.

By:

Name:

Title:
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APPENDIX A
STATEMENT OF WORK
Statement of Work for Contract Manufacturing
This Statement of Work (SOW A-1) is agreed to by and between Genesis Biopharma (the “Client”) and Lonza Walkersville, Inc. (“LWI”) pursuant to the
Manufacturing Services Agreement, dated [[NSERT MSA DATE] by and between Client and LWI (the “Agreement”), and is incorporated therein and made a
part of such Agreement.

Project Scope

This SOW (SOW A-1) describes activities to be performed by LWI Process Development (PD) for the optimization of Client’s manufacturing process for
Contego™ (the “Product”). Activities and the Projected Timeline are detailed below. The LWI Cost Estimate is provided in Table 1.

Key Assumptions

£ The Client is responsible for ensuring an adequate supply of metastatic melanoma tumor samples to LWTI. It is estimated that at least fifty (50) tumor
samples are required to be shipped to LWI between January 14 and March 31, 2012. LWI Project Management shall communicate with the Client when tumor
samples will be required and under what conditions (temperature, container, etc.). Should the Client not be able to provide LWI with the required tumor

samples, LWI and the Client shall prioritize experiments and adjust timelines as appropriate.

£LWI Process Development department shall draft Experimental Protocols as agreed upon between the Client and LWI. The Client shall review and approve
each Protocol via signature prior to execution of the Protocol. LWI shall not execute described in the Protocol prior to Client review and written approval.

£ The Client shall review and provide comments to each individual Experimental Protocol within seven (7) calendar days from receipt of the Protocol from
LWI, with a goal of written approval within fourteen (14) calendar days.

£ Upon completion of each individual Experimental Protocol, LWI shall generate an Experimental Report, detailing the results yielded from the protocol
execution

£ LWI shall target an issuance of each individual Experimental Report within thirty (30) calendar days post completion of the Experimental Protocol
execution.

£ The Client shall review and provide feedback on submitted Reports within fourteen (14) calendar days upon issuance from LWI Process Development, with
a goal of final written approval thirty (30) days after first submission.

Note:

In the event that LWI has not received written feedback or approval of an experimental report(s) within the fourteen (14) calendar days, LWI shall consider
the report(s) “Approved” by the Client.

£ All activities and charges described herein are applied against the fees paid or payable under the Letter of Intent (LOI) executed between LWT and the Client
dated November 4, 2011.

21




Definitions

£ NCI — National Cancer Institute

£ LWI — Lonza Walkersville, Inc.

£ TIL — Tumor Infiltrating Lymphocyte

£ PD — Process Development Department (LWI)

£ REP — Rapid Expansion Protocol

£ CoGS - Cost of Goods Sold

List of Tables, Figures and Attachments

£ Table 1 — LWI Estimate

£ Attachment 1: 2012 Cell Therapy Suite Schedule

Project Activities

1. Training - Tumor Isolation Technique

LWI shall provide adequate staffing required for proper training on tissue digestion and TIL isolation via tumor fragments. Training will be conducted either
at LWI or NCI and provided by either a member of the NCI TIL program or a Client/LWI mutually agreed upon qualified trainer. It is estimated that three (3)
to four (4) LWI Process Development personnel will be trained on this technique by qualified trainers and in turn provide training to the remainder of the
appropriate LWI staff for the future manufacturing of Contego™. Each trained individual will train on 3-5 tumors, and must successfully dissect 3 tumors
with success being defined as successful generation of TIL at Day 14 in culture. This will tentatively qualify the individual for TIL isolation processing at
LWI pending Client approval.

Deliverable: Report — Summary of Training

LWTI shall provide the Client with a summary report detailing activities undertaken by LWI staff as it relates to the above activity.
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2. Tumor Holding Times

LWTI shall initiate a Tumor/Tissue Holding program to provide data pertaining to the ability to recover viable TILs from tumors that are stored at LWI over a
period of time. This step will test tumor tissue shipped to LWI from NCI, using mutually agreed upon standardized specimen container, collection media,
shipping carrier and container. Each sample will be assigned a unique label with barcode. Tumor will be shipped overnight and processed at Lonza
immediately upon receipt. The holding study is required to define the limits of sample acceptance if/when a shipment is delayed for any reason and the
sample is retained in the shipping container beyond the standard 24 hours. A focused holding study is proposed, with duplicate resected tumor sent in separate
container and allowed to sit for additional time period of 1-3 days before dissection and processing. Following this defined study, additional samples will be
placed on hold in an ongoing basis, expanding beyond the original holds to build a large stability data set. Samples will be assessed as stable or degraded
based on the successful generation of TIL from a 14 day culture. Specifics surrounding the addressed variables and areas for consideration will be outlined in
the protocol and approved by LWI and the Client prior to execution.

Deliverable: Experimental Report

LWTI shall provide the Client with an Experimental Report (as appropriate) containing all data, findings and recommendations related to tumor stability and
shipping.

3. Pre-REP Medium Optimization and Cryopreservation

LWTI shall execute appropriate Protocols to test variable culture conditions as it pertains to the Pre-REP culture of Contego™. Specifics surrounding the
addressed variables and areas for consideration will be outlined in the protocol(s) and approved by LWI and the Client prior to execution. Variables that will
be optimized include basal media (RPMI, AIM vs. XVivo), feed schedule, growth factor concentration, and cell concentrations at seed and passage, among
others. Various culture apparatus will be compared for fastest and most efficient method of generating TIL from harvest, including 24 well culture dish,
GREX10, and Gas-permeable Bags. Criteria for successful TIL will be assessed at day 10, and compared to the standard RPMI with 10% serum. 5 tumor
fragments will be used to initiate each culture, and each condition will be tested from 5 independent tumor biopsies. Should tumor not be accessible to repeat
in sets of 5, experimental protocols could be adjusted by mutual agreement. Shipping and receipt will be performed as specified in the Tumor Holding Times
Report as per Section 2.

Successful PRE-REP concludes with phenotyping cells and freezing for inclusion into the REP.
Deliverable: Experimental Report(s)

LWTI shall provide the Client with Experimental Report(s) as deemed appropriate containing all data, and findings related to Pre-REP Medium Optimization
and Cryopreservation of Pre-REP cells.

4. Rapid Expansion Protocol Feasibility

LWI shall carry out cultures initiated in Pre-REP focused experiments to demonstrate process feasibility for culture protocols associated with the Rapid
Expansion (REP) of Contego™. It is expected that at least 3-5 REPs will be performed prior to REP optimization (SOW A2). All REP expansions and
experiments will be outlined in an Experimental Protocol and approved by LWI and the Client prior to execution. Initial REP expansions will be performed
using the materials and methods previously used by NCI to demonstrate performance. Additional experiments aimed at optimizing and selecting the process
from frozen TIL transitioned to WAVE Systems will be investigated. These experiments include parameters that compare vessels of gas permeable bags,
GRex containers, and direct WAVE expansion. Various media starting volumes, perfusion of media exchange rates, and nutrient and GF levels will be studied.
These studies will be performed on outgrowth of tumor shipped to NCI and used for pre-REP studies, or could be increased with the use of previously
isolated and frozen TIL. All REP POC and optimization are dependent on Allogeneic Feeder Cells (#5)
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Deliverable: Feasibility Report(s)

LWTI shall provide the Client with Feasibility Report(s) as required containing all data, and findings related to REP Proof of Concept, preliminary
optimization, and cryopreservation of REP cells.

5. Proof of Concept (Poc) — Allogeneic Pooled PBMCs

LWI will procure multiple leukopheresis products from one or more of our approved tissue bank sources, and these cells will be processed and frozen for use
as feeder layers for the REP phase. Cells from at least 3 donors will be pooled to use as a feeder layer, and 10-20 donors will be banked in preparation for the
process development work on the REP phase.

6. Cell Characterization - Analytics

LWI Process Development and Bioassay Services shall perform basic “For Information Only” (FIO) activities related to process analytics including but not
limited to cell characterization via FACS (phenotypic identification), ELISAs (potency), viability and cell count via NucleoCounter, as well as other analytics
that LWI and/or the Client wish to have analyzed with application applicable to the in-process and/or final product release testing for Contego™. The extent
of testing within each experimental protocol can increase or decrease the costs of each experiment, and this will be closely monitored and communicated to
client during monthly budget updates.

Process Development activities in this Scope of Work include the testing and feasibility of assays for use as potency. 1-3 assays will be developed, with use in
characterization of PD runs. Assays may include cytokine release ELISA or ELISPOT, tumor or target lysis, proliferation, or other assays.

Deliverable: Report(s) (as required)

LWI and/or the Client shall indicate which tests and/or testing methods shall be analyzed for the development of Contego™. Specifics around which testing
will be performed at which phases in the culturing/processing of the Product will be outlined in the Protocol(s) developed by LWI and approved by the Client
as per the Key Assumptions above. Analytical Results will be a key component in all Reports issued to the Client by LWI.

7. Process Engineering

LWI Process Development will perform process engineering activities throughout development. These activities will include: development and maintenance
of process flow diagrams and a bill of materials for each process step, highlighting CoGs’ challenges and process bottlenecks, projecting CoGs impact on
process changes and proposing high impact areas for process streamlining, and anticipating impacts on suite design and capacity modeling for clinical trials
and eventual commercial production. LWI shall communicate such findings and provide solutions-focused recommendations to the Client during weekly
communications throughout the lifecycle of the Process Development program.

Deliverable: Process Flow Diagrams, Bill of Materials, and strategic process recommendations to minimize CoGs, process bottlenecks and
production bottlenecks.
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Financial Terms

As per Section 9 “Financial Terms” of the Agreement

Fee Schedule and Rates

See Attachment 1 below

Table 1: LWI Estimate

Security Deposit

Upon signature of this SOW, the Client will pay to LWI a Security Deposit in the amount of one hundred thousand ($100,000) USD for security. The Security
Deposit will be applied against any and all fees payable by Client to LWI hereunder and under the Agreement. The balance of the Security Deposit, if any,
will be returned to the Client within sixty (60) days after the date of completion, expiration or termination of this statement of work, if (i) the Client has paid
all fees, charges, or other payments due in connection with charges incurred prior to the termination of this Statement of Work, including, but not limited to,

charges for lost, destroyed, stolen or damaged property of LWI, and (ii) the Client has paid all fees, charges, or other payments due in connection with charges
incurred prior to the termination of this Statement of Work. pursuant to any other Statement of Work or the Agreement.

1. Process Development of Contego Qty Rate Cost Est. Comments
Labor
Lab- Process Development/Bioassay Services 1400 $ 325.00 $ 455,000.00
Office - Process Development/Bioassay Services 350 $ 325.00 $ 113,750.00
Materials 1 $ 113,750.00 $ 113,750.00
Testing (In Process and Final Product) Included in labor and materials
Sample Storage 6 months <500 samples @
6 $ 1,000.00 $ 6,000.00 LN2
Estimated Sub Total: Process Development ~ $ 688,500.00
2. Other Fees Qty Rate Cost Est. Comments
Labor, Project Management 360 $ 150.00 $ 54,000.00
Travel Expenses 1 $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 Travel to NCI for training
Process and Capacity Modeling 90 $ 325.00 $ 29,250.00
Estimated Sub Total: Other Fees $ 85,250.00
Estimated Total SOW A-1  $ 773,750.00

If any fees set forth in (i) and (ii) above remain outstanding after the expiration of such sixty (60) day period, then LWI will be entitled to apply the Security
Deposit against the payment of such fees. The amount of the Security Deposit remaining, if any, after such application, will be returned to the Client. The
Client will remain liable to LWI for any deficiencies remaining after the application of the Security Deposit against such fees.

Payment Schedule

Upon signature of this SOW, the Client will be invoiced for time, materials and testing for all work described in this SOW A-1 on a monthly basis. The Client

will receive detailed monthly billing statements for work associated with SOW A-1
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LWI will invoice the Client, as per Section 9 of the Agreement and as per the pricing agreed to in this SOW. Overall fees and costs for the services rendered
under this SOW will not exceed $780,000 USD in total without written approval from the Client. Any cost over this level must be accompanied by a written
justification and prior Client approval and signature.

The Client shall pay the amounts payable to LWI as per section 8 “Financial Terms” of the Agreement

Estimated Project Timeline

Note: All dates and durations are estimated and are subject to change.

Project Team

The project team will meet on a regular basis, as needed, either in person or by teleconference, to review data and make directional changes if necessary in
order to facilitate success, meeting the timeline as defined.

Term and Termination

The term of this SOW will commence on approximately December 26, 2011, the Commencement date, and will continue until the earlier of (i) completion of
SOW or (ii) either party giving sixty (60) days prior written notice to the other party for any reason. In the event of a termination, Client will pay reasonable
costs incurred by LWT up to the effective date of termination, including the out-of-pocket losses to LWI for purchase of unmarketable materials which have
become unusable by reason of termination and for all un-cancellable labor commitments and all work in process including all professional services rendered
through the effective date of termination.
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Key Contact Information

Any supplemental information required in addition to this proposal should be addressed to the following contact:
Anthony Basile

Project Manager

Lonza Walkersville, Inc.

8830 Biggs Ford Road

Walkersville, MD 21792
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Office Phone: +1 (301) 378-1706

Anthony.Basile@lonza.comn

LONZA WALKERSVILLE, INC. CLIENT
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
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Attachment 1: LWI 2012 Fee Schedule

Labor

Description

Administrative Copying or scanning of records or printed materials at the
request of the Client.

Project Management and Technical Documentation

This labor rate is for document preparation, technical writing, batch record
review, product release, quality reporting, project management, and other
technical non-laboratory project related activities as specified by the client.
Tech Transfer Labor This labor rate includes production for tech transfer
activities and training runs in a training laboratory.

Clinical Production Labor Production of engineering and clinical
materials in a cGMP clinical, commercial, or EU suite.

Specialist Labor Validation, Regulatory, and/or Tissues Acquisition
consulting activities.

Process Development and Bioservices Labor

Development activities such as process scale up, assay development, media
optimization, performance of bioassays and stability studies.

On-Call Services Surcharge

Applies to Client specific requests for any LWI personnel to be on call
during non-business hours for Client related processing, raw material
acceptance, product testing, product release, manufacturing review, etc.
Overnight/Off Peak Hours

Services requested by the client specifically related to production during
off-business hours. Applies to all manufacturing services after 11p.m. and
before 6 a.m. as well as for QA/QC services after 6p.m. and before 8a.m.
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Rate
$85 per hour

$150 per hour

$250 per hour

(suite fees do not apply to unclassified labor)
$190 per hour + applicable suite fees

or

$450 per hour (without suite fees)

$300 per hour

$325 per hour

$50 per day per person (in addition to above labor rate)

$500 per day per person (in addition to above labor rate)




[Illegible]
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APPENDIX B
QUALITY AGREEMENT

TO BE ATTACHED
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification of the Principal Executive Officer Under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

I, Anthony Cataldo, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Genesis Biopharma, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15d- 15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(o) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(©) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2012 By: /s/ ANTHONY CATALDO
Name: Anthony Cataldo
Title: Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
Certification of the Principal Financial Officer Under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

I, Michael Handelman, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Genesis Biopharma, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(o) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(©) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2012 By: /s/ MICHAEL HANDELMAN
Name: Michael Handelman
Title: Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF THE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Genesis Biopharma,
Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifies that, to his knowledge:

@) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 (the “Report”) fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(ii) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.
Date: March 29, 2012 By: /s/ ANTHONY CATALDO

Name: Anthony Cataldo
Title: Chief Executive Officer and President




Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF THE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Genesis Biopharma,
Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifies that, to his knowledge:

(iii) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 (the “Report”) fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

@iv) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.
Date: March 29, 2012 By: /s/ MICHAEL HANDELMAN

Name: Michael Handelman
Title: Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer




